Wellfleet Selectboard

Note: Start Time of 6pm
The Wellfleet Selectboard will hold a public meeting on Tuesday, April 27, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. This
meeting will be held via Zoom Video Conference in accordance with the temporary suspension and
enhancement of the Open Meeting Law requirements by Governor Baker. Instructions for a Zoom video
conference meeting which also allows phone dial-in are given below:

1. Watch a livestream on Wellfleet’s YouTube Channel located at the following link:
www.youtube.com/c/wellfleettownmedia.

Join the meeting hosted in Zoom by using the following link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85689604806?pwd=blplVFFBZzViQOXNWkZKMm9iMVdrdz09
Audio, video, chat, and screen sharing functions will be disabled during the public session. Request to
participate by using the “raise hand” function. Meeting ID: 856 8960 4806 | Passcode: 611877
a. Raise hand in smartphone app — touch bottom of your screen and select “more” - hit “raise
hand” button
b. Raise hand on computer — hit “participants” button on bottom of screen — hit “raise hand”
button on bottom of participants panel
c. Please make sure you properly identify yourself before speaking, rename yourself by selecting
the participants button and choosing “more” (or by holding down on your name on a
smartphone app) and selecting “rename” - full, legal names only.
d. Please join the meeting on time.

2. You may also listen to the meeting by calling in on a phone to +1 929 205 6099 and enter Meeting
ID: 856 8960 4806 | Passcode: 611877 Landline callers can participate by dialing *9 to raise their
hand.

3. You may submit questions and comments to the Town using the following email:
executive.assistant@wellfleet-ma.gov Comments made during the meeting via e-mail will be sent to
Selectboard members AFTER the meeting.

4. Meeting materials are attached to this agenda, available online at Wellfleet-ma.gov. It is recommended
that phone participants access materials in advance of the meeting.

5. Please follow the following general instructions:

a. Keep your phone muted at all times when not talking; no one is allowed to unmute themselves
during the meeting.
i. Selectboard meetings are NOT interactive. If public comments are allowed that’s all,
comments only, not questions.
ii. If the Chair is allowing comments during the meeting the number of comments will be
limited and may be no longer than one minute.
. Do not use speakerphone; do not use Bluetooth devices; mute all background noise.
c. Please do not speak until the Chair asks for public comments or questions and you have been
recognized by the moderator and unmuted.
d. After the business section is complete no public comments are permitted. Future agenda items
are from the Selectboard, no one else.

6. It is anticipated that the meeting will be recorded by the Town. Anyone else desiring to record the
meeting may do so only after notifying the chair and may not interfere with the conduct of the meeting
in doing so.

I Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments
Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any matter raised
solely during Announcements & Public Comments.

Town of Wellfleet 1 Selectboard Agenda
Meeting materials are available on the Town of Wellfleet web site: http://www.wellfleet-ma.gov. Motions may be offered and votes
may be taken by the Board on any agenda item except for Announcements & Public Comment



http://www.wellfleet-ma.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/c/wellfleettownmedia
mailto:executive.assistant@wellfleet-ma.gov

II.

I1I.

Iv.

VI

VIIL.

VIII.

IX.

XI.
XII.

XIII.

COVID-19 Updates and Recommendations
¢ Any information or updates will be given here.
Discussion on Postponing Town Meeting
e The Board will discuss and take possible votes on postponing town meeting

Public Hearings
A. Amend sections of the Town of Wellfleet Shellfishing Policy and Regulations.
e To add Section 7.6.1 Application Procedure
e To amend Section 2. Shellfishing Policy for the Town of Wellfleet / Purpose of
Regulations, Section 6.1 Commercial Permits and Section 7.8. Issuance of Licenses for
Aquaculture
e To change Board of Selectmen to Selectboard and to change Department of Marine
Fisheries to Division of Marine Fisheries throughout the Town of Wellfleet Shellfishing
Policy and Regulations.
e Delete Section 6.6 Transfer of Oysters to Wholesale Dealers' Trucks During Vibrio Control
Season
e Delete dates from Section 7.15.3. Use of Spat Collecting Devices
Licenses
A. Common Victualler
e 349 Café
e Leeside Café
B. Food Truck
o 349 Café
e Leeside Café
Use of Town Property
A. Shellfish Department
e Extend Farmer’s Market 2 Saturdays

Business

A. Appointment of Acting Town Administrator

B. Discussion and possible votes taken on the warrant article regarding transfer of taxes —
Selectboard.

C. Discussion and possible votes taken for Town Meeting warrant articles not already approved.

D. Discussion and possible votes taken on 2022 budgets.

Selectboard Reports

Town Administrator’s Report

Topics for Future Discussion

Correspondence and Vacancy Reports

Minutes

A. April 13,2021

Adjournment

Town of Wellfleet 2 Selectboard Agenda

Meeting materials are available on the Town of Wellfleet web site: http://www.wellfleet-ma.gov. Motions may be offered and votes

may be taken by the Board on any agenda item except for Announcements & Public Comment


http://www.wellfleet-ma.gov/

SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

COVID-19 UPDATES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

—

REQUESTED BY: Chair DeVasto/Health Agent Lemos

DESIRED ACTION: | Discuss any new updates or information

PROPOSED TBD
MOTION:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I I I
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021
TOWN MEETING
'REQUESTED BY: | Selectboard Chair DeVasto
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss moving town meeting to a later date in June
PROPOSED TBD
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
' VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST [ ‘ /
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021 -

PUBLIC HEARINGS ~ A

REQUESTED BY: Shellfish Constable ~ Nancy Civetta

DESIRED ACTION: | To approve the Amended sections of the Town of Wellfleet
Shellfishing Policy and Regulations

| PROPOSED I move to approve the amended sections of the Town of Wellfleet
MOTION: Shellfishing Policy and Regulations as presented by Wellfleet’s
) Shellfish Constable, Nancy Civetta

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




Wellfleet Shellfish Department

TN OF WELLF 6BV

o Cige Cot

300 Main Street, Wellfleet, Massachusetts 02667

Date: April 9, 2021

To:  Town of Wellfleet Selectboard

From: Nancy Civetta, Shellfish Constable

Re:  Proposed Addition of Grant License Application Procedure to Wellfleet’s
Shellfishing Regulations

Dear Selectboard members,

When I was hired, the Principal Clerk sent me documents to use for grant license
applications and transfers. See attached. I developed a checklist to make sure that [ was
covering everything that the regulations required for grant transfers and for the two grant
lotteries that we have held to date. See attached. I have been meeting with grant holders
and the people they want to add or remove from leases and going over all the paperwork
with them, making sure they had everything in order and then writing my letter of
recommendation for the Selectboard. I send the application itself to the Principal Clerk so
it can be advertised and request that it be placed on the Selectboard agenda, grouped with
other shellfishing items when possible to make the best use of the Board’s time.

I had not encountered a formal grant extension request until recently. I realized that while
the application procedure referred to in the following section is mentioned, it is never
actually outlined anywhere in our regulations.

7.6. Process for Approval of Aquaculture Licenses
The Board of Selectmen will accept and process applications for area licenses in accordance with
MGL Chapter 130; Section 57, and the application procedure of the Town.

For clarity on both sides, we should add the procedure to our regulations. There is a large
administrative burden in documenting aquaculture activities, and it is in the Town’s best
interest to outline a fair and equitable way to implement the application procedure to the
benefit of our entire community. What I have outlined here is how it has been happening
under my tenure, except for the grant extension that came before you in March.

The Mass. Division of Marine Fisheries reviewed the procedure and provided feedback,
which was incorporated prior to the Shellfish Advisory Board (SAB) meeting. At its
meeting on April 8, the SAB voted unanimously (4-0) to recommend these regulations.

I submit the following and ask you to vote to approve this addition to Wellfleet’s
Shellfishing Policy and Regulations. I look forward to our discussion.
Sincerely,

P e 7
oy

Nancy Civetta
wellfleet-ma.gov/shellfish-department
Phone (508) 349-0325 T Fax (508) 349-0305




7.6. Process for Approval of Aquaculture Licenses

The Board of Selectmen will accept and process applications for area licenses in
accordance with D : , and the application procedure of the Town.

7.6.1 Application Procedure

This procedure applies to new grant applications, applications for extensions
to current grants and grant renewals and transfers. All potential new lease
holders must meet the eligibility requirements in Section 7.8.1. In addition,
current lease holders applying to be added to another grant or applying for
extensions must have complied with all Town of Wellfleet Shellfishing Policy
and Regulations for at least three (3) years preceding the application for each
grant license to which s/he is named. These include but are not limited to:
Section 7.3 Annual License Fee, 7.12 Evidence of Productivity: Use It or Lose
It, 7.13 Annual Report, 7.14 Annual Inspection of Each Grant, 7.15.1
Required State Seed Propagation Permit and 7.19 Aquaculture Gear and

Equipment. If applicant meets all criteria outlined above, then the following
is required:

1.

2.

Fill out an application and get Shellfish Constable signature. Applications
available at Shellfish Department offices.

Go over the Check List for Aquaculture Lease Applicants with the
Shellfish Constable, who will provide any additional documentation
required, such as a form for a Five-Year Business Plan and a template for
a letter to the Selectboard.

For new grants and extensions:

a. Determine whether upland owner permission is needed, and if so,
obtain permission.

b. Schedule a site visit with Shellfish Constable to assess the area,
ensure the shellfish growing area has an appropriate classification
for aquaculture, review approximate coordinates for the new
grant boundaries and discuss any potential conflicts. The
applicant should include the proposed coordinates and map in the
documentation provided to the Shellfish Constable for the
Selectboard.

c¢. Have Harbormaster review proposal with regards to reasonable
navigational and recreational interests in the areas concerned.
(See 7.4 Location of Areas Licensed for Aquaculture (Grants).)

d. Set up a site visit with the Harbormaster and Shellfish Constable.
The Shellfish Constable will contact the Principal Clerk for
advertisement and request that the public hearing be placed on an
upcoming Selectboard meeting agenda.

The Shellfish Constable will write a letter of recommendation or concern
and will provide all relevant grant applicant documents for the
Selectboard hearing meeting packet by the deadline.

A public hearing will be held, and the Selectboard will determine the
outcome of the application.

Phone (508) 349-0325 Wellfleet Shellfish Department Fax (508) 349-0305



7. Upon approval by the Selectboard and after the Mass. Division of Marine
Fisheries biological survey,

a. the applicant must have the new site professionally surveyed and
supply the Shellfish Department with all boundary coordinates in
decimal-degrees, and simultaneously

b. start the state and federal permitting process, including, but not
limited to, Notice of Intent (Wetlands Protection Act filing),
Chapter 91 authorization, eligibility under the Army Corps
General Permit, etc. For more details, visit:
https://www.massaguaculturepermitting.org/

8. Before the applicant can begin to use the site, s/he will be required to
clean up and remove all old and/or derelict aquaculture gear that may
have accumulated on the site and schedule a grant inspection by the
Shellfish Department to ascertain its readiness.

Phone (508) 349-0325 Wellfleet Shellfish Department Fax (508) 349-0305



APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF SHELLFISH GRANT LICENSE

Date:
To: Board of Selectmen
300 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA 02667
I/We hereby request transfer of Shellfish Grant License #
From
To
Said grant license is located at , in Wellfleet, MA
and consisting of acres, as shown on a plan prepared
by and dated
Signature(s)
Name(s)
Mailing Address
Telephone

Email



APPLICATION FOR SHELLFISH GRANT LICENSE

DATE:

This request is being made under Chapter 130, Sections 57 & 59.

Name

Address

Telephone

Approximate location of proposed grant license area:

Desired size of proposed grant license area:

GENERAL INFORMATION

Previous shellfishing experience:

How long have you had a shellfish permit (commercial/non-commercial)?

How long have you lived in Wellfleet?

Comments:

Signature of Applicant Shellfish Constable



APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF SHELLFISH GRANT LICENSE

Date:
TO: Board of Selectmen
300 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA 02667
I/We hereby request renewal of Shellfish Grant License # , located at
, in Wellfleet MA and consisting of acres,

and dated , for a (five) (ten) year period.

I/We agree to pay to the Town Clerk, within thirty days after approval, the annual fee and $1.00 for recording

and $ 4.00 for costs incurred by the Town of Wellfleet in granting said renewal.

Signature

Name

Mailing Address

Telephone Number



Section 2. Shellfishing Policy for the Town of Wellfleet
Purpose of Regulations

The purpose of these regulations is to foster, protect and preserve Wellfleet's shellfish
resources and habitats, to maintain and improve conditions permitting sustainable,
productive shellfishing and aquaculture, to ensure equitable use of the resource for all
persons legally engaged in these activities, and to provide appropriate protection for the
reasonable and legitimate interests of all others affected by shellfishing. To that end,
these regulations supplement and are consistent with the requirements of the State of
Massachusetts including Massachusetts General Law Chapter 130, Code of
Massachusetts Regulations 322, and the current Best Management Practices for the
Shellfish Culture Industry in Southeastern Massachusetts, developed by SEMAC
(Southeastern Massachusetts Aquaculture Center).

To implement this policy, the Beard-of-Selestmen Selectboard may restrict the taking of
shellfish by commercial or noncommercial permit holders in any area or in any manner
for the purpose of managing the fishery.

The Beard-ofSeleetmen Selectboard will license areas of intertidal land in such a
manner as will allow as many licensed areas as are economically and environmentally
practical for any such parcel of intertidal land approved for licensing.

Because much of the area that is used for shellfishing and shellfish aquaculture is a
precious natural resource that is owned by the Town, and because best use of such
intertidal land is made by those who are geographically present and personally
accountable to the community, the granting of commercial permits and licenses for
aquaculture is restricted to domiciled residents of Wellfleet.

Section 6. Commercial Shellfishing
6.1. Commercial Permits

6.1.1. Eligibility For Commercial Permits

A commercial permit may be issued to any person fourteen (14) years of age or older,
who is a domiciled resident of Wellfleet. Individuals aged fourteen (14) through sixteen
(16) may be issued junior commercial permits. Only in the calendar year in which a
person reaches fourteen (14) years of age may that person apply for a junior commercial
permit at any time after the occurrence of that person s b1rthday Re51dents over 65 may
be 1ssued semor permlts 2 g , S

Commercial permits will not be issued to unnaturalized foreign-born persons who have
not resided in Barnstable County at least five (5) years prior to making application (MGL
Chapter 130; Section 55).

6.1.2 Domicile Requirement and Exception

Phone (508) 349-0325 Wellfleet Shellfish Department Fax (508) 349-0305



Any commercial permit will be revoked if the holder ceases to be a domiciled resident of
Wellfleet, with the exception of those who have previously held a commercial permit
for at least two (2) years, and who have temporarily lost housing in Wellfleet for
reasons clearly beyond their control (such as a fire or a lease not being renewed) as
verified by the Shellfish Constable. Status of domiciled residency, as defined in
Section 2 of these regulations, and verified by the Shellfish Constable, must be
resumed within eighteen (18) months from the time of the permit holder’s removal
to another town or the permit will then be revoked. No commercial permit or
aquaculture license from another municipality for the harvest of shellfish may be
held by the individual for the duration of the allowed term. If the permit holder fails
to qualify for such an exception, they may appeal the Shellfish Constable’s decision
to the Selectboard within 30 days.

FYI: The current 6.1.2 will become 6.1.3 and each subsection thereafter will also be
renumbered in sequential order finishing with 6.1.4 becoming 6.1.5.)

Section 7. Shellfish Aquaculture
7.8. Issuance of Licenses for Aquaculture

7.8.1. Eligibility Requirements: Licenses shall only be issued to domiciled residents (See
Sec.1 Definitions) of the Town, 18 years of age or older, who have the knowledge and
experience to fulfill the responsibilities specified in the license, provided that the
applicant has held and been documented by the Shellfish Department using a Wellfleet
commercial shellfishing permit during a period of at least three (3) of the four (4)
calendar years preceding the date of application for a license. Applicant shall submit
copies of state-filed catch reports. OR, provided the applicant demonstrates experience in
shellfish propagation and aquaculture, continuously, over at least three (3) years
preceding the date of application, documented by the Shellfish Department. This shall be
supported by a letter from a license holder who employed the applicant describing the
type of work performed and any other information which might be relevant. The
applicant shall present a detailed five-year business plan for how s/he intends to use the
grant, including shellfish species, amounts and sizes, and gear to be used, access routes
and any other information relevant to proposed operations. In addition, any applicant
shall not show a pattern of violations of Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Policy and Regulations
within the last three (3) years.

7.8.2 Domicile Requirement and Exception

At such time as a licensee ceases to be a domiciled resident of the Town, that individual
shall be removed from the license, except in the event of loss of housing for reasons
clearly beyond their control (such as a fire or a lease not being renewed) as verified
by the Shellfish Constable. Status of residency, as defined in Section 2 of these

Phone (508) 349-0325 Wellfleet Shellfish Department Fax (508) 349-0305



Regulations, must be resumed and verified by the Shellfish Constable within
cighteen (18) months from the time of the license holder’s removal to another town,
or the licensee will be removed from the license. No aquaculture license or
commercial permit from another municipality may be held by the individual for the
duration of this term of allowance. If the permit holder fails to qualify for such an
exception, they may appeal the Shellfish Constable’s decision to the Selectboard
within 30 days.

The status of all other licensees will not change. If that licensee ceases to be a domiciled
resident and is the sole licensee, then the license shall be revoked.

FYI: The current 7.8.2 will become 7.8.3 and each subsection thereafter will also be

renumbered in sequential order finishing with 7.8.7 becoming 7.8.8 and all its
subsections reflecting 7.8.)

Phone (508) 349-0325 Wellfleet Shellfish Department Fax (508) 349-0305



Wellfleet Shellfish Department

TOWN DR WTLLFLEET

onCor Cod

300 Main Street, Wellfleet, Massachusetts 02667

Date: April 9, 2021

To:  Town of Wellfleet Selectboard

From: Nancy Civetta, Shellfish Constable

Re:  Housecleaning of Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Policy and Regulations

Dear Selectboard members,

As sometimes happens, documents need updating to reflect changes that have happened
but have not been made in the documents themselves.

I am requesting to make four housecleaning changes to Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Policy
and Regulations as follows:
1. To change Board of Selectmen to Selectboard (45 occurrences) throughout the
Town Of Wellfleet Shellfishing Policy and Regulations.
2. To change Department of Marine Fisheries to Division of Marine Fisheries (one
occurrence).
3. Delete Section 6.6 Transfer of Oysters to Wholesale Dealers' Trucks During
Vibrio Control Season

ShellfshDepartment-website:
(The Mass. Department of Public Health, which issues the variance, has asked us
NOT to include this in our regulations. Furthermore, the variance validity has
expired. We have already put in a request for an updated variance.)

4. Delete dates from Section 7.15.3. Use of Spat Collecting Devices

The use of spat collecting devices such as Chinese hats to catch oyster larvae in
areas not licensed for aquaculture, may only be done by commercial permit
holders who also hold a seed permit (Section 1, Definitions) betweenJune—15ts
ard20raienesatiorsunseton-Octaber L0201

Thank you for your time and attention to this.

Sincerely,
7 — h

7

Nancy Civetta

wellfleet-ma.gov/shellfish-department
Phone (508) 349-0325 (i\) Fax (508) 349-0305




TOWN OF WELLFLEET SHELLFISH DEPARTMANT
CHECK LIST FOR AQUACULTURE LEASE APPLICANT

[J Applicant is a domiciled resident of Wellfleet, as that is defined in Section 1 of our
regulations.

[ Applicant is 18 years of age or older.

O Approval of this application will not result in the applicant having more than 7 acres leased
to them for aquaculture within the Town’s waters.

O All other licensees named to the grant have given written approval for the applicant to be
included on their lease. If a corporation is the current lease holder, all persons who are
members of the corporation must submit their written approval.

[0 At this time, there are no more than three lease holders named to the lease.

O If applicant is applying for a lease on private property, permission from the owner has been
obtained.

O The applicant has held and been documented by the Shellfish Department using a Wellfleet
commercial shellfishing permit during a period of at least three (3) of the four (4) calendar years
preceding the date of application for this license. Applicant shall submit copies of state-filed
catch reports, OR,
[ The applicant demonstrates experience in shellfish propagation and aquaculture,
continuously, over at least three (3) years preceding the date of application, documented by
the Shellfish Department.
O This shall be supported by a letter from a license holder who employed the applicant
describing the type of work performed and any other information which might be
relevant.

[ The applicant shall present a detailed five-year business plan for how s/he intends to use the
grant, including shellfish species, amounts and sizes, and gear to be used, access routes and any
other information relevant to proposed operations.

O For any proposed new grants or extensions, approximate coordinates and a map should be
reviewed by the Shellfish Constable, including a site visit, and provided in the documentation
for the Selectboard.

[ The applicant has received and agreed in writing to comply with the current version of the
Town'’s Shellfish Policy and Regulations.

[ The applicant acknowledges that s/he will also be held responsible to and will familiarize
him/herself with MGL Ch. 130 and CMR 322, as well as the most recent SEMAC Best
Management Practices, DMF’s vibrio control plan, National Shellfish Sanitation Program’s Guide




and DPH’s Regulations for Fish and Fishery Products, as they apply to the harvest of shellfish
governing his/her business operations.

O The applicant does not show a pattern of violations of Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Policy and
Regulations within the last three (3) years.

FROM WELLFLEET SHELLFISH POLICY AND REGULATIONS

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS

Aquaculture License - An authorization, granted by a vote of the Board of Selectmen, to utilize
a specific tract of land, under coastal waters (1) to plant and grow shellfish using in-bottom or
off- bottom culture; (2) to place shellfish in or under protective devices affixed directly to the
tidal flats or land under Wellfleet’s coastal waters, such as boxes, pens, trays, bags or nets; (3)
to harvest and take legal shellfish; (4) to plant cultch for the purpose of catching shellfish seed;
and (5) to grow shellfish by means of racks, rafts or floats (MGL Chapter 130; Section 57).
Licensed Area (Grant) - a designated bottom area, certified by the Division of Marine Fisheries
(DMF) and licensed by a vote of the Board of Selectmen, on which the licensee may plant, grow
and harvest shellfish (MGL Chapter 130; Sections 57 & 68).

Resident - A declared resident of the Town of Wellfleet. Written proof that Wellfleet is the
domicile as well as the legal residence of the applicant shall be required to the satisfaction of
the Shellfish Constable and Board of Selectmen. Domicile will be established after one year of
residency in Wellfleet is demonstrated. Proof of legal residence may include voter registration,
automobile registration, driver's license, income tax filings, census data, or passport.

7.8. Issuance of Licenses for Aquaculture

7.8.1. Eligibility Requirements: Licenses shall only be issued to domiciled residents (See Sec.1
Definitions) of the Town, 18 years of age or older, who have the knowledge and experience to
fulfill the responsibilities specified in the license, provided that the applicant has held and been
documented by the Shelifish Department using a Wellfleet commercial shellfishing permit
during a period of at least three (3) of the four (4) calendar years preceding the date of
application for a license. Applicant shall submit copies of state-filed catch reports. OR, provided
the applicant demonstrates experience in shellfish propagation and aquaculture, continuously,
over at least three (3) years preceding the date of application, documented by the Shellfish
Department. This shall be supported by a letter from a license holder who employed the
applicant describing the type of work performed and any other information which might be
relevant. The applicant shall present a detailed five-year business plan for how s/he intends to
use the grant, including shellfish species, amounts and sizes, and gear to be used, access routes
and any other information relevant to proposed operations. In addition, any applicant shall not
show a pattern of violations of Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Policy and Regulations within the last
three (3) years.

At such time as a licensee ceases to be a domiciled resident of the Town that individual shall be
removed from the license. The status of all other licensees will not change. If that licensee is
the sole licensee then the license shall be revoked.



Wellfleet Shellfish Department

TOWS OF WILLFLEET

o Cagr Codl

300 Main Street, Wellfleet, Massachusetts 02667

Date: April 9, 2021

To:  Town of Wellfleet Selectboard

From: Nancy Civetta, Shellfish Constable

Re:  Proposed Addition of Domicile Exception to Wellfleet’s Shellfishing Regulations

Dear Selectboard members,

For more than a decade, Helen Miranda Wilson has been working on a draft exception to
the required domicile regulation for being able to obtain a commercial shellfishing permit
and being named to a grant license. With the housing crisis caused by the COVID-19
pandemic and the specter of local shellfishing families losing their housing in town, she
knew it was time to act.

She brought her draft regulations to the Shellfish Department, and we worked together on
them. Then, she presented them to the Shelifish Advisory Board (SAB) at its March 17
meeting. There was a rich discussion and feedback for revisions was given to her. She
brought the revisions back to SAB at its meeting on April 8. After further discussion and
a small revision, SAB unanimously approved (4-0) adding these to the regulations.

Deletions are marked with strike-threughs and additions are bolded.
I present them to you and ask that you vote to amend the regulations as follows.

Sincerely,

o
o
Nancy Civetta

e

wellfleet-ma.gov/shellfish-department
Phone (508) 349-0325 Fax (508) 349-0305




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

LICENSES ~ A
'REQUESTED BY: | Principal Clerk
DESIRED ACTION: | To approve the Common Victualler Licenses
PROPOSED I move to approve the Common Victualler Licenses for the
. following cafes:
MOTION: e 349 Café
e Leeside Café
| ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

LICENSES ~ B
'REQUESTED BY: Principal Clerk
' DESIRED ACTION: | To approve The Food Truck Licenses
PROPOSED I move to approve the Food Truck Licenses for the following Food Trucks: |
¢ 349 Café i
MOTION: o Leeside Café
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY

| REQUESTED BY: Shellfish Department

DESIRED ACTION: | To approve extending the Shellfish Farmer’s Market two extra

Saturdays
PROPOSED I move to approve the extension of the Shellfish Farmer’s
MOTION: Market 2 extra Saturdays; these include Saturday May 8* and
’ Saturday May 15" 11:30am to 2:30pm
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY

TOWN OF WELLFLEET
300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667
Applicant Welifleet Shellfish Department Affiliation or Group Town of Wellfleet
Telephone Number 508-349-0325 Mailing Address 300 Main St.
Email address_nancy.civetta@wellfleet-ma.gov Wellfleet. MA 02667

Town Property to be used (include specific area) Marina parking lot ] B

Date(s) and hours of use: Saturday, May 8 and Saturday, May 15 11:30 AM to 2:30 PM

Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements,
food/beverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

This will be a continuation of the weekly Wellfleet Shellfishermen’s Farmers Market. Holbrook Ovster’s van staces

at the bandstand and shellfishermen and other volunteers deliver bags of shellfish to people in their vehicles who have

preordered online through the Wellfleet Shellfishermen’s Assn. at wellfleetshelifishermen.org

Nauset Regional High School Green Club members are the first point of contact for customers. and they inform people

about the pick-up process. collect shells and bags for recvcline and hand out recipes. We usually have about a

dozen people total workine the event. We set up DPW traffic cones to ruide the vehicle in lines to wait.

Describe any Town services requested (police details, DPW assistance, efc.)

_None other than WSD

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non-refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed
prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.

Action by the Board of Selectmen:

Approved as submitted

__Approved with the following condition(s):

Disapproved for following reason(s):

Date:  4-16-2021 Processing Fee:  $50.00

Fee:  We request a waiver of all fees.

(over)



APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

Health/Conservation Agent: Inspector of Buildings:
1

Comments/Conditions: Comments/Conditions:

Permits/Inspections needed: Permits/Inspections needed:
 Police Department: ' Fi?ﬁepartmena

Comments/Conditions: Comments/Conditions: _

) | 7

'DPW: i ) Community Services Director:

Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions:

.-/})/
7 |
i
|
L _ fi—
' Harbormaster: . Shellfish:
o S
A7

Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions
 Recreation: ' Town Administrator:
|

Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

BUSINESS ~ A

| REQUESTED BY: | Selectboard

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and take a possible vote on the warrant article

regarding the transfer of taxes

PROPOSED I move to place and recommend the transfer of taxes Article in
MOTION: the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




DRAFT 4.4.20

Article ___ Home Rule Petition to Authorize the Town of Wellfleet to Establish a Real

Estate Transfer Fee.

To see if the Town will vote to petition the General Court to enact a special act of the Town of
Wellfleet, the text of which is set forth below, and that the General Court be authorized with the
approval of the Selectboard to make constructive changes in the text thereof as may be necessary
or advisable in order to accomplish the intent of this legislation to secure its passage, as follows:

AN ACT AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF WELLFLEET TO ESTABLISH A REAL ESTATE
TRANSFER FEE

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in the General Court
assembled, and by the authority of the same as follows:

[Definitions] SECTION 1. For purposes of this act, the words and phrases set forth in this section

shall have the following meanings:
"Purchaser", shall refer to the transferee, grantee or recipient of any real property interest.

"Purchase price", all consideration paid or transferred by or on behalf of a purchaser to a seller or
his nominee, or for his benefit, for the transfer of any real property interest, and shall include, but
not be limited to, all cash or its equivalent so paid or transferred; all cash or other property paid
or transferred by or on behalf of the purchaser to discharge or reduce any obligation of the seller;
the principal amount of all notes or their equivalent, or other deferred payments, given or
promised to be given by or on behalf of the purchaser to the seller or his nomineg; the

outstanding balance of all obligations of the seller which are assumed by the purchaser or to



which the real property interest transferred remains subject after the transfer, determined at the
time of transfer, but excluding real estate taxes and other municipal liens or assessments which
are not overdue at the time of transfer; the fair market value, at the time of transfer, of any other
consideration or thing of value paid or transferred by or on behalf of the purchaser, including, but
not limited to, any property, goods or services paid, transferred or rendered in exchange for such

real property interest.

"Real property interest", shall refer to any present or future legal or equitable interest in or to real
property, and any beneficial interest therein, including the interest of any beneficiary in a trust
which holds any legal or equitable interest in real property, the interest of a partner or member in
a partnership or limited liability company, the interest of a stockholder in a corporation, the
interest of a holder of an option to purchase real property, the interest of a buyer or seller under a
contract for purchase and sale of real property, and the transferable development rights created
under chapter 183A of the General Laws; but shall not include any interest which is limited to
any of the following: the dominant estate in any easement or right of way; the right to enforce
any restriction; any estate at will or at sufferance; any estate for years having a term of less than
30 years; any reversionary right, condition, or right of entry for condition broken; and the interest

of a mortgagee or other secured party in any mortgage or security agreement.

"Seller", shall refer to the transferor, grantor or immediate former owner of any real property

interest.

Opt “Seasonal” shall be defined as a period commencing April 1 of each calendar year and

termination November 30 of the same calendar éyear?.

"Time of transfer" of any real property interest shall mean the time at which such transfer is
legally effective as between the parties thereto, and, in any event, with respect to a transfer

evidenced by an instrument recorded with the appropriate registry of deeds or filed with the

Commented [RC1]: As per Welifleet Zoning Bylaws



assistant recorder of the appropriate registry district, not later than the time of such recording or

filing.

"Town" shall refer to the Town of Wellfleet acting by and through its Selectboard.

[Rate] SECTION 2. There is hereby imposed a Real Estate Transfer Fee equal to

. |
FEE [Optlons;, - | Commented [RC2]: Note Boston’s proposal also has an
additional transfer tax on speculative sales (if a property is
held for less than 24 months)

1. a fee in the amount of one (1) percent of said purchase price shall be due and payable by the
seller; and (B) a fee in the amount of one (1) percent of said purchase price shall be due and

payable by the purchaser. [2% of total split]

2. a fee in the amount of one half per cent (1/2) percent of said purchase price shall be due and
payable by the seller; and (B) a fee in the amount of one half per cent (1/2) percent of said

purchase price shall be due and payable by the purchaser. [1% of total split]

3. . afee in the amount of one half per cent (1/2) percent of said purchase price shall be due and

payable by the seller. [1/2% of total seller]

4. a fee in the amount of one half per cent (1/2) percent of said purchase price shall be due and

payable by the purchaser. [1/2% of total purchaser]

upon the transfer of any real property interest in any real property situated in the Town of

Wellfleet. Said fee shall be the liability of the off such property interest, and any Commented [RC3]:

agreement between the purchaser and the seller or any other person with reference to the

allocation of the responsibility for bearing said fee shall not affect such liability of the purchaser.

The fee shall be paid to the Town of Wellfleet. The first $75,!0001 collected in each fiscal year Commented [RC4): Provincetown’s proposal set aside

$250,000
shall be deposited in the Town’s Capital Improvement Stabilization Fund. The remaining funds



collected each fiscal year shall be deposited into the Wellfleet Housing Trust Fund , [the
Wellfleet Affordable Housing Trust Fund] [or the Wellfleet Housing Authority?]

[Exemptions] SECTION 3. The following transfers of real property interests shall be exempt

from the Real Estate Transfer [Fee:

A, First time homebuyers who live in the home for at least 5 years. A lien shall accompany the
deed stating that “There is running with the land a lien equal to the amount of fee exempted, plus

accumulated interest and penalties until such time as all conditions of this sub-section are met.”

B. Transfers to the Government of the U.S., The Commonwealth, the Town of Wellfleet and any
of their instrumentalities, agencies or sub-divisions, such as the Wellfleet Housing Authority and

The Wellfleet Housing Trust.

C. Transfers made without additional consideration to confirm, correct, modify or supplement a

transfer previously made.

D. Transfers of convenience with consideration under $100.00 which include: name change, into

trusts, out of trust, etc.

E. Transfers to any charitable organization as defined in Clause Third of Section Five of Chapter
59 of the General Laws or any religious organization providing that the real property interests so

transferred will be held solely for public charitable or religious purposes.

F. Transfers between immediate family members, marriage partners, parents and children,

grandchildren, step-parents and step-children, brothers and sisters.
[Value Exclusion Options]

E.l The [Previous?] fiscal year’s median single family home assessed value as assessed by the
Wellfleet Town {Assessor. (Qpt.) This exemption shall not apply to properties occupiable on a

seasonal basis jonly.

Commented [RC5]: Boston’s propaosal includes an
exemption based on section 5C of chapter 59 of the General
law. I am not sure if we use that but it creates an exemption
on primary residences.

Commented [RC6]: Any others?

. Commented [RC7]: 2020 539,000 2021 551,300

‘; Commented [RC8]: This would aliow the value to self

| correct are respond to market changes without the need to

' modify legislation.
Commented [RCI]: About 9-10% of the value of Real
Estate Transfers are for condominiums which generally can
not be occupied on a year round basis. This is purely
seasonal housing.



E.2 The first $500,000 of the purchase price. (Opt.) This exemption shall not apply to properties

occupiable on a seasonal basis only.

E.3 The first $750,000 of the purchase price. (Opt.) This exemption shall not apply to properties

occupiable on a seasonal basis only.

E. 4 Transfers for which the sale price is under $1,000,000

SECTION 4.

A. The fee imposed shall be due at the time of the transfer of the real property interest.

B. The buyer shall pay interest on any unpaid amount of the fee at the rate the Town collects on

unpaid Real Estate Taxes.

C. The Town shall notify a buyer by Registered or Certified Mail of any failure to discharge the

amount in full of fee due.

D. All fees and interest required to be paid under this Act shall constitute a personal debt of the

buyer and may be recovered in an action of icontract;

D. (Op) The fee shall be paid to the Wellfleet, or its designee, and shall be accompanied by a
copy of the deed or other instrument evidencing such transfer, if any, and an affidavit signed
under oath or under the pains and penalties of perjury by the purchaser or his legal representative
and the seller or his legal representative, attesting to the true and complete purchase price and the
basis, if any, upon which the transfer is claimed to be exempt in whole or in part from the fee
imposed hercby. The Town, or its designee, shall promptly thereafter execute and issue a
certificate indicating that the appropriate fee has been paid or that the transfer is exempt from the
fee, stating the basis for the exemption. The register of deeds for Barnstable County, and the
assistant recorder for the registry district of Barnstable County, shall neither record nor register,

or receive or accept for recording or registration, any deed, except a mortgage deed, to which has

Commented [RC10): About 9-10% of the value of Real

Estate Transfers are for condominiums which generally can |

not be occupied on a year round basis. This is purely
seasonal housing.

| Commented [RC11]: About 9-10% of the value of Real
Estate Transfers are for condominiums which generally can
not be occupied on a year round basis. This is purely
seasonal housing.

Commented [RC12]: This is the Simplest

Commented [RC13]: See City of Boston & Town of
Chatham



not been affixed such a certificate executed by the Town or its designee. The Town is authorized
to provide for the collection and liening of any outstanding transfer fee. The Town shall have
such remedies to collect said amount as provided by law with respect to the collection of real
property taxes. Failure to comply with this requirement shall not affect the validity of any

instrument.

. Annual Report. The Town shall prepare and issue an annual report that (i)
identifies fee receipts by payer category including buyers and sellers, location and unit type; and

(i1) quantifies affordable housing programs funded, including type and purpose.

. Severance Clause. The determination or declaration that any provision of this act is
beyond authority of the general court or is preempted by law or regulation shall not affect the

validity or enforceability of any other provisions.

SECTION 7. This Act shall take effect on passage.

References



00'056'866Y $ pojo anjep
¥2'168'682 $ | ¥Z'9z8‘sst S | 09°svTOvE $ | 09°4L6'99¢ $ |%e
29'St6'vT S| zretees S | 08'zL00LT S | 08'886°Z8T S [%T
18°°UV'TUL S | 95°9519F S | O¥'9£0s8 S | ov'ver'16 S %S0 el xe|
00'29576¥ vT S| 00°ZTE'T6Z'6 $ | 0008220041 $ | 0008886231 S xe] 03 123[qng anjeA
6 44 zs 95 6TT 0 JagwnN
00'29SVer T S| 00°TIETRLIST $ | 00°088°€8Z vt $ | 0008886291 $ | 00°S¥S‘PrE 99 S pnieA g1o1L
00°000°000°T $ | 00°000°0S£ S | 00'0SSVZS $ | 00°000°00S S 0SS'72SS 6T Ad
JaAQ 4d o|es JOAQ 32Lid 9jes JOAQ 2011d 9jes JOAQ 2011d 9|es on|eA 9WIOH uelpa|n
SOpUO0d WoJ sapnjaul,,
%Cy 0T Se sopuo)
00'SZE'TET'L S pojo anjep
00'086°£92 S | 00'0rE‘86T S | 00°8€0T9¢ S | 00°0£818¢€ S %z
00°066°€ET S | 0004166 $ | 00°61508T $ | 00°S€6°06T S |%T
00°566'99 S | 00°58S 61 $ | 0565206 $ | 05°29t‘S6 S %S0 2]k xe|
00'000‘66€‘€T $ | 000000°2T6°6 $ | 00°006°TS0‘8T S | 00°005°€60°6T S xe] 01 123[gns anjeA
8 4 99 99 T€T jo JaquinN
00'000'66£‘€T S | 00°00029T°L2 S | 00°00S‘€60°'LY $ | 00°005°€60°LY S | 00°S65°05¥°89 S pniea jeloy
00°000°000°T S | 000007052 $ | 00°009°81S $ | 00°000°00S S 009815 8T Ad
J9AQ 9144 °|es J9AQ i djes JOAQ 3lld 9|es JOAQ =231id 9|es INnjeA 2WOH ueipaiA
SOpPUOl WOl sopnpul,
%69°0T Se SOpuo)
00'SZT'OVL VT S pajo anjep
00°09t'8St S | Zr'9TSese $ | 90865989 S | 90°€6T8S2 $ %z
00'0€Z‘6CC S| tz'8sL‘9LT S | €0'66TshE S | €5°960°6LE $ |%T
00'ST9PTT S| TT'6L£88 S | ZS'6¥9'TLT S | £z8¥S'68T $ |%s0 ales xe|
00°000°€Z6'T2 S| 00TZ8'SL9 LT S | 00"c06‘6ZE PE S | 00°€59°606°LE S xe] 03 123[gns anjep
ST 474 T1T vIT S3|es JO JaquinN
00'000'7t0'ST $ | 00°1Z8'SLT 61 S | 00°€06‘6£6°06 S | 00°€59'606°v6 $ | 00°€65'298'LET  $ pnjea jeroL
00°000°000°T S | 00°'000°0S£ $ | 00°000°0TS $ | 00000005 S 0000TS LT M

JOAQ 301Id IS

JIAQ A01I4 3)eS

J9AQ 314 3)eS

J3AQ MU djes

anjeA aWoH uelpa




SOPUOd WOJ SaPN|oUL,

%8507 Se sopuo)
0067L'LG8'LL $ po jo anjep
00'205°966 S | 99'vrzce9 S | ¥2°'092'988 S | ¥2'06686 $ |%T
00'1SZ'86V S| €€ zerote S | CT'OET sV S | ersevvLy S %1
0S'STT 61T $ | £T°'190°8ST $ | 90'595°12C S |9sLveiiee S (%S0 dles xe]
00°001'SZ8'61 S | 00'EETZTITE S | 00ZTO'ETE VY S | 00°ZTS 6V LY S Xe| 01133[qns anjep
LT 81 6L 18 61T jO JIqUINN
00°001'SZ8‘61 S | 00'€€TCT9L9 $ | 00'Z10'v68°98 $ | 00°Z1S'6V6°£8 $ | 00°€9T‘PE0ZTT S pnieA |elol
00'000°000°T $ | 00°000°052 S | 00'000°6€S $ | 00°000°00S S 000°6€SS| QLA 0T A4

19AQ 014 3jes

19AQ 221id 3jeS

J3AQ 221d 3jes

JAAQ 11 9jes

aN|eA SWOH uelpajp

SOpUOD WOJ Sapnpaul,,

%€ L

[se sopuo)|




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST II
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021
BUSINESS ~ B
'REQUESTED BY: | Selectboard
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and take a possible vote on the 2021 warrant articles
that have not already been placed or recommended by the
Selectboard
PROPOSED I move to place and recommend (each article will be clarified for
MOTION: each placement and or recommendation)
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: ' Seconded By: —
Condition(s):
Yea Nay Abstain

|_VOTED:




ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
Saturday June 5, 2021
10AM
Wellfleet Elementary School Ball Field
100 Lawrence Road

&

TOWN ELECTION
June 14, 2021
12PM-7PM
Wellfleet Senior Center
715 Old King’s Highway




TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL & PROPOSITION 2 %5 TERMS .ottt crree e s ne e e 3
TOWN MEETING PROCEDURES .......oovttuciiiiitieereeeeeereeessessesssinaesesseseesenenneees 4
FINANCE COMMITTEE STATEMENT .......cccceeerirerenne, Error! Bookmark not defined.
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT .....otttiicirtrteeeerrrerereeseeeeeeses s s eeseess s eenean 7
SECTION |: BUDGET ARTICLES.....cotttttiireeeeimeiiiiiinncreeeeeeneeeereeeseeseseesssansessessessssssenes 8
SECTION II: ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL ARTICLES ............. Error! Bookmark not defined.
SECTION 1ll: CHARTER AMENDMENTS & GENERAL BYLAWS ...... Error! Bookmark not
defined.
SECTION IV: ZONING BY LAW AMENDMENT ARTICLES ....ccovieiveeeeeiiieiiieeeeeieeveains 23
SECTION V: DISPOSITION OF TOWN LAND ARTICLES ......covtrveeiiieeereeeeeeeiieeiensneeneennnes 23
SECTION VI: UNCLASSIFIED ARTICLES ......eoiiierretiricererciriicinne e eeeeeei e e e s b 25
SECTION VII: STANDARD ANNUAL ARTICLES....couneiiiiccieieeinien et veee e e e 27
SECTION IX: STANDARD CLOSING ARTICLES .....uueitnirerieeeeneeeeceeeceeeeeerreee e 28

ANNUAL TOWN ELECTION WARRANT. ..ot sreecme s nesnesestestestessesnesssssesesssssesnes s 29

FY 2021 OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGETS SUMMARY ........ccoviiiirrrcniieeeeccriecnee e 33
FY 2021 OPERATING BUDGET ......ctiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiierrte e ceceeeice e s snrrcnnnnneeece s ssaans 34
FY 2021 CAPITAL BUDGET .....ceeiiiiieeiiieeiecc e eeeeer e e rttes e e s aanees s see e s eeees e 40
FY 2021 MARINA SERVICES ENTERPRISE FUND BUDGET .....cccovvvrrrreeieeeeeeieiiieeceeeen. 42
FY 2021 WATER SERVICES ENTERPRISE FUND BUDGET ......cccoovviieniiiriiiennr e, 44
SALARY/WAGE LIST ....iiiiiiiiieiirtreitesiteestee e s sseeessessseessesssesseeseesnseensesonsesssssseeseeesons 46



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

FINANCIAL & PROPOSITION 2% TERMS

Chapter 59, section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws is commonly referred to as Proposition
2%z (Prop. 2}%) or the Tax Limiting Law for Cities and Towns in Massachusetts.

LEVY: The property tax levy is the revenue a Town can raise through real and personal property
taxes. The property tax levy is the largest source of revenue for the Town.

LEVY CEILING: This is the maximum the levy can be. The ceiling equals 2.5% of the Town’s
full and fair cash value. The levy limit is equivalent to a tax rate of $25.00.

LEVY LIMIT: The maximum the levy can be in a given year. The limit is based on the previous
year’s levy limit plus certain allowable increases, such as debt exclusions.

LEVY LIMIT INCREASE: The levy limit automatically increases each year by 2.5% of the
previous year’s levy limit.

NEW GROWTH: New construction and new parcel subdivision may also increase the Town’s
levy limit.

OVERRIDE: A community can permanently increase its levy limit by successfully voting at a
referendum to exceed the limits. A community may take this action as long as it is below the levy
ceiling.

DEBT EXCLUSION: This type of override ballot question can be placed on a referendum by a
two- thirds vote of the Selectboard. If a majority of the voters approve the ballot question, the
Town’s levy limit is increased only for the amount voted at the referendum for the life of that debt
only. The levy limit increase may exceed the Town’s levy ceiling.

DEBT SERVICE: The repayment cost, usually stated in annual terms and based on an
amortization schedule, of the principal and interest owed on any particular bond issue.

ENCUMBRANCE: A reservation of funds to cover obligations chargeable to but not yet paid
from a specific appropriation account.

CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES EXCLUSION: This type of override ballot question
can be placed on a referendum by a two-thirds vote of the Selectboard. If a majority of the voters
approve the ballot question, the additional amount for the payment of the capital project cost is
added to the levy limit or levy ceiling only for the year in which the project is being undertaken.

CONTINGENT VOTES: Chapter 59, section 21C (m) permits a Town Meeting to appropriate
funds contingent upon passage of a referendum question (OVERRIDE/DEBT EXCLUSION). A
contingent vote does not automatically result in an override referendum. An override referendum
can only be called by the Selectboard. If a referendum is called by the Selectmen, it must take place
within forty-five days of the Town Meeting vote.




DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

TOWN MEETING PROCEDURES

A quorum of 6% of the Town's registered voters must be present in order to conduct business.
(Charter: Sect. 2-1-3)

Voters are identified by voter cards, issued when they check in with the registrars at the beginning
of the meeting.

Only voters may participate in voice votes. In case of a counted vote, voters will be identified by
their voter cards.

Non-voters who have been admitted to the meeting must sit in the section designated for them.
Nonvoters who may wish to speak must identify themselves and may address the meeting only by
permission of the Moderator. (Charter: Sect. 2-1-2).

No voter will be allowed to speak until recognized by the Moderator.

Voters may only speak twice to any motion or amendment unless authorized by the Moderator.
The provisions of this clause shall not apply to a) the person making the motion under an Article,
and b) those persons required to be in attendance under the provisions of Charter Section 2-7-5.
(Charter: Sect. 2-7-8).

All motions, including all amendments, must be in writing and be legible. Exceptions for very
simple motions or amendments are at the discretion of the Moderator. (General Bylaws: Sect. II-
2)

Zoning Bylaws 2/3 majority
To incur debt 2/3 majority
To transfer or sell Town land 2/3 majority
To approve charter amendments 2/3 majority

To pay unpaid bills of a prior fiscal year 4/5 majority at an Annual Town Meeting

9/10 majority at a Special Town Meeting

The order of consideration of the Articles as printed in the Warrant may be changed only by a two-
thirds vote. (Charter: Sect. 2-7-4)

Some other common motions which require more than a simple majority to pass:

A motion to reconsider must be made at the same session as the vote it seeks to reconsider. It can only
be made after some intervening business and must be made within one hour of the vote to be
reconsidered. It is debatable to the same extent as the motion it seeks to reconsider, and it requires a
majority vote. (Charter: Sect. 2-7-9).



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

FINANCE COMMITTEE STATEMENT

A Statement to the Voters from the Wellfleet Finance Committee

To the voters and citizens of the Town of Wellfleet:

The Finance Committee (FinCom) is an advisory board to the Selectboard, the Town
Administrator and Town Meeting on financial matters of concern to the voters of the Town of
Wellfleet.

These include major capital, staffing and operational outlays for the town’s departments as well
as the financial impact of large projects like harbor dredging, water/wastewater management and
affordable housing,.

In 2020, the FinCom has also become more focused on understanding the potential financial
consequences to the town of the COVID-19, based on whether the pandemic lasts for a year or
two or becomes a longer-term phenomenon that affects the financial profile of the town.

The Finance Committee is a volunteer committee of Wellfleet residents. The committee meets
monthly (or more often as necessary) throughout the year to review budgets and issues that have
financial implications for the town.

The FinCom makes its budget recommendations (pro and con) by casting votes at open
meetings. Its opinions are made available in the Warrant at Town Meeting alongside those of the
Selectboard and other appropriate boards.

On the occasions where its financial recommendations differ from those of the Selectboard, the
FinCom is always prepared to explain its reasoning in response to questions from the voters.

We continue to work with the Selectboard and the Town Administrator to keep budgets
transparent and understandable for the citizens of Wellfleet. Members of the public are
encouraged to attend our meetings.

Respectfully submitted,

Fred Magee, Chair

Kathy Granlund, Linda Pellegrino, Stephen Polowczyk, Jenn Rhodes, Sarah Robin, Jeff Tash,
Robert Wallace, Ira Wood



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT
Saturday June 5, 2021

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

To either of the Constables in the Town of Wellfleet in the County of Barnstable:
GREETINGS:

In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts you are hereby required to notify and warn
the inhabitants of the Town of Wellfleet qualified to vote in Town Affairs, to meet in the
WELLFLEET ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 100 LAWRENCE ROAD in Wellfleet on the 5% day
of June 2021, at ten o’clock in the morning, then and there to vote upon the following Articles:



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Article # _Page # Description
1 8 Operating Budget
2 8 FY 21 Capital Budget
3 15 Marina Enterprise
4 15 Water Enterprise
5 15 CIP Nauset School Renovations
6 16 Wellfleet Employee Association
7 16 Non-union & Other Personnel
8 16 Fire Dept Staff- Override
9 17 Fire Dept Training
10 17 Water System Upgrade
11 18 CPC-Housekeeping
12 18 CPC- Rental Assistance Program
13 18 CPC- Housing Buy Down Program
14 19 CPC- Housing Institute 2020
15 19 CPC- Museum Phase 2 Historic Restoration
16 20 CPC- Cemetery Restoration Phase 3
17 20 Climate Change matching grant funds
Finance Articles Consent Agenda
18 21 Chapter 90 Funds
19 21 OPEB-Town
20 21 Marina Ent Stabilization
21 22 Cable Access Television
22 22 Shellfish Revolving Fund
Other Articles — Bylaw Amendments
23 22 Petitional article - Bylaw Amendment - plastic bottle ban
24 23 Bylaw Amendment — change town meeting start time
25 24 Petitioned article - Bylaw Amendment — Climate Policy
Other Articles — Disposition of Town Owned Land
26 24 Disposition of Town-owned property-Map 14, parcel 30
27 25 Disposition of Town-owned property-Map 20, parcels 11, 12 and 16
28 25 Disposition of Town-owned property-Map 35-1, parcels 201, 209 and
210
29 25 Authorize of Easement - Water Line Easement for 925 Chequessett Neck
Rd
Unclassified Articles
30 26 High Toss Road
31 26 Municipal Affordable Housing Trust
32 27 Petitioned article - Resolution to Change the State Flag/Seal of
Massachusetts
Other Articles - Consent Agenda
33 28 Dispose of Personal Property
34 28 Town Collector
35 29 DEP Liability
36 29 Nauset local contributions
Closing Articles
37 29 Closing Articles



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

38 29 Closing Articles




DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

SECTION I: BUDGET ARTICLES
ARTICLE 1: FY 2022 Operating Budget. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
and/or transfer from available funds such sums of money necessary to fund the Fiscal Year 2022
Town Operating Budget and fix the salaries and compensation of all elected officers (appendix
E) of the Town for Fiscal Year 2022 or do or act anything thereon.
(Requested by the Selectboard)

Selectboard: Recommends
Finance Committee: Recommends

Shellfish Dept and Shellfish Propagation were both recommended

SUMMARY: This Article requests approval of the Fiscal Year 2022 Operating Budget
(See Appendix A) This Article also sets the salaries of elected officials (appendix E) as
per the budget and approves the budgets of the two regional school districts.

ARTICLE 2: FY 2021 Budget Transfers To see if the Town will vote to transfer from
available funds and/or authorize the transfer from various line items within FY 2021
appropriations such sums of money necessary to supplement the operating of the various Town
Departments; or to do or act anything thereon.
Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 0-0

*Insert spreadsheet Appendix

SUMMARY: This article requests transfers and additional funding for the FY 2021 operating
budget ending June 30, 2021. Additional requests may be added at Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 3: FY 2022 Capital Budget. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
and/or transfer from available funds such sums of money necessary to fund the Fiscal Year 2022
Town Capital Budget (Appendix B), and that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer,
with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow for those purposes
itemized in said Appendix B as being funded through borrowing under and pursuant to M.G.L.
Chapter 44, Sections 7 and 8, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, to issue bonds or notes
of the Town therefor, and further, to authorize any premium received by the Town upon the sale
of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of
the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, to be applied to the payment of costs approved
hereunder in accordance with M.G.L. c. 40, §20, thereby reducing by a like amount the amount
authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs, or to do or act anything thereon.

(Requested by the Selectboard)
Article 3A: FY 2022 Debt Service
Raise and appropriate or transfer from free cash the sum of $xxxx to fund the FY 2022 debt service

budget as listed in appendix B, the Capital Budget, or to do or act anything thereon.

10



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Selectboard: Recommends 0-0.

Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0.

SUMMARY: This article requests town meeting voters authorize the payment of
$XXXX in debt service for the FY 2022
fiscal year.

Article 3B: Replace two Police Cruisers

To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds
or borrow to the sum of $100,000 for the purchase of two replacement cruisers for the Police
Department, and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this
appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized
to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling
authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall
be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the
amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the
limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2%4). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds
or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of
issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in
accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay
such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article funds the replacement of two police cruisers in poor condition.
Both are becoming significantly more expensive to maintain and frequently are out of
service compromising the department’s emergency response capabilities.

Effect on Property Taxes: It is expected that these funds would be borrowed as a debt
exclusion. The cost of $100,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $1.1
cents to the tax rate in the first year and would cost the owner of a median priced
($538,524) single-family home $5.81.

Article 3C: Replace Fire & Rescue Command Car 81

To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow to
the sum of $58,000 to replace the Fire and Rescue Command Car 81, and costs related thereto.
And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be
and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant
to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided,

11



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall
have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued
pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2%:). Any premium
received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied
to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of
costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount
authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation
thereto.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to replace the Fire & Rescue Command
Car 81. Command Car 81 is a 2013 Tahoe with significant rust and corrosion of its
undercarriage.

Effect on Property Taxes: It is expected that these funds would be borrowed as a debt
exclusion. The cost of $55,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.6

cents to the tax rate in the first year and would cost the owner of a median priced
($538,524) single-family home $3.20.

Article 3D: Public Works-Replace Guard Shack and Build Canopy Extension at Transfer
Station

To see if the town will Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow $55,000 to
replace the Guard Shack and extend the canopy at the Transfer Station, and costs related thereto.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to replace the Guard Shack and extend
the canopy at the Transfer Station.

Effect on Property Taxes: It is expected that these funds would be borrowed as a debt
exclusion. The cost of $55,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.6
cents to the tax rate in the first year and would cost the owner of a median priced
($538,524) single-family home $3.20.

12



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Article 3E: Portable Radio Replacements (12 Mobile / 32 Portable) To see if the town will
Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow $85,000 for the purchase of portable
radio replacements for the Fire Department, and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything
thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the
Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c.
44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town
therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and
until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds
or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2'%). Any
premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such
premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied
to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby
reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any
other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required

Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase portable radio replacements for the
Fire Department.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$85,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.008 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $4.76.

Article 3F: Emergency Response Vessel Replacement To see if the town will Raise and
appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $290,000 for the purchase of an
emergency response vehicle for the Marina Department, and costs related thereto; or to do or act
anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the
Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c.
44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town
therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and
until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds
or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2%). Any
premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such
premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied
to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby
reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any
other action in relation thereto.

13



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase a replacement emergency response
vehicle for the Marina Department.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$250,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.022 to the tax rate in the first
year and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $12.07.

Article 3G: All-Terrain Forklift To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate, transfer
from available funds or borrow borrow the sum of $60,000 for the purchase of an all-terrain forklift
for the Marina Department, and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to
meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is
authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other
enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no
sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to
exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this
vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2}4). Any premium received upon the sale
of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the
costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this
vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed
to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase an all-terrain forklift for the Marina
Department.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$60,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.006 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $3.55.

Article 3H: Public Works-Duck Creek Revetment Engineering
To see if the town will Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow $50,000 for
the Duck Creek Revetment Engineering project, and costs related thereto. And that to meet this

14



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized
to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling
authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall
be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the
amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the
limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2}2). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds
or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of
issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in
accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay
such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: Article 3H request authorization for the Duck Creek Revetment
Engineering project.

Effect on Property Taxes: It is expected that these funds would be borrowed as a debt
exclusion. The cost of $50,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.5
cents to the tax rate in the first year and would cost the owner of a median priced
($538,524) single-family home $2.91.

Article 3I: Replacement % ton Pick-up Truck & Plow To see if the Town will vote to Raise and
appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $60,000 for the purchase of a
replacement % ton pick-up truck and plow for the Department of Public Works, and costs related
thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer,
with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and
pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or
notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended
hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt
service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C
(Proposition 272). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this
vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes,
may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44,
§20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount.
Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:

15



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase a replacement for a 2003 % ton
pick-up truck and plow package for the Department of Public Works.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$60,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.006 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $3.55.

Article 3J: Transfer Station Roll-Off Truck Replacement To see if the Town will vote to Raise
and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum borrow the sum of $240,000 for
the purchase of a replacement transfer station roll-off truck for the Department of Public Works,
and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the
Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said
amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and
to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed
or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts
necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of
M.G.L. ¢. 59, §21C (Proposition 2}2). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes
approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of
such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance
with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs
by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase a replacement transfer station roll-
off truck for the Department of Public Works.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$240,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.022 to the tax rate in the first
year and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $12.02.

Article 3K: Public Works-Replace Guard Shack and Build Canopy Extension at Transfer
Station To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or
borrow the sum borrow the sum borrow the sum of $55,000 for the purchase of a replacement
transfer station guard shack and new canopy extension for the Department of Public Works, and
costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town
Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount
under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue

16



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or
expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary
to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢
- 59, §21C (Proposition 22). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved
by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds
or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L.
c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like
amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to replace the Guard Shack and extend
the canopy at the Transfer Station.

Effect on Property Taxes: It is expected that these funds would be borrowed as a debt
exclusion. The cost of $55,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.6
cents to the tax rate in the first year and would cost the owner of a median priced
($538,524) single-family home $3.20.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$15,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $ to the tax rate in the first year and
would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $.

Article 3L: Public Works Substation Roof Replacement, old S. Wellfleet Fire Station To see
if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow to the sum
of $15,000 for the purchase of a replacement substation roof for the Department of Public Works,
and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the
Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said
amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and
to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed
or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts
necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of
M.G.L. ¢. 59, §21C (Proposition 2}4). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes
approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of
such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance
with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs
by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

17



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase of a replacement substation
otherwise known as the old South Wellfleet Fire Station roof for the Department of Public
Works.

Article 3M: Keller’s Corner Revetment To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate,
transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $50,000 for the purchase of engineering
services of a revetment for Keller’s Corner for the Department of Public Works, and costs related
thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer,
with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and
pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or
notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended
hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt
service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C
(Proposition 25). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this
vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes,
may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44,
§20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount.
Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization for the engineering of a revetment for Keller’s
Comner for the Department of Public Works.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$50,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.004 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $2.41.

Article 3N: Mayo Creek Revetment & Engineering To see if the Town will vote to Raise and
appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $50,000 for the purchase of
engineering services of a revetment for Mayo Creek for the Department of Public Works, and costs
related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town
Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount
under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue
bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or
expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary
to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢
. 59, §21C (Proposition 2'2). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved

18



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds
or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L.
C. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like
amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase engineering services for replacing
the revetment at Mayo Creek.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$50,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.004 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $2.41.

Article 30: Repair and Resurface Mayo Beach Basketball Court To see if the Town will
vote Raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $12,750 to repair
and resurface the Mayo Beach Basketball Court, and costs related thereto; or to do or act
anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of
the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L.
c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town
therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and
until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any
bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition
2'%). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any
such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be
applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20,
thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to
take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to fund repair and resurfacing the Mayo Beach
Basketball Court.

19



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$12,750 would be borrowed over five years and would add $XX to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $XX.

Article 3P: Replacement of Backstops at Baker’s Field To see if the Town will Raise and
appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $35,000 to replace the backstops
at Baker’s Field, and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this
appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is
authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any
other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however
that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have
voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued
pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2'2). Any premium
received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium
applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the
payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing
the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other
action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to fund the replace of the backstops at Baker’s
Field which are in disrepair.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$35,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $XX to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $XX.

Article 3Q: Replace Bandstand Awning To see if the Town will vote to Raise and appropriate,
transfer from available funds or borrow to the sum of $25,175 to replace the bandstand awning,
and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the
Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said
amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and
to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed
or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts
necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits
of M.G.L. ¢. 59, §21C (Proposition 2%4). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or
notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of
issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in
accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to
pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation thereto.

20



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to fund the replacement of the bandstand
awning.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$25,750 would be borrowed over five years and would add $XX to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $XX.

ARTICLE 4: FY 2022 Marina Enterprise Budget. To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate and/or transfer from available funds such sums of money necessary to fund the Fiscal
Year 2022 Marina Enterprise Fund Budget or do or act anything thereon.
Majority vote required.
(Requested by the Selectboard)
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

Finance Committee: Recommends 0-0.

SUMMARY: This Article requests approval of the Fiscal Year 2022 Marina Services
Enterprise Fund Budget. (See Appendix C)

ARTICLE 5: FY 2022 Water Enterprise Budget. To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate and/or transfer from available funds such sums of money necessary to fund the
Fiscal Year 2022 Water Enterprise Fund Budget or do or act anything thereon.
Majority vote required.
(Requested by the Selectboard)
Selectboard:

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This Article requests approval of the FY2022 Water Enterprise Fund
Budget. (See Appendix D)

ARTICLE 6: Prior Year Invoices. To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate or transfer from available funds for the purpose of paying prior year unpaid bills; or
to take any other action relative thereto.

4/5 Vote Required

21



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

ARTICLE 7: Wellfleet Police Officer‘s Union Contract To see if the Town will vote to raise
and appropriate funds in an amount of money sufficient to fund a one-year extension on the
collective bargaining agreement between the Town of Wellfleet and the Wellfleet Police Officers
Union beginning July 1, 2021; or to do or act anything thereon.

Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: Town Meeting approval is required to fund the 1% year of a collective bargaining
agreement.

ARTICLE 8: Non-Union and Other Personnel Salaries & Compensation. To see if the Town
will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from available funds such sums of money
sufficient to fund the first year of the collective bargaining agreement to fund wage and salary
for non-union and other personnel beginning July 1, 2021 or do or act anything thereon.
Majority vote required.
(Requested by the Selectboard)
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee: Reserve recommendation until town meeting.

SUMMARY: This appropriation funds wage and salary adjustments for non-union and
other personnel.

ARTICLE 9: Additional Fire Department Positions — To see if the Town will vote to raise
and appropriate and/or transfer from any available source of funds $168,080, or any other sum
for the purpose of funding two new Firefighter/EMT/Paramedic positions; provided, however
that no sums shall be expended hereunder unless and until the Town have voted to assess an
additional $168,000 in real estate and personal property taxes pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 %4), or do or act
anything thereon.

Majority vote required

(Requested by the Selectboard
and the Fire Chief)
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends 9-0

SUMMARY: This article would fund the cost of adding two additional Firefighter/

22



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

EMT/Paramedics. Funding, if approved would be through a Proposition 2 % override.
Costs for each position include starting salary of each position ($62,240), uniforms and
protective clothing ($2,000), holiday and call back costs ($7,000) and an estimate of
benefits and training costs ($12,800). The total payroll, with estimated benefits and
training costs of one position is $84,040.

Effect on Property Taxes: The cost of $168,080 would add s.s cents to the tax rate and
would cost the owner of a median priced ($xxx,xxx) single-family home $ss.ss.

Article 10: Funding for Paramedic Training Program: To see if the Town will vote to
appropriate and/or transfer from Ambulance Fund the sum of $10,000, or any other sum, for the
purpose of creating and funding a paramedic training fund to pay for paramedic training for
current or future Wellfleet Fire and Rescue staff or do or act anything thereon.

Majority vote required

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends xxxxxx

SUMMARY: This article would fund a paramedic training program for the Wellfleet
Fire and Rescue Department with the intent to improve recruiting and retention for the
Department. Paramedics who leave the department within two (2) full years of
employment would be required to reimburse the Town for the full cost. Paramedics who
left the department in their third (3 rd) year would be required to reimburse 2/3 of the cost
and those who left in their fourth (4 th) year would be required to reimburse the Town for
1/3 of the costs.

Article 11: Funding Additional Officer: To sec if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
and/or transfer from available funds the sum of $58,369 or any other sum, for the purpose of
creating and funding a Full Time Academy trained police officer.

Majority Vote Require

Selectboard Recommends; 5-0
Finance Committee:

Summary: This article would fund a full-time academy trained police officer with the upcoming

phasing out of the Massachusetts Reserve Program, this could result in the loss of 6-8 reserve
officer positions within the department.

23



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

ARTICLE 12: Wastewater Commercial Street PRB.

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money, not to exceed $450,000 to install a pilot
bulkhead Permeable Reactive Barrier at 117 & 111 East Commercial Street, Assessor’s Map 15
Parcels 106 & 107, for the payment of all other costs incidental and related thereto, and that to meet
this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen be and hereby is
authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 8 of the General Laws,
or pursuant to any other enabling authority including the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement
Trust, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefore; provided, however that no sums shall be
borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts
necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 %) or take any other
action in relation thereto.

Summary: Duck Creek is one of the most significantly impaired embayment in Wellfleet. As such, it
is challenging to meet the nitrogen reduction targets required for this water body. A permeable
reactive barrier is a barrier that intercepts groundwater and removes most of the nitrogen in it.
Several other Cape Cod towns are using PRBs as a means to address nitrogen loading in their water
bodies. This pilot project to collect data on how they perform in Wellfleet. This will also install a
bulkhead to protect the parking lots at this location and remove the rubble and the pile of pavement
currently being used at this location. $100,000 of this total will be for a hydrogeologic investigation
of the flow of water and groundwater quality. $350,000 will be used for the design, construction, and
monitoring needed to quantify the nitrogen reduction. This authorization would enable to Town to
seek grant sources, SRF financing, Cape Cod Water Protection Funds, Section 319 Federal
grants, Massworks, USDA, EPA, DEP, and other sources of support that cannot be applied for
without a Town commitment.

ARTICLE 13: Wastewater Department & Project Management

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a $200,000 or any other sum, to fund a
Water/Wastewater Director, a Grant Writer, ongoing monitoring, testing & compliance,
provided, however, that no sums shall be expended hereunder unless and until the Town have
voted to assess an additional $200,000 in real estate and personal property taxes pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 12); or
to do or act anything thereon.

Summary: This asks the Town to fund a Water/Wastewater Director position, a grant writer, and
ongoing monitoring, testing, and compliance. This authorization would enable the Town to
operate and manage a department that would oversee water, wastewater operations and facilities.
Having a grant writer on staff will enhance the Town’s ability to offset project costs through
grant funding.

24



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

ARTICLE 14: Wastewater Shellfish Propagation & Rotating Closures

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a $80,000 or any other sum, to fund
additional Shellfish Propagation and a pilot rotating shellfish closure program, provided,
however, that no sums shall be expended hereunder unless and until the Town have voted to
assess an additional $80,000 in real estate and personal property taxes pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 12); or to do or
act anything thereon.

Summary: This is asking for $40,000 a year to fund additional cultch and seed and $40,000 a
year for monitoring of three-year no harvest rotating closures zones of shellfish beds within the
Town.

ARTICLE 15: Wastewater Septic System Upgrade Subsidy

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money, not to exceed $3,750,000 to subsidy the
upgrading of pre-existing septic systems to high-performance enhanced Innovative & Alternative
(I&A) Septic Systems, for the payment of all other costs incidental and related thereto, and that to
meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen be and hereby is
authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 8 of the General Laws,
or pursuant to any other enabling authority including the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement
Trust, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefore; provided, however that no sums shall be
borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts
necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 %) or take any other
action in relation thereto.

Summary: The Wastewater Planning Committee has proposed new regulations to the Board Health
requiring all new septic systems, replacements in the case of failure, and if a property is transferred
be upgraded to enhanced IA systems. Upgrading these systems to high-performance 1&A systems
will improve the groundwater quality and reduce the nutrient loading of Wellfleet Harbor. The Board
of Health is also planning on requiring the replacement of all remaining cesspools. The funding
asked for is a $12,500 subsidy to property owners to pay for the additional costs to upgrade to one of
these enhanced IA systems when their pre-existing system is required to be upgraded. This subsidy
will reduce the cost to a homeowner to install an enhanced IA system to approximately the same net
cost as installing a new Title V system. Wellfleet averages 60 septic system replacements per year.
This funding ask is for the expected cost to upgrade 60 systems a year over five years for a total of
300 systems. Upgrading septic systems will be a critical element in addressing the Town’s
wastewater needs. This authorization would enable to Town to seek grant sources, SRF financing,
Cape Cod Water Protection Funds, Section 319 Federal grants, Massworks, USDA, EPA, DEP,
and other sources of support that cannot be applied for without a Town commitment.

ARTICLE 16: Wastewater Septic System Responsible Management Entity

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a $100,000 or any other sum, to fund an
I&A Septic System Responsible Management Entity, provided, however, that no sums shall be

25



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

expended hereunder unless and until the Town has voted to assess an additional $100,000 in real
estate and personal property taxes pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the
Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 122); or to do or act anything thereon.

Summary: A responsible management entity (RME) is required to ensure that I&A systems are
well maintained and operating correctly as well as pre-existing conventional systems. A RME is
a public or private entity that will perform monitoring and septic system management that
otherwise might be charged to a property owner. [Better Summary needed]

ARTICLE 17: Wastewater Salt Marsh Restoration Hawes Pond Tidal Gate. To see if the
Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money, not to exceed $150,000 design and installation of
tidal control facilities at Hawes Pond for Salt Marsh Restoration, for the payment of all other costs
incidental and related thereto, and that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the
approval of the Selectmen be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to
Chapter 44, Section 8 of the General Laws, or pursuant to any other enabling authority including the
-Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefore;
provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town
shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued
pursuant to this vote from the limits of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws
(Proposition 2 %2) or take any other action in relation thereto.

SUMMARY: Hawes pond is a small saltwater pond and is the headwaters for Duck Creek. Up
until the last few years, there was an active eel run into the pond. The culvert for this pond is at
the intersection of Rt. 6 and Main Street. Mass DOT restricted the culvert to a one-directional
flow blocking saltwater from entering the system and is causing degradation of the pond, creek,
and surrounding marsh. Saltwater marshes are more effective in reducing the amount of nitrogen
in the water that flows through them. The degraded condition of Hawes Pond likely contributes
to the issues with nutrient loading found in the Duck Creek Watershed. Restoring two-directional
flow will improve the health of Hawes Pond and likely reduce the amount of nitrogen entering
Duck Creek. A tidal gate is a self-regulating control element that requires minimal long-term
maintenance or monitoring. This authorization would enable to the Town to seek grant sources,
SRF financing, Cape Cod Water Protection Funds, Section 319 Federal grants, Massworks,
USDA, EPA, DEP, and other sources of support that cannot be applied for without a Town
commitment.

ARTICLE 18: Wastewater Salt Marsh Restoration Mayo Creek Tidal Gate. To see if the
Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money, not to exceed $150,000 design and installation of
tidal control facilities at the Mayo Creek Causeway for Salt Marsh Restoration, for the payment of all
other costs incidental and related thereto, and that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer,
with the approval of the Selectmen be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and
pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 8 of the General Laws, or pursuant to any other enabling authority
including the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust, and to issue bonds or notes of the

26



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Town therefore; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless
and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any
bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the
Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 %4) or take any other action in relation thereto.

SUMMARY: Mayo creek is a 20+ acre degraded former salt marsh. The causeway between it
and the harbor mooring basin is due to be reconstructed. An article for the engineering of the
reconstruction appears elsewhere on this warrant. The Mayo Creek Restoration Committee
extensively studied the potential of restoring the salt marsh and issued their final report
recommending a partial tidal restoration with a tide gate controlling the amount of saltwater
flowing into the system. Restoring function to this salt marsh will reduce the amount of nitrogen
entering the harbor from the creek. Installing a tide gate with an outlet larger than the pre-
existing culvert will also allow for faster outflows from the marsh in the case of significant rain
events which cause flooding of surrounding properties. Studies have also concluded that
allowing for increased tidal flow will likely reduce the build-up of black custard in the inner
mooring basin. This authorization would enable to the Town to seek grant sources, SRF
financing, Cape Cod Water Protection Funds, Section 319 Federal grants, Massworks, USDA,
EPA, DEP, and other sources of support that cannot be applied for without a Town commitment.

ARTICLE 19: Wastewater 95 Lawrence Rd Cluster Wastewater Treatment Facility. To see
if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money, not to exceed $1,931,886 for the purpose of,
designing, permitting, and constructing of wastewater facilities in conjunction with an Affordable
Housing Project at 95 Lawrence Road, including connecting nearby Town buildings in Phase I, and
for the payment of all other costs incidental and related thereto, and that to meet this appropriation
the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen be and hereby is authorized to borrow said
amount under and pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 8 of the General Laws, or pursuant to any other
enabling authority including the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust, and to issue bonds
or notes of the Town therefore; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended
hereunder unless and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt
service on any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of Chapter 59, Section 21C
of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 ') or take any other action in relation thereto.

SUMMARY: The Town is contractually obligated as part of the 95 Lawernce Rd
Housing Project’s RFP to provide part of the costs for advanced wastewater treatment
facilities located at this site. The plan is to install a cluster system servicing both the
housing project and the surrounding town building in the Wellfleet Elementary School,
the Police Station, and Fire Station in Phase I. Connecting these town-owned buildings
will result in a net improvement of water quality in the neighborhood even after
accounting for the housing project. Phase II is planned to connect a number of the
surrounding properties to this system which will cost significantly less money than
individual septic system upgrades, a centralized sewer system, or any other means
evaluated. This project will result in a net reduction of groundwater pollution and nutrient
loading in the Duck Creek Watershed. This authorization would enable to Town to seek
grant sources, SRF financing, Cape Cod Water Protection Funds, Section 319 Federal

27



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

grants, Massworks, USDA, EPA, DEP, and other sources of support that cannot be
applied for without a Town commitment.

ARTICLE 20: Wastewater 95 Lawrence Rd Cluster Wastewater Treatment Facility
Operating and Maintenance Costs

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a $52,746 or any other sum, to fund the
ongoing operating and maintenance costs of the 95, Lawrence Rd Wastewater Treatment
Facility, provided, however that no sums shall be expended hereunder unless and until the Town
have voted to assess an additional $52,746 in real estate and personal property taxes pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2
1/2); or to do or act anything thereon.

Summary: This will fund the expected ongoing costs of the proposed wastewater treatment
facility servicing the 95 Lawrence Rd Housing Project and the surrounding town buildings.

ARTICLE 21: Community Preservation — Administrative Expenses, Debt Service, and

Allocation of Reserves
To see if the Town will vote to hear and act on the report of the Community Preservation
Committee on the Fiscal Year 2022 Community Preservation budget and to appropriate from the
Community Preservation Fund estimated annual revenues a sum of $34,815.75 to meet the
administrative expenses and all other necessary and proper expenses of the Community
Preservation Committee for Fiscal Year 2022; and further to appropriate from Community
Preservation Fund estimated revenues a sum of $30,450.00 for open space debt service; a sum of
$39,181.50 reserve for open space; a sum of $69,631.50 to reserve to for community housing;
and further to reserve for future appropriation a sum of $69,631.50 for historic resources as
recommended by the Community Preservation Committee, as well as a sum of $452,604.75 to be
placed in the 2022 Budgeted Reserve for general Community Preservation Act purposes, or do or
act anything thereon.

(Requested by the Community Preservation Committee)

Board of Selectmen: 5-0
Finance Committee: Recommends
Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0

SUMMARY: This is an annual CPC housekeeping article. Out of a total projected revenue
figure of $696,315.00 for Fiscal Year 2022, $34,815.75 is the 5% of estimated for administrative
expenses, as provided by the Community Preservation Act. Open Space’s 10% is allocated as
the funding source for Land Bank debt service in the capital budget. There is a remainder of
$39,181.50 to be placed in an Open Space Reserve after debt service has been met. This is the

28



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

last year that Community Preservation funds are needed for Open Space debt service.
Community Housing’s 10%, and Historic Resources’ 10% are reserved respectively for housing
and historic preservation purposes. The balance of $452,604.75 is reserved for approved CPA
projects in any category including Recreation.

ARTICLE 22: Community Preservation — Affordable Housing Trust $500,000

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to MGL ¢.44B, to appropriate $54,632.00 from the

Community Preservation Fund budgeted housing reserve and $445,368.00 from projected Fiscal

Year 2022 revenues for a total of $500,000.00 to contribute to the cost of, and thereby support,

for building the financial capacity of Affordable Housing Trust, or do or act anything thereon.
(Requested by the Community Preservation Committee)

Board of Selectmen: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee: Recommends

Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0
Affordable Housing Authority: Recommends

Housing Partnership: Recommends

SUMMARY: The Community Preservation Act allows communities to allocate funds to the
Affordable Housing Trust. This offers the Affordable Housing Committee a way to respond in a
timely manner to appropriate market opportunities for land acquisition, building purchase,
essential maintenance needs and other allowed activities.

ARTICLE 23: Community Preservation — Veterans Home $15,000

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to MGL c.44B, to appropriate from the Community

Preservation Fund Fiscal Year 2022 housing reserve, the sum of $15,00.00 to contribute to the

cost of the Veterans Home in Dennis, offering supportive housing to homeless veterans from the

Cape and Islands Veterans Outreach Center and to authorize the Selectboard to enter into a grant

agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or do or act anything thereon.

(Requested by the Community Preservation

Committee)

Board of Selectmen: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee: Recommends

Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0
Affordable Housing Authority:

Local Housing Partnership:

SUMMARY: The five-bedroom home in Dennis, located at 1341 Route 134, will provide
temporary housing, counseling, case management, monitoring by a registered nurse, employment

29



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

training, and financial and nutritional counseling for veterans to help empower them to move
forward into their own independent and sustainable living situations. The facility will be open to
veterans from all Cape towns. It is the nearest housing available for Wellfleet veterans, who
number 192, according to census data.

ARTICLE 24;: Community Preservation — Lower Cape Housing Institute $7,5001

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to MGL c¢.44B, to appropriate from the Community

Preservation Undesignated Fund Balance the sum of $7,500.00 to contribute to the cost of, and

thereby support, for the continuance of the Community Development Partnership sponsored

Lower Cape Housing Institute in Fiscal Year 2022 and to authorize the Selectboard to enter into

a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof or do or act anything thereon.

(Requested by the Community Preservation

Committee)

Board of Selectmen: recommend 5-0

Finance Committee:

Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0
Housing Authority:

Local Housing Partnership:

SUMMARY: The Community Development Partnership (CDP) is offering the Lower Cape
Housing Institute for a fifth year. The CDP seeks contributions from the eight participating
towns towards the costs of continued training and technical assistance to develop better
understanding of Community Housing needs and to support the town in meeting its housing
production goals. Sessions are free to Town officials and other interested parties.

ARTICLE 25: Community Preservation — Ephemeral Historical Artifacts $12,000

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to MGL ¢.44B, to appropriate from the Community
Preservation Fund Fiscal Year 2022 historical reserve, the sum of $12,000.00 to the Wellfleet
Historical Society & Museum for the purpose of the preservation and storage of museum
artifacts and to authorize the Selectboard to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms
and conditions thereof or do or act anything thereon.

(Requested by the Community Preservation Committee)

Board of Selectmen: Recommends
Finance Committee: Recommends
Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0

SUMMARY:

Sensitive materials such as old maps, textiles, paintings, documents on paper, photographs,
postcards and prints require specific types of storage, including consistent humidity and
temperature levels, and acid free containment. The Historical Society & Museum project would

30



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

provide a designated storage area to protect the donations that have been entrusted to their care
and add security cameras to critical areas in the museum.

ARTICLE 26: Community Preservation — Stage for Baker’s Field Pavilion $17,450

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to MGL ¢.44B, to appropriate from the Community
Preservation Undesignated Fund Balance the sum of $17,450.00 for the purchase of a stage for
the Baker’s Field Pavilion, and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and
conditions thereof, or to do or act anything thereon.
(Requested by the Community Preservation
Committee)

Board of Selectmen: Recommends
Finance Committee: Recommends
Community Preservation Committee: Recommends 7-0

SUMMARY: An upgraded stage system will increase the types of events offered at Baker’s
Field Pavilion and enable the Recreation Department to offer popular programing into the
shoulder seasons. The proposed stage is for a durable 12°x16°x24-48" all terrain structure
appropriate to the setting and easily stored and set up as needed.

ARTICLE 27: Chapter 90 Funds; To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectboard to
apply for and accept State Grants from the Massachusetts Department of Transportation
Highway Division (Chapter 90), and to expend those funds for the purposes of state approved
Chapter 90 projects, services, and purchases; or to do or act anything thereon.
Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This Article requests approval to give the Selectboard authority in which to,
apply for, accept, and expend funds from Chapter 90 sources.

ARTICLE 28: Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) Appropriation. To see if the
town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds the sum of xxxx or, any
other sum, to be added to the Town’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability Trust Fund or
do or act anything thereon.

ARTICLE 29: PEG Access and Cable Related Fund To see if the town will vote to accept the
provisions of G.L. Chapter 44 Section 53F % for the purpose of establishing a PEG Access and

31



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Cable Related Fund. And further to appropriate from the PEG Access and Cable Related Fund;
or to do or act anything thereon.

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from the Cable Franchise Fee Special Revenue Fund
the sum of ONE HUNDRED THIRTY FIVE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY
DOLLARS ($135,370) for the purpose of offsetting costs for Fiscal Year 2022 associated with
cable-related purposes including but not limited to support of public, educational or
govemmental access cable television services, monitor compliance of the cable operator with the
franchise agreement, or prepare for renewal of the franchise license; or to do or act anything
thereon.

Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This Article requests approval to appropriate from the Cable Franchise Fee
Special Revenue Fund.

ARTICLE 30: Shellfish Revolving Fund Spending Limit.
To see if the Town will vote to establish a spending limit for FY2022 of $50,000 for the
Shellfish Revolving Fund established pursuant to MGL Chapter 44, Section 53EY.

Majority vote required.

Selectboard recommends: 5-0
Finance Committee:

Shellfish Advisory Board:

SUMMARY: The purpose of this article is to establish the spending limit for the
Shellfish Revolving Fund which was established for propagation efforts. The Shellfish
Department’s propagation efforts include the seeding of quahogs and oysters in all
Wellfleet waterways which also contributes to improving water quality and natural oyster
set in our harbor to benefit growers and spat collectors. This revolving fund takes the
responsibility for funding the shellfish department’s budget line 180 out of the taxpayer’s
pockets and puts it in the hands of those who make their living in the shellfish industry
and those who harvest shellfish recreationally. The Shellfish Propagation Revolving Fund
revenues will be derived from shellfish grant revenue and permit fees. The Revolving
Fund expenditures may be used for the propagation, cultivation, protection and study of
shellfish only.

32



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Article 31: Property Sale Tax Transfer (Selectboard Member Wilson)

SECTION : DISPOSITION OF TOWN PROPERTY ARTICLES

ARTICLE 32: Disposition of Town Land

To see if the Town will vote to transfer care, custody, management and control of Assessors Map
30, Parcel 14 Town owned property from the board or commission currently having custody
thereof and from the purpose for which said property is currently held, to the Selectboard for the
purpose of selling upon such terms as the Selectboard deems to be in the best interest of the
Town. Two-thirds vote required.

Selectboard: Recommends withhold

Open Space Committee: Reserve recommendation until town meeting,
Planning Board: Recommends

Conservation Commission: Reserve recommendation until town meeting.
Natural Resources Advisory Board: Recommends.

SUMMARY: This 2.00 acre parcel of land is land-locked and abuts the Clemens-
Nowack and Nowack property.

SECTION VI: UNCLASSIFIED ARTICLES

ARTICLE 33: High Toss Road

To see if the Town will vote to accept as a town way the road known as High Toss Road,
between Pole Dike Road and Duck Harbor Road, as heretofore laid out by the Selectboard and
shown on a plan entitled “Plan of Land High Toss Road, Wellfleet, MA Being a 40’ Public Way
as Laid Out by the Town of Wellfleet,” dated April 6, 2020, prepared by Outermost Land
Survey, Inc., and on file with the Town Clerk, and to authorize the Selectboard to acquire on
behalf of the Town by gift, purchase, or eminent domain an easement to use High Toss Road, as
herein described, for all purposes for which public ways are used in the Town of Wellfleet, and
drainage, utility, access, and/or other easements related thereto, or do or act anything thereon.

Majority vote required.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.
Planning Board:

33



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

SUMMARY: This Article authorizes the Town to secure title to High Toss Road
between Pole Dike Road and Duck Harbor Road. The Town has maintained this
section of road for years, but does not have clear title to the land.

Warrant Articles approved by the selectboard in 2021.

ARTICLE 34: Open Space Article for 2021 Town Meeting

To see if the Town will vote to transfer care, custody, management and control two properties
shown on Assessor's Map 30, Parcel 186, Map 42, Parcel 137 for purposes of open space
conservation or to do or act anything thereon.

Map 30-Parcel 186 is a 2.06 acre wetlands marsh property in Blackfish Creek abutting
conservation lands owned by the Wellfleet Conservation Trust and Mass Audubon Society.
Map 42 — Parcel 137 is 3.26 acres of wetlands marsh in the Fresh Brook Estuary and abuts the
Town owned Bayberry Hill Conservation Land and Trail property off Lt. Island Road.

Selectboard Recommend 4-1
Open Space Committee

Natural Resource Advisory Board Black Custard Article

ARTICLE 35: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from
available funds the sum of $25,000, or any other sum, for the purpose of investigating and
recommending practical engineering methods to reduce the scope and expense of future north
channel harbor dredging or do or act anything thereon.

Board of Selectmen:

SUMMARY: This article secks funding for a study of Wellfleet's Marina to evaluate and
develop an engineering and permit plan to replace Marina north channel dredging with a natural
distribution of dredge spoils ("black custard") on to Duck Creek marshes.

(Request of the Natural Resources Advisory Board.)

Selectboard Recommends: 5-0

Article 36: Selectboard Member Curley Prevailing Wage Article

Petition to Exempt the Town of Wellfleet from Prevailing Wages on Small Projects.

To see if the Town will vote to petition the General Court to enact a special act of the Town of
Wellfleet, the text of which is set forth below, and that the General Court be authorized with the
approval of the Selectboard to make constructive changes in the text thereof as may be necessary
or advisable in order to accomplish the intent of this legislation to secure its passage, as follows:
AN ACT RELATIVE TO THE PREVAILING WAGE IN THE TOWN OF WELLFLEET

34



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in the General Court assembled, and
by the authority of the same as follows:

SECTION 1. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the town of Wellfleet
shall be exempt from complying with sections 26 through 27G of chapter 149 of the General
Laws for projects estimated to cost $50,000 or less.

SECTION 2. This act shall take effect on the first day of the fiscal year following passage of this
act and shall apply to taxes levied for fiscal years beginning that fiscal year and thereafter.

Or to take any other action relative thereto

Explanation: In the interest of reducing the costs borne by Wellfleet taxpayers this would exempt
construction projects with a total cost under $50,000 from prevailing wage determinations
reducing the overall costs of small projects within the town.,

Article 37: Agricultural Commission Right to Farm Chair DeVasto

To see if the Town will vote to establish an Agricultural Commission to address and
represent agricultural issues and interests in the Town of Wellfleet.

The duties and responsibilities of the Commission shall include, but not be limited to:
+ Serving as facilitators for encouraging the pursuit of agriculture and aquaculture in Wellfleet;
4+ Promoting agricultire and aquaculture-based economic opportunities for the Town;
+ Acting as mediators, advocates, educators, and/or negotiators in an advisory
capacity on farming issues for established Town Committees and Departments;

4+ Working for the preservation of agriculture lands owned by the town;

+ Pursuing all initiatives appropriate to creating a sustainable agriculture community.
Commission Organization: The Commission shall be comprised of five members, at
least three of whom shall be engaged in the business of farming or related agricultural
industries. The Selectboard shall appoint two members for a three year term; two
members for a term of two years, and three years thereafter, and one member for a
term of one year and three years thereafter. Up to three alternate members will also be
appointed by the Selectboard, each for one-year terms. Any vacancy shall be

filled by the Selectboard.

Selectboard
Planning Board
Shellfish advisory Board

Right to Farm

§ | Legislative purpose and intent.

§ 2 Definitions.

35



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

§ 3 Right to farm declaration.
§ 4 Disclosure notification

§ 5 Resolution of disputes.

§ 6 Severability clause.

§ 7 Relationship to existing Bylaws, rules, andregulations.

ol
—

Legislative purpose and intent.

A.
The purpose and intent of this bylaw is to state with emphasis the right to farm accorded to
all citizens of the commonwealth under Article 97 of the Constitution, and allstate statutes
and regulations thereunder, including but notlimited to MGL c. 40A, § 3, paragraph 1; MGL
c. 90,89, MGLc. 111, § 125A and MGL c. 128, § 1A. We the citizensof Wellfleet restate
and republish these rights pursuant to the Town's authority conferred by Article 89 of the
Articles of Amendment of the Massachusetts Constitution ("HomeRule Amendment™).

B.
This general bylaw encourages the pursuit of agriculture, promotes agriculture-based
economic opportunities, and protects farmlands. Withing the Town of Wellfleet by allowing
permitted agriculture uses and related activities to function with minimal conflict with abutters
and Town agencies. This bylaw shall apply to all jurisdictional arcas within the Town.

C.

This bylaw encourages the pursuit of homesteading in order to promote self-sufficiency and
food security. It further protects homestead farming within the Town of Wellfleet by allowing
agricultural uses and related activitiesto function with minimal conflict with abutters and Town
agencies. This bylaw shall apply to all jurisdictional areas within the Town.

36



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021

§2

Definitions.

A. The word "farm" shall include any parcel or contiguous parcels of land, or water bodies
used for the primary purpose of commercial agriculture, or accessory thereto.

B. The word “homestead” shall include any parcel or contiguous parcels of land where a
person and/or familycultivates the land and practices agriculture in order to become more
self-sufficient.

C. The words “farming,” “agriculture,”" “homesteading” ortheir derivatives shall include, but
not be limited to, thefollowing:

1) Farming of any kind including the cultivation and tillage of the soil and aquaculture.
2) Dairying

3) Production, cultivation, growing, and harvesting of anyagricultural, aquacultural,
floricultural, viticultural, or horticultural commodities.

4) Growing and harvesting of forest products upon forestland, and any other forestry or
lumbering operations.

5) Raising of livestock, including horses.
6) Keeping of horses as a commercial enterprise; and
7) Keeping and raising of poultry, swine, cattle, ratites (suchas emus, ostriches and rheas)

and camelids (such as llamas and camels), and other domesticated animals for food and
other agricultural purposes, including bees and fur-bearing animals.

D. "Farming" may encompass activities including, but notlimited to, the following:
1) and transportation of slow-moving farm equipment over roads within the Town.

2) Control of pests, including, but not limited to, insects, weeds, predators and disease
organism of plants and animals.

3) Application of manure, fertilizers and pesticides.

4) Conducting agriculture-related educational and farm based recreational activities,
including agri-tourism, provided that the activities are related to marketing the

37



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

agricultural output or services of the farm.

5) Processing and packaging of the agricultural output of the farm and the operation of a
farmer's market or farm stand including signage thereto.

6) Maintenance, repair, or storage of seasonal equipment, or apparatus owned or leased by
the farm owner or manager used expressly for the purpose of propagation, processing,
management, or sale of the agricultural products; and

7) On-farm relocation of earth and the clearing of ground for farming operations.

§3

Right to farm declaration.

The right to farm is hereby recognized to exist within the Town of Wellfleet. The above-
described agricultural activities may occur on holidays, weekdays, and weekends by night or day
and shall include the attendant incidental noise, odors, dust, and fumes associated with normally
accepted agricultural practices. It is hereby determined that whatever impact may be caused to
others.

through the normal practice of agriculture is more than offset by the benefits of farming to the
neighborhood, community, and society in general. The benefits and protections of this bylaw are
intended to apply exclusively to those commercial agricultural and farming operations.

and activities conducted in accordance with generally accepted agricultural practices. Moreover,
nothing in this Right to Farm Bylaw shall be deemed as acquiring any interest in land, or as
imposing any land use regulation, which is properly the subject of state statute, regulation, or
local zoning law.

§4

Disclosure notification.

Copies of the disclosure notification shall be prepared by the Town and included on a one-time
basis with the mail out of Town real estate tax bills. Following the initial mail

out, copies of the disclosure notification will be included on a continuing basis with the mail out
of municipal lien certificates.

DISCLOSURE NOTIFICATION:

It is the policy of this community to conserve, protect and encourage the maintenance and
improvement of agricultural and aquacultural resources for the production of food and other
agricultural products and also for its natural and ecological value. This disclosure notification is
to inform buyers or occupants that the property they are about to acquire or occupy lies within

a town where farming activities occur. Such farming activities may include, but are not limited
to, activities that cause attendant incidental noise, dust and odors associated with normally
accepted agricultural practices. Buyers or occupants are also informed that any property within
the Town may be impacted by commercial agriculture, aquiculture, and other farming activities.

38



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

§5
Resolution of disputes.

A. Any person who seeks to complain about the operation of a farm may, notwithstanding
pursuing any other available remedy, file a grievance with the Selectboard, the Zoning
Enforcement Officer, or the Board of Health, depending upon the nature of the grievance.
The filing of the grievance does not suspend the time within which to pursue any other
available remedies that the aggrieved may have. The Zoning Enforcement Officer or the
Selectboard may forward a copy of the grievance to the Agricultural Advisory Council or
its agent, which shall review and facilitate the resolution of the grievance and report its
recommendations to the referring Town authority within an agreed upon time frame.

B. The Board of Health, except in cases of imminent danger or public health risk, may
forward a copy of the grievance review and facilitate the resolution of the grievance, and
report its recommendations to the Board of Health within an agreed upon time frame.

§6

Severability clause.
If any part of this bylaw is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such
decision shall not affect the remainder of this bylaw. The town of Wellfleet hereby
declares the provisions of this bylaw to be severable.

§7

Relationship to existing Bylaws, Rules and Regulations.
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, nothing in this bylaw shall
supersede any existing Town or National Seashore bylaw, zoning bylaw, rule or
regulation,
and all such existing bylaws, rules and regulations shall continue in full force and effect.

Majority Vote Required

Selectboard Recommends:

Article 38 Expanding Residential Property Exemption: Home Rule Petition —

To see if the Town will vote to petition the General Court to enact a special act of the Town of
Wellfleet, the text of which is set forth below, and that the General Court be authorized with the
approval of the Selectboard to make constructive changes in the text thereof as may be necessary
or advisable in order to accomplish the intent of this legislation to secure its passage, as follows:

AN ACT EXPANDING THE EXEMPTION FOR RESIDENTAL PROPERTY IN THE TOWN
OF WELLFLEET

39



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in the General Court assembled, and
by the authority of the same as follows:

SECTION 1. Notwithstanding section 5C of chapter 59 of the General Laws or any other general
or special law to the contrary, with respect to each parcel of real property classified as class one
residential in the town of Wellfleet as certified by the commissioner of revenue to be assessing
all local property at its full and fair cash valuation, and with the approval of the Selectboard,
there shall be an exemption equal to not more than 35 per cent of the average assessed value of
all class one residential parcels within the town of Wellfleet, or such other maximum percentage
as may be established from time to time by the General Court; provided, however, that the
exemption shall be applied only to: (i) the principal residence of the taxpayer as used by the
taxpayer for income tax purposes; or (ii) a residential parcel occupied by a resident of the town
of Wellfleet, other than the taxpayer, occupied on a year-round basis and used as the resident's
principal residence for income tax purposes. The town of Wellfleet may adopt and amend criteria
to determine who qualifies as a resident under this act. This exemption shall be in addition to any
exemptions allowable under section 5 of said chapter 59; provided, however, that the taxable
valuation of the property, after all applicable exemptions, shall not be reduced to below 10% of
its full and fair cash valuation, except through the applicability of clause eighteenth of said
section 5 of said chapter 59. Where, under the provisions of said section 5 of said chapter 59, the
exemption is based upon an amount of tax rather than on valuation, the reduction of taxable
valuation for the purposes of the preceding sentence shall be computed by dividing the amount
of tax by the residential class tax rate of the town of Wellfleet and multiplying the result by
$1,000. For the purposes of this paragraph, "parcel" shall mean a unit of real property as defined
by the board of assessors of the town of Wellfleet in accordance with the deed for the property
and shall include a condominium unit.

SECTION 2. A taxpayer aggrieved by the failure to receive the residential exemption authorized
under this act may apply for the residential exemption to the board of assessors of the town of
Wellfleet in writing on a form approved by the board of assessors, on or before the deadline for
an application for exemption under section 59 of said chapter 59. For the purposes of this act, a
timely application filed under this section shall be treated as a timely filed application pursuant
to section 59 of chapter 59 of the General Laws.

SECTION 3. This act shall take effect on the first day of the fiscal year following passage of this
act and shall apply to taxes levied for fiscal years beginning that fiscal year and thereafter.

Or to take any other action relative thereto

Explanation: In the interest of creating and retaining year-round rental housing for residents of
Wellfleet this article would allow the Selectboard to petition the General Court to expand the
residential tax exemption (RTE) to property owners who rent their property on a year round
basis. In order to qualify, the property would need to rented on a year round basis to a resident
of Wellfleet who declares the property to be their principle residence for income tax purposes.

Selectboard Recommends: 5

40



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Article 39: A Home Rule Petition Authorizing the Commissioner of Capital Asset
Management and Maintenance to Grant an Easement in the Town of Wellfleet

To see if the Town will vote to petition the General Court to enact a special act of the Town of
Wellfleet, the text of which is set forth below, and that the General Court be authorized with the
approval of the Selectboard to make constructive changes in the text thereof as may be necessary
or advisable in order to accomplish the intent of this legislation to secure its passage, as follows:

AN ACT AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSIONER OF CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT
AND MAINTENANCE TO GRANT AN EASEMENT IN THE TOWN OF WELLFLEET.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in the General Court assembled, and
by the authority of the same as follows:

SECTION 1. Notwithstanding sections 32 to 37, inclusive, of chapter 7C of the General Laws or
any other general or special law to the contrary, the Commissioner of Capital Asset Management
and Maintenance, in consultation with the Commissioner of conservation and recreation, may
convey, for no monetary consideration, a permanent nonexclusive easement to Judith Blakeley
Life Estate, Richard Blakeley Remainderman, and Blackfish Creek Shellfish Company in a
portion of a certain parcel of land located within the town of Wellfleet, under the care and
control of the Department of Conservation and Recreation and held for conservation and
recreation purposes, described in a deed recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds
in book 3377, page 069. The easement may be granted solely for purposes of a curb cut for
vehicular access, the benefitted land being described in a deed recorded with the Barnstable
County registry of deeds in book 15500, page 50, and shall be subject to the further requirements
of this act and subject to such additional terms and conditions consistent with this act as the
Commissioner of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance may prescribe in consultation
with the Department of Conservation and Recreation.

The easement described in this section shall be comprised of XX square feet of land, more or
less, identified as ”” as shown on the plan of land entitled “
dated , prepared by . The plan shall be filed with the Department of
Conservation and Recreation and to be recorded with the Barnstable County registry of deeds
along with the easement.

b

Modifications to the easement description set forth in the plan and the plan may be made by the
division of capital asset management and maintenance for conformance with this act. The
easement shall be granted without warranties or representations by the Commonwealth.

SECTION 2. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the Commissioner of
conservation and recreation may grant a license or permit for nominal consideration to Judith
Blakeley Life Estate to provide Judith Blakeley Life Estate with use and occupation of the above
referenced parcel, and liability and responsibility for such use and occupation, and, for the

41



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

purposes of this act, such licenses or permits shall govern until the grant of easement authorized
in this act takes effect.

SECTION 3. No easement instrument conveying, by or on behalf of the Commonwealth, the
easement described in section 1 shall be valid unless such easement instrument provides that the
easement shall be used solely for the purposes described in said section 1. The easement
instrument shall include a clause that shall state that if the easement ceases to be used by the
grantees, or their successors or assigns, for the purposes described in section 1 at any time, the
easement shall terminate and all rights shall revert to the Commonwealth under the care and
control of the Department of Conservation and Recreation, upon such terms and conditions as
the Commissioner may determine.

SECTION 4. The fair market value of the easement described in section 1, or the value in use as
proposed, shall be based on independent professional appraisals, as commissioned by the
Commissioner of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance. Judith Blakeley Life Estate shall
compensate the Commonwealth in an amount greater than or equal to the full and fair market
value, or the value in use of the easement as proposed, whichever is greater, as determined by the
independent appraisals, plus the reasonable cost of such appraisal. All money paid to the
Commonwealth by Judith Blakeley Life Estate as a result of the conveyances authorized by this
section shall be deposited in the General Fund. The Commissioner of Capital Asset Management
and Maintenance shall submit the appraisals and a report thereon to the inspector general for
review and comment. The inspector general shall review and approve the appraisals and the
review shall include an examination of the methodology utilized for the appraisals. The inspector
general shall prepare a report of the review and file the report with the Commissioner of Capital
Asset Management and Maintenance for submission by the Commissioner to the house and
senate committees on ways and means and the senate and house chairs of the joint committee on
state administration and regulatory oversight. The Commissioner shall submit copies of the
appraisals, the report thereon and the inspector general’s review and approval, and comments, if
any, to the house and senate committees on ways and means and the senate and house chairs of
the joint committee on state administration and regulatory oversight prior to the execution of the
conveyance authorized by this act.

SECTION 5. As a condition of the conveyance authorized in section 1, Judith Blakeley Life
Estate shall, in addition to any compensation from Judith Blakeley Life Estate to the
Commonwealth required pursuant to section 3, compensate the Commonwealth for the easement
described in this act through the transfer to the Department of Conservation and Recreation of
land or an interest therein or funding for the acquisition of land or an interest therein equal to or
greater than the appraised value of the easement as determined pursuant to this act. The fair
market value of any land or interest in land proposed to be conveyed by Edge to the department
pursuant to this section shall be included within the appraisal required by section 3. The land or
interest therein or funding shall be acceptable to the Department of Conservation and Recreation
and any land or interest therein, whether conveyed by Judith Blakeley Life Estate or acquired by
the department, shall be permanently held and managed for conservation and recreation purposes

42



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

by the department. All payments made to the Commonwealth pursuant to this section shall be
deposited in the Conservation Trust established in section 1 of chapter 132A of the General
Laws.

ARTICLE 40: To see if the Town will vote to support the Blakeley’s request to have a curb
cut into the state-owned parking lot on Lecount Hollow Rd.

Explanation: The Blakeley’s have used the current DCR rail trail parking lot to access the
backside of their property dating back to when it was still a railroad bed. They have been able to
use this lot to access their commercial HACCP facility and gear yard until May when the access
was blocked by the state and the Blakeley’s were informed the reconstruction of the parking lot
will permanently block their access. There is no practical way to reach the HACCP with
commercial trucks or trailers except through the parking lot due to the layout of their lot,
proximity to wetlands, and the location of their septic system. Restoring their access requires
legislative intervention. Representative Peak and Senator Cyr’s office have said that it is far
easier to make such a request if it has the clear support of the townspeople.

Article 41: Natural Resources Advisory Board Request— To see if the Town will vote to raise
and appropriate, and/or transfer from available funds, the sum of $60,000, or any other sum, for
the purpose of broadly initiating a field survey of the fauna and flora in Wellfleet harbor,
especially shellfish and finfish, as a basis for future actions to preserve and enhance this
environment, or to do or act on anything thereon.

Summary — This article seeks funds to complete a broad overview of the state of Wellfleet harbor
as recommended in the Harbor Management Plan (March 2021). It replicates a study by the
Division of Marine Fisheries, which is now nearly 50 years old. Current funding is for a harbor
wide study of shellfish and finfish. NRAB views this work as a critical step in establishing a
baseline for future management, as well as identifying and preserving the health of the harbor in
view of climate change and other environmental impacts.

(Request of the Natural Resources Advisory Board)

Article 42: Wellfleet Affordable Housing Trust Fund

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the authority of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 55C
to adopt the following as a general bylaw of the Town:

WELLFLEET AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND BY-LAW

43



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Chapter 1: Purposes

The purpose of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund (hereinafter "Trust") shall be to provide for
the creation and preservation of affordable housing in the Town of Wellfleet (the “Town") for the benefit
of low and moderate income households and for the funding and support of community housing as
defined in and in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44B
(“Chapter 44B”), and, in furtherance of this purpose, to acquire by gift, purchase, or otherwise, real estate
and personal property, both tangible and intangible, of every sort and description; to use such property,
both real and personal, in such manner as the Trustees shall deem most appropriate to carry out such
purpose; provided however, that all property comprising this Trust and the net earnings thereof shall be
used only in the Town exclusively for the benefit of all of the Inhabitants of the Town for the creation
and preservation of affordable housing therein. The Trust is authorized to provide for, fund and support
low and moderate income households earning up to 120% of the Area Median Income.

Chapter 2: Tenure of Trustees and Appointment

The Trustees hereunder shall be appointed by the Selectboard. One of the Trustees shall be a
member of the Selectboard. Trustees shall serve for a term not to exceed two years. Trustees may be
reappointed at the discretion of the Selectboard, with no limit on the number of terms that a Trustee can
serve. To the extent possible, the Selectboard shall appoint as Trustees individuals with backgrounds
or interests in affordable housing, and specifically those with financial, legal or development expertise,
or experience and perspective on housing preservation. A majority of the Trustees shall be residents of
the Town of Wellfleet.

There shall be no less than five and no more than seven Trustees of the Trust.

Any Trustee may resign by written instrument sighed and acknowledged by such Trustee and
duly filed with the Town Clerk and recorded with the Registry of Deeds and filed with the Land
Registration Office.

If a Trustee shall die, resign, be removed or suspended, or for any other reason cease to be a
Trustee hereunder before his/her term of office expires, a successor shall be appointed by the
Selectboard to fill such vacancy provided that in each case the said appointment and acceptance in
writing by the Trustee so appointed is filed with the Town Clerk and recorded with the Registry of
Deeds and filed with the Land Registration Office. Upon the appointment of any succeeding Trustee
and the filing of such appointment the title to the Trust estate shall thereupon and without the
necessity of any conveyance be vested in such succeeding Trustee jointly with the remaining
Trustees.

Trustees may be removed by the Selectboard at any time for cause following an opportunity
for a hearing. For purposes of this bylaw, the term “cause” shall include, but not be limited to,
violation of any local, state or federal law; incapacity to perform the duties of a Trustee; and acts of
a Trustee that, in the opinion of the Selectboard, are negligent or detrimental to the Town of
Wellfleet or the Trust.

44



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Reference to the Trustee shall mean the Trustee or Trustees for the time being hereunder.

Chapter 3: Meetings of the Trust

There shall be quarterly meetings if the Trust at such time and at such place as the Trustees
shall determine. A written notice stating the place, day, hour, and agenda of each meeting of the
Trust shall be posted at Town Hall at least 48 hours before the date of such meeting in accordance
with G. L. c. 30A, Sections 18-25. A quorum at any meeting shall be a majority of the Trustees
qualified and present in person. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by any two (2)
Trustees.

Chapter 4: Powers of Trustees

The power and duties of the Trustees shall include the following, all of which shall be
carried on in furtherance of the purposes and in compliance with the terms set forth in Section
55C and this By-Law:

A. To accept and receive real property, personal property or money, by gift, grant, contribution,
devise or transfer from any person, firm, corporation or other public or private entity,
including but not limited to money, grants of funds or other property tendered to the Trust in
connection with any bylaw or any general or special law or any other source, including
money from Chapter 44B; provided, however, that any such money received from Chapter
44B shall be used exclusively for community housing and shall remain subject to all the
rules, regulations and limitations of that chapter when expended by the Trust, and such funds
shall be accounted for separately by the Trust; and provided further, that at the end of each
fiscal year, the Trust shall ensure that all expenditures of funds received from said Chapter
44B are reported to the Community Preservation Committee for inclusion in the community
preservation initiatives report, Form CP-3, to the Department of Revenue;

B. To purchase and retain real or personal property, including, without restriction, investments
that yield a high rate of income or no income.

C. To sell, lease, exchange, transfer or convey any personal, mixed, or real property at public
auction or by private contract for such consideration and on such terms as to credit or
otherwise, and to make such contracts and enter into such undertaking relative to Trust
property as the Trustees deem advisable notwithstanding the length of any such lease or
contract.

D. To execute, acknowledge and deliver deeds, assignments, transfers, pledges, leases,
covenants, contracts, promissory notes, releases, grant agreements, including those for
Community Preservation Act funds and other instruments sealed or unsealed, necessary,
proper or incident to any transaction in which the Trustees engage for the accomplishment of
the purposes of the Trust.

E. To employ advisors and agents, such as accountants, appraisers and lawyers as the Trustees
deem necessary.

45



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

F.

b

To pay reasonable compensation and expenses to all advisors and agents and to apportion
such compensation between income and principal as the Trustees deem advisable.

To apportion receipts and charges between income and principal as the Trustees deem
advisable, to amortize premiums and establish sinking funds for such purpose, and to create
reserves for depreciation depletion or otherwise.

To participate in any reorganization, recapitalization, merger or similar transactions; and to
give proxies or powers of attorney with or without power of substitution to vote any
securities or certificates of interest; and to consent to any contract, lease, mortgage, purchase
or sale of property, by or between any corporation and any other corporation or person.

To deposit any security with any protective reorganization committee, and to delegate to
such committee such powers and authority with relation thereto as the Trustees may deem
proper and to pay, out of Trust property, such portion of expenses and compensation of such
committee as the Trustees may deem necessary and appropriate.

To carry property for accounting purposes other than acquisition date values.

To borrow money on such terms and conditions and from such sources as the Trustees deem
advisable, to mortgage and pledge trust assets as collateral.

To make distributions or divisions of principal in kind.

. To comprise, attribute, defend, enforce, release, settle or otherwise adjust claims in favor or

against the Trust, including claims for taxes, and to accept any property, either in total or
partial satisfaction of any indebtedness or other obligation, and subject to the provisions of
Section 55C, to continue to hold the same for such period of time as the Trustees may deem
appropriate.

To manage or improve real property; and to abandon any property which the Trustees has
determined not to be worth retaining.

To hold all or part of the Trust property uninvested for such purposes and for such time as
the Trustees may deem appropriate.

To extend the time for payment of any obligation to the Trust; and

Q. To provide funds for the benefit of low- and moderate-income households to assist in the

acquisition, creation, preservation, rehabilitation and support of housing affordable for such
families.

The Trustees shall have these and all powers set forth in G. L. c. 44, § 55C, and shall

refrain from exercising any powers in such manner as to violate the provisions of said statute.

Chapter 5: Acts of Trustees

A majority of Trustees may exercise any or all of the powers of the Trustees hereunder

and may execute on behalf of the Trustees any and all instruments with the same effect as though
executed by all the Trustees. The Trustees may, by instrument executed by all the Trustees,
delegate to any attorney, agent, or employee such other powers and duties as they deem

46



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

advisable, including power to execute, acknowledge or deliver instruments as fully as the
Trustees might themselves and to sign and endorse checks for the account of the Trustees of the
Trust. The Trustees shall not delegate the authority to amend the Trust and no such delegation
shall be effective. No Trustee shall be required to give bond. No license of court shall be
required to confirm the validity of any transaction entered into by the Trustees with respect to
the Trust estate. No one dealing with the Trustees need inquire concerning the validity of
anything the Trustees purport to do or see to the application of anything paid to or upon the
order of the Trustees. No Trustee shall be liable for the acts, negligence or defaults of any other
Trustee or any employee, agent, or representative of the Trustees selected with reasonable care,
nor for errors in judgment, nor mistakes of law or fact made in good faith nor in reliance in good
faith on advice of counsel nor for other acts or omissions in good faith.

Chapter 6: Status of Trust and Board of Trustees

The Trust is a public employer, and the Trustees are public employees for purposes of
G. L. c. 268A. The Trust shall be deemed a municipal agency and the Trustees special
municipal employees for the purposes of G. L. ¢. 258. The Trust is a governmental body for
purposes of G. L. 30A, Sections 18-25, the Open Meeting Law. The Trust is also a board of
the Town for purposes of G. L. ¢. 30B, the Uniform Procurement Act, and G. L. ¢, 40, Section
15, provided, however, that agreements and conveyances between the Trust and agencies,
boards, commissions, authorities, departments and public instrumentalities of the Town shall
be exempted from G. L. c. 30B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Trustees nor any
agent or officer of the Trust shall have the authority to bind the Town.

Chapter 7: Custodian of Funds

The Town of Wellfleet Treasurer shall be the custodian of the funds of the Trust. The
books and records of the Trust shall be audited annually by an independent auditor in accordance
with accepted accounting practices. Costs associated with the independent audit shall be borne
by the Trust. Upon receipt of the audit by the Trustees, a copy shall be provided forthwith to the
Selectboard.

Chapter 8: Funds Paid to the Trust

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, all moneys paid to the Trust
in accordance with any zoning by-law, exaction fee, or private contribution shall be paid directly
into the Trust and need not be appropriated or accepted and approved into the Trust. General
revenues appropriated into the Trust become Trust property and these funds need not be further
appropriated to be expended. All moneys remaining in the Trust at the end of any fiscal year,
whether or not expended by the Trust within one year of the date they were appropriated into the
Trust, remain Trust property.

Chapter 9: Taxes

The Trust is exempt from General Laws Chapters 59 and 62, and from any other
provisions concerning payment of taxes based upon or measured by property or income imposed
by the Commonwealth or any subdivision thereof.

47



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Chapter 10: Duration of the Trust

This Trust shall continue until terminated by a vote of the Wellfleet Town Meeting.
Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees, with the approval of the Selectboard, may sell all or
any portion of the Trust property, both real and personal, and, following the payment of all
obligations and liabilities of the Trust and the Trustees, shall transfer to the Town the net assets
of the Trust, which shall be held by the Selectboard for affordable housing purposes.

Chapter 11: Compensation of Trustees

Trustees shall not receive a salary, stipend, bonus or other means of compensation for
their service as a Trustee, nor shall they be eligible for any benefits from the Town of Wellfleet.
Trustees may be compensated for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for travel and other Trust-
related expenses. All such out-of-pocket expenses shall be fully documented with receipts for
expenses prior to payment by the Trust.

Chapter 12: Annual Report

The Trustees shall prepare an annual report describing the activities of the Trust on a:
calendar year basis. The annual report shall be submitted to the Wellfleet Selectboard by January
31 of each year and will be included in the Town’s Annual Report. The Annual Report shall list
all financial transactions conducted by the Trust including all revenues and costs, provide a
balance sheet of liabilities and assets of the Trust, list an inventory of all affordable housing units
created, sold, and/or managed by the Trust, and any other pertinent information related to the
business of the Trust.

ARTICLE 43:
MOTION: Accessory Dwelling Units

To see if the Town will vote to delete 6.21 Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units of the Wellfleet
Zoning By-laws and substitute the following sections in place thereof, and to amend the Table of
Contents and Sections 2.1, 5.3, 5.46, 5.47, and 8.3 as follows.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
["Affordable-AecesseryDwelling-Units" is hereby deleted and "Accessory Dwelling Units" is

substituted in place thereof.]
SECTION II
2.1 DEFINITIONS

Bwelling-Affordable-Aeeessory is hereby deleted and the following definition is substituted in

place thereof.]

48



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Dwelling, Accessory: a self-contained housing unit, inclusive of sleeping, cooking and sanitary
facilities on the same lot as a principal dwelling or other principal structure that shall be leased
year-round.

5.3. Use Regulations

Table 5.3.1 is amended as follows: Insert “Dwelling, Accessory” between "Conversion of
Dwelling Unit" and "PwelingAfferdable-Aceessory™

["P" is a permitted use. "A" is a use authorized under special permits.]

CD (Rl |[R2 |NSP C |C2

Dwelling, Accessory Unit P P P A P |P

BwellingAdHerdableAocessory- - o |16 |6 A |O

[5.4.6. Intensity of Use Application to Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units is hereby deleted
and the following section is substituted in place thereof.]

5.4.6. Intensity of Use Application to Accessory Dwelling Units
(ADU}

An Accessory Dwelling Unit shall consist of a minimum of 200 square feet of Livable Floor
Area, subject to any requirements of the state.

[ 5.4.7 Intensity of Use Application to the Conversion of Dwelling Units is hereby amended
and the following section in bold is inserted.]

5.4.7 Intensity of Use Application to the Conversion of Dwelling Units

No dwelling unit shall be converted into two or more units unless each resulting unit consists of
a minimum of 600 square feet of livable floor area; the external appearance of the structure is not
changed; the front, side and rear yard requirements of the district in which located are met; and
the lot area is not less per dwelling than the lot requirement of the district in which located,
except in the case of an Accessory Dwelling Unit, as provided in Section 6.21 of these
Zoning By-laws,

6.21 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)

6.21.1 Purpose: To enable an increase of year-round rental housing opportunities; to encourage
greater diversity of housing types appropriate to residents with varying needs, and to support a
stable and diverse year-round community and a robust local workforce.

49



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

6.21.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)

An Accessory Dwelling, as defined in Section 2.1 DEFINITIONS of the Wellfleet Zoning By-
laws is an additional dwelling unit allowed on a single lot in all districts of the Town if in
compliance with all Town, Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Federal statutes, by-laws and
regulations where applicable, unless otherwise allowed by this bylaw.

Page 3/5

6.21.2. Accessory Dwelling Units are allowed either as a Detached Building, or as a separate
dwelling unit within or attached to a Dwelling, a building used for a Principal Use; or within or
attached to any Accessory Building, as defined in Section 2.1 DEFINITIONS of the Wellfleet

Zoning By-laws.

6.21.2.2 Accessory Dwelling Units shall be no larger than one thousand two hundred (1,200)
square feet of Livable Floor Area as that term is defined in Section 2.1 DEFINITIONS of the
Wellfleet Zoning By-laws.

6.21.2.3. Ownership of an Accessory Dwelling Unit cannot be separated from that of the
principal use.

6.21.2.4. The rights and requirements of this By-law shall be transferred upon any transfer of
ownership of a property containing an Accessory Dwelling Unit built under the provisions of this
By-law.

6.21.2.5. A property owner may choose to cease to use an Accessory Dwelling Unit by formally
reporting its change in use to the agent designated by the Town Administrator to administer and
monitor such units and altering it to meet the requirements of a permitted use. The agent will
then register this change in use with the Building Inspector, the Health Agent and the Town
Assessor.

6.21.3 Procedure

6.21.3.1 The property owner shall apply for and receive a Building Permit for an Accessory
Dwelling Unit from the Building Inspector before construction or use may begin.

6.21.3.2 Once an Accessory Dwelling Unit has received a Certificate of Occupancy, it shall not
be occupied or used until registered with the agent designated by the Town Administrator to
administer and monitor such units who will maintain a current record of such units and register
them with the Town's Assessor, Building Department, and Health Department.

Page 4/5
6.21.4 Monitoring

An Affidavit of Compliance signed by the property owner shall be submitted initially, when the
unit is first occupied or used, and then annually, on September 1st or the nearest business day, to
the agent designated by the Town Administrator to monitor and administer such Units to confirm
that the Accessory Dwelling Unit or Units are being leased for a minimum of a year, and not

50



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

otherwise leased or occupied for any other purpose, and that they shall be used as a dwelling,
according to the standards and conditions of this By-law.

6.21.5 Enforcement and Penalties

Upon a written determination by the Building Inspector that the property owner has failed to
comply with these provisions the property owner shall bring the unit or units into compliance
within thirty (30) days of such written notice pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter
40A Section 7. In addition, the Building Inspector shall impose any and all fines and penalties
referenced in Section 8.3 of these By-laws.

6.21.6. Opportunity for Affordable Housing Property Tax Exemption

A property owner who leases an Accessory Dwelling Unit affordably and in compliance with
this By-law, as specified by the Special Act of 2010 and adopted by Wellfleet voters in May
2011 may apply to the agent designated by the Town Administrator to administer and monitor
such units to receive an application for a property tax exemption.

[ 8.3 Penalty is hereby amended and the following sections in bold are inserted therein. ]

8.3 Penalty Any person violating any of the provisions of these By-laws may be fined not more
than $50.00 for each offense, except in the case of violations of Section 6.21 Accessory
Dwelling Units, the fine shall be $300.00 for each offense. Each day that such violation
continues shall constitute a separate offense.

Page5/5
Summary:

The purpose of this bylaw is to enable an increase of year-round rental opportunities; to
encourage greater diversity of housing types appropriate to residents with varying needs; and to
support a stable and diverse year-round community with a robust local workforce.

Wellfleet's year-round housing crisis is well documented. The need for year-round rentals has
become increasingly pressing as more and more year-round homes are converted to short term
and seasonal use. There are often no year-round rentals available at any price. From young
people and families to seniors and well-paid professionals, finding and keeping a year-round
rental is less and less possible. Our shellfishing families are particularly vulnerable as they are
required by regulations to be domiciled in Wellfleet. Businesses of all types and even the Town's
departments struggle to find employees because of the high cost and lack of year-round housing.
This will impact both residents and visitors as it is already affecting the quality of life and
economic sustainability of the town.

This By-law would allow Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) which are additional size-restricted
dwellings, on a single lot with an existing dwelling or structure or other Principal use, in all

51



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Zoning districts if in compliance with all applicable By-laws and regulations. Properties in the
National Seashore Park would require a Special Permit. Such dwellings can be no larger than
1,200 square feet of Livable Floor Area. Before an ADU can be used or occupied it must be
registered with an agent designated by the Town Administrator to administer and monitor such
units. Such units MUST be leased and occupied year-round with an Affidavit of Compliance
filed annually with the Town by the property owner. ADUs do not have limits on who can rent
based on income, and there is no set rent for ADUs. The property owner may lease the unit at
market rates or may take advantage of the Affordable Housing Tax Exemption if leased
affordably as determined by the Town. ADUs cannot be rented seasonally, weekly or daily. The
property owner may live in the unit year-round themselves after filing the required Affidavit of
Compliance.

ARTICLE 44: Petitioned Article

We, the undersigned, do support the following proposed Zoning By-law change and
request that it be placed on the 2021 Annual Town Meeting Warrant.

MOTION: Accessory Dwelling Units

To see if the Town will vote to delete 6.21 Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units of the Wellfleet
Zoning By-laws and substitute the following sections in place thereof, and to amend the Table of
Contents and Sections 2.1, 5.3, 5.46, 5.47, and 8.3 as follows.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

[Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units" is hereby deleted and "Accessory Dwelling Units" is
substituted in place thereof.]

SECTION II
2.1 DEFINITIONS

[Dwelling, Affordable Accessory is hereby deleted and the following definition is substituted in
place thereof.]

Dwelling, Accessory: a self-contained housing unit, inclusive of sleeping, cooking and sanitary
facilities on the same lot as a principal dwelling or other principal structure that shall be leased
year-round.

5.3. Use Regulations

[Table 5.3.1 is amended as follows: Insert Dwelling, Accessory between "Conversion of
Dwelling Unit" and "Dwelling, Affordable". Delete Dweling-Affordable Unit."]

["P" is a permitted use". "A" is a use authorized under special permits.]

52



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

5.3.1 Residential CD | RI R2 [ NSP| C C2
Dwelling, Accessory p p p A p
Dwelling Affordable- Aceesory A A A A A

5.4.6. Intensity of Use Application to Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units is hereby deleted
and the following section is substituted in place thereof.]

5.4.6. Intensity of Use Application to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU)

An Accessory Dwelling Unit shall consist of a minimum of 200 square feet of Livable Floor
Area.

[S.4. 7 Intensity of Use Application to the Conversion of Dwelling Units is hereby amended
and the following section in bold is inserted.]

5.4.7 Intensity of Use Application to the Conversion of Dwelling Units

No dwelling unit shall be converted into two or more units unless each resulting unit
consists of a minimum of 600 square feet of livable floor area; the external appearance of
the structure is not changed; the front, side and rear yard requirements of the district in
which located are met; and the lot area is not less per dwelling than the lot requirement of
the district in which located, except in the case of an Accessory Dwelling Unit, as provided
in Section 6.21 of these Zoning By-laws.

6.21 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)

6.21.1 Purpose: To enable an increase of year-round rental housing opportunities; to
encourage greater diversity of housing types appropriate to residents with varying needs,
and to support a stable and diverse year-round community and a robust local workforce.

6.21.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)

An Accessory Dwelling, as defined in Section 2.1 DEFINITIONS of the Wellfleet Zoning
By-laws is an additional dwelling unit allowed on a single lot in all districts of the Town if
in compliance with all Town, Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Federal statutes, by-
laws and regulations where applicable.

6.21.2.1 Accessory Dwelling Units may be allowed either as a Detached Building, or as a
separate dwelling unit within or attached to a Dwelling, a building used for a Principal
Use; or in any Accessory Building, as defined in Section 2.1 DEFINITIONS of the Wellfleet
Zoning By-laws.

6.21.2.2 Accessory Dwelling Units shall be no larger than one thousand two hundred
(1,200) square feet of Livable Floor Area as that term is defined in Section 2.1
DEFINITIONS of the Wellfleet Zoning By-laws.

6.21.2.3. Ownership of an Accessory Dwelling Unit cannot be separated from that of the
principal use.

53



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

6.21.2.4. The rights and requirements of this By-law shall be transferred upon any transfer
of ownership of a property containing an Accessory Dwelling Unit built under the
provisions of this By-law.

6.21.2.5. A property owner may choose to cease to use an Accessory Dwelling Unit by
formally reporting its change in use to the agent designated by the Town Administrator to
administer and monitor such units and altering it to meet the requirements of a permitted
use. The agent will then register this change in use with the Building Inspector, the Health
Agent and the Town Assessor.

6.21.3 Procedure

6.21.3.1 The property owner shall apply for and receive a Building Permit for an Accessory
Dwelling Unit from the Building Inspector before construction or use may begin:

6.21.3.2 Once an Accessory Dwelling Unit has received a Certificate of Occupancy, it shall
not be occupied or used until registered with the agent designated by the Town
Administrator to administer and monitor such units who will maintain a current record of
such units and register them with the Town's Assessor, Building Department, and Health
Department.

6.21.4 Monitoring

An Affidavit of Compliance signed by the property owner shall be submitted initially, when
the unit is first occupied or used, and then annually, on September 1st or the nearest
business day, to the agent designated by the Town Administrator to monitor and
administer such Units to confirm that the Accessory Dwelling Unit or Units are being
leased for a minimum of a year, and not otherwise leased or occupied for any other
purpose, and that they shall be used as a dwelling, according to the standards and
conditions of this By-law.

6.21.5. Opportunity for Affordable Housing Property Tax Exemption

A property owner who leases an Accessory Dwelling Unit affordably and in compliance
with this By-law, as specified by the Special Act of 2010 and adopted by Wellfleet voters in
May 2011 may apply to the agent designated by the Town Administrator to administer and
monitor such units to receive an application for a property tax exemption.

6.21.6. Enforcement and Penalties

Upon a written determination by the Building Inspector that the property owner has failed
to comply with these provisions the property owner shall bring the unit or units into
compliance within thirty (30) days of such written notice pursuant to Massachusetts
General Law Chapter 40A Section 7. In addition, the Building Inspector shall impose any
and all fines and penalties referenced in Section 8.3 of these By-laws.

[ 8.3 Penalty is hereby amended and the following sections in bold are inserted therein.]

8.3 Penalty Any person violating any of the provisions of these By-laws may be fined not
more than-

54



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

$50.00 for each offense, except in the case of violations of Section 6.21 Accessory Dwelling
Units the fine shall be $300.00 for each offense. Each day that such violation continues shall
constitute a separate offense.

Proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit By-law

We, the undersigned, do support the above article and request that it be placed on the 2021
Annual Town Meeting Warrant.

(inserted signatures will go here)

ARTICLE 45: ANIMAL CONTROL
15.1 Purpose

The purpose of these by-laws is the control of animals to prevent injury to property, persons and
animals.

15.2 Administration

The Selectboard shall appoint an Animal Control Officer who, in addition to any other
authorized enforcement officers, shall be responsible for the enforcement of these by-laws.

15.3 Definitions
For the purposes of this Bylaw, the following terms shall have the following definitions:

Adequate shelter - Means a structure that is large enough for the animal to stand naturally, turn
around and lie down inside ef the structure without being exposed to the elements of weather.
The roof and walls of the structure are waterproof and windproof. Bedding must be kept dry and
changed regularly to preserve insulating qualities. Insulation and an inner wall must be included
in shelter for dogs with short fur (example: Pointers, Staffordshire Terriers, Boxers, Labrador
Retrievers) to provide adequate protection from cold. During cold weather a moveable flap must
be placed over the entrance to a shelter to preserve the animal's body heat. Adequate shelter from
sun may be provided by a tarp placed in a manner to provide deep shade and allow air to pass
through for ventilation.

Beach — The zone above the water line at a shore of a body of water, marked by an accumulation
of sand, stone, or gravel that has been deposited by the tide or waves.

Domesticated Animal — Any of various animals that have been tamed and made fit for a human
environment.

Keeper — Any person, other than the owner, possessing, harboring, keeping, or having control or
custody of a dog either permanently or on a temporary basis. If a person under the age of 18
owns or keeps a dog, that person’s custodial parent(s) or legal guardian(s) shall be responsible
for complying with the requirements of these by-laws.

Kennel, commercial — A kennel maintained as a business where four (4) or more dogs three (3)
months of age or older are kept for the breeding, boarding, sale, in-residence training, grooming

55



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

or other business purposes, and including any shop where dogs are on sale or a kennel of ten (10)
or more dogs regardless of the purpose for which the kennel is maintained.

Kennel, residential - Means a collection of four (4) up to and including nine (9) dogs, three (3)
months of age or older, owned or kept on a single premises, maintained for any non-commercial
purpose except for the sale of one litter per year; provided, however, that a veterinary hospital
shall not be considered a kennel unless it contains an area for the selling or boarding of dogs for
other than medical purposes.

Dangerous Dog - Any dog that attacks, bites or injures any human or domesticated animal
without provocation or which, because of its temperament, conditioning or training, has a
propensity to attack, bite or injure humans or domesticated animals.

Licensing Period — The licensing period means the time between January 15t and the following

December 315! of each year, both dates inclusive.

[Formerly Artiele H“General”
Seetion25-“DogLeash-Bylaw”)]

Section 15.4 Dogs Must Be Leashed No—person—shall-permit-a—dog to—enter—within—the
beundaries-of any-eemetery-in-the Town-of Wellfleet: All dogs within the territorial limits of the

Town of Wellfleet shall be restrained by a leash unless confined to the property of their owners.
Any dog found running at large will be removed and impounded. The owner of any dog so removed
is also liable for boarding expenses at the pound at the established rate. The Town of Wellfleet
Police Department (including special officers), the Animal Control Officer, and any other officials
whom the Selectboard may from time to time designate shall have the authority to enforce this
Section.

Sectionl5.5 Dog Waste Removal

All dog owners, keepers or persons having control of a dog are responsible for immediately
removing and disposing of all solid wastes produced by said dog on any property (other than
the property of the dog owner) in a sanitary manner and where it will not cause pollution,
either directly or indirectly.

No written warning shall be given.

Penalties shall be imposed as per Section 15.10.2. (b)

Section 15.6. Barking and Other Noise Caused by Dogs

No person owning, keeping or otherwise responsible for a dog shall allow said animal to annoy
another person’s reasonable right to peace or privacy by making loud or other continuing
noise, where such noise is plainly audible at a distance of 100 feet from the building, premises,
vehicle, or other means of conveyance or housing of said dog, or where such noise is continuing

56



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

for fifteen (15) minutes. The fact that such noise is plainly audible at said distance or
continuing in excess of fifteen (15) minutes on a daily basis shall be prima facie evidence of a
violation.

15.7 No dog may be left unattended in a parked vehicle at any time of year.

15.8 Licensing and Regulation of Dangerous Dogs
15.8.1 Determination of a Dog Being Dangerous

The Animal Control Officer shall investigate all complaints made to the Animal Control Officer,
the Town of Wellfleet Police Department, the Selectboard, or the Town Administrator that any
dog owned or kept within the Town of Wellfleet has attacked, bitten, or injured any person or
domesticated animal, or which by its temperament, conditioning or training has a propensity to
attack, bite or injure persons or domesticated animals.

15.8.2. The Animal Control Officer is authorized to make whatever inquiry is deemed necessary
to determine the accuracy of said complaint, and if the Animal Control Officer determines that
the complaint is accurate, the Officer may find that the dog is dangerous and may make such
orders as he or she deems necessary to ensure compliance with the provisions of this By-law and
to promote public safety.

15.8.3 Upon determination by the Animal Control Officer that a dog is dangerous, the Animal
Control Officer shall issue a written order to the owner or keeper of said dog concerning the
restraint or disposal of such dog as they may deem necessary. At a minimum, said order shall
state that the dog has been determined to be dangerous and shall require the owner or keeper of

such dog to comply with the requirements of this Bylaw. Seetion15-4-SubseetionB-ofthese by~
laves:

15.8.4. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Animal Control Officer may order
thatseid-dog be-permanently removed-fromthe Town-of Wellfleet, that said dog be humanely
euthanized in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 140,
Section 151A, or that said dog be confined in accordance with such limitations as the Animal
Control Officer deems appropriate. If an order to euthanize is issued, a certificate must be
provided to the Animal Control Officer confirming the action was carried out. If the Animal
Control Officer determines that the dog is to be permanently given or sold to new owner,
removed; the new owner or keeper shall provide the Animal Control Officer with the name,
address, and telephone number of the new owner or keeper of the dog.

15.8.5 The owner or keeper of any dog determined to be dangerous by the Animal Control
Officer may request a hearing before the Selectboard. Said request shall be in writing and
received by the Selectboard within five (5) business days of the owner’s or keeper’s receipt of
the Animal Control Officer’s order. A copy of the hearing request shall also be delivered to the
Animal Control Officer. The hearing request shall include an explanation of the measures that
the owner or keeper intends to take to protect public safety pending disposition of the matter by
the Selectboard. If the Selectboard determines that the measures described are inadequate, it
may order that said dog be impounded, at the owner’s or keeper’s expense, until such time as the
Selectboard rules otherwise.

15.8.6 After a hearing, at which those testifying shall be sworn under oath, the Selectboard may
affirm the order, reverse or nullify the order, or issue any such order as it deems necessary to

57



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

ensure compliance with the provisions of these by-laws and the protection of public safety. The
determination of the Selectboard after a hearing shall be final.

15.8.7. Nothing in this by-law is intended to limit or restrict the authority of the Selectboard to
act in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 140, Sect.157.

15.9 Control of Dangerous Dogs

15.9.1. The Animal Control Officer shall notify the Town Clerk of all dogs determined to be
dangerous, pursuant to the terms of this By-law.

15.9.2. The owner or keeper of any dog determined to be dangerous in accordance with
SubsectionA-of Seetion15-4-of this By-law, which has not been ordered euthanized o
permanently remeoved, shall re-license said dog as “dangerous” within thirty days of such
determination. A unique licensing number shall be assigned to such a dog by the Town Clerk.
That number shall be noted in the Town licensing files.

15.9.3. No dangerous dog shall be licensed by the Town of Wellfleet for any licensing period
unless the owner or keeper of such vicious dog displays a sign not to exceed one square foot on
his or her premises warning that there is a dangerous dog on the premises. The sign shall be
visible and capable of being read from the public or private roadway.

15.9.4. All dangerous dogs shall be confined in an enclosure approved in writing by the Animal
Control Officer. It shall be unlawful for any owner or keeper to maintain a dangerous dog upon
any premises which does not have a locked enclosure or for any owner or keeper to allow any
such dog to be outside of the dwelling of the owner or outside of the enclosure, unless it is
necessary for the owner or keeper to obtain veterinary care for the vieieus dog, or to sell or give
away the vietous dog or to comply with the orders or directions of the Animal Control Officer
and/or the Selectboard with respect to the vieious dog, or to comply with the provisions of these
by-laws. In such event, the dangerous dog shall be securely muzzled and restrained with a chain
having a minimum tensile strength of three hundred (300) pounds and not exceeding three (3)
feet in length, and shall be under the direct control and supervision of the owner or keeper of the
wieious dog. Dangerous dogs shall not be permitted to run loose on any public or private way or
any area within the Town of Wellfleet that is open to the general public, including but not limited
to parks and beaches.

15.9.5 License Revocation — If the Animal Control Officer determines that a dangerous dog is
being kept in the Town in violation of these by-laws or any order issued by the Animal Control
Officer, of the Selectboard, or of any Court, the Animal Control Officer shall so notify the
Selectboard. After giving notice to the owner or keeper of the hearing, the Selectboard shall
hold a public hearing on whether to revoke the license of said dog or to take further action
including banning-the-dogfrom-the-Fown-or euthanizing the dog. If the Selectboard revokes the
license of said dog and does not order it to be euthanized, they shall notify the owner or keeper
of the dog and the Town Clerk within ten (10) days that said dog will be impounded and
euthanized if it is found within the Town after the succeeding seven days. The Animal Control
Officer or any Town of Wellfleet police officer shall seize and impound any dangerous dog
found outside of its enclosure in violation of this By-law or any order issued by the Animal
Control Officer, Selectboard or any Court.

15.10 Kennel Licenses, Inspection, and Regulation.

58



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

15.10.1 Reguirement for Kennel License Any owner or keeper of four (4) up to and including
nine (9) dogs, three (3) months of age or older, being maintained at a premises, shall secure a
Residential Kennel License. The Town Clerk shall not issue a Residential Kennel License unless
the owner or keeper provides the Town Clerk with a veterinarian's certificate verifying that each
dog three (3) months of age or older is currently vaccinated against rabies. Any owner or keeper
of ten (10) or more dogs, three (3) months of age or older, or of a premises maintained as a
commercial kennel, shall obtain a Commercial Kennel License.

15.10.2 Application and Issuance of Kennel License and Fees: A Residential or Commercial
Kennel License shall be issued annually by the Town Clerk upon written application by an
owner or keeper of dogs and after inspection of the kennel and a determination, made by the
Animal Control Officer, that the basic standards of cleanliness, proper care, confinement and
adequate shelter of said dogs exist on the premises. The name and address of the owner or keeper
of each dog kept in any kennel, if other than the person maintaining the kennel, and a
veterinarian's certificate verifying that each dog, three (3) months of age or older, is currently
vaccinated against rabies and kennel cough, shall be kept on file on the premises and available
for inspection by the Animal Control Officer or any authorized persons. Such license shall be in
the form prescribed by the Town Clerk.

The Residential Kennel License fee shall be fifty dollars ($50.00). The Commercial Kennel
License fee shall be one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00). The Town Clerk shall, upon application,
issue without charge a Commercial Kennel License to any domestic charitable corporation,
incorporated exclusively for the purpose of protecting animals from cruelty, neglect or abuse,
and for the relief of suffering among animals. The holder of a license for a kennel shall cause
each dog kept therein to wear, while it is at large, a collar or harness of leather or other suitable
material, to which shall be securely attached a tag upon which shall appear the current dog
license information of the town of where the dog resides. A veterinary hospital shall not be
considered a kennel unless it contains an area for the selling or boarding of dogs for other than
medical purposes, in which case it shall apply for a Commercial Kennel License. The license
period for a kennel license shall be from January 1 to December 31, inclusive. Kennel licenses
are non-transferrable.

15.10.3 Inspection The Animal Control Officer, Animal Health Inspector, or any agent
authorized by the Town may at any reasonable time inspect any kennel or premises for which a
Residential or Commercial Kennel License has been issued.

15.10.4 Loss of Kennel License If the Animal Control Officer, Animal Health Inspector, or
other authorized agent, after inspection, determines that the kennel or premises that are the
subject of a kennel license are not kept in a sanitary or humane condition, or if records are not
kept as required by law, the inspecting officer shall notify the Selectboard of that determination
and the facts upon which it is based. The Selectboard may, by order after a hearing, revoke or
suspend such license. If a license has been revoked or suspended, the license may be reinstated
after inspection and a reinstatement order by the Selectboard after a new hearing.

15.10.5 Procedure for Complaint to the Selectboard Upon written petition of any person or
persons, filed with the Selectboard, setting forth that they are aggrieved or annoyed to an
unreasonable extent by one or more dogs at a kennel because of excessive barking or dangerous
disposition of said dogs, or other conditions connected with such kennel constituting a public
nuisance, said Selectboard, within seven (7) days after the filing of such a petition, shall give
notice to the owner or keeper of the kennel, the petitioner(s), and any other person the

59



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Selectboard determine should be given notice, of a public hearing to be held within fourteen
(14) days after the date of such notice. Said notice shall also be posted on a Town bulletin board.
Within seven (7) days after such public hearing, said Selectboard shall make an order either
revoking or suspending such kennel license, or otherwise regulating said kennel or premises, or
dismissing said petition.

15.10.6 Petition for Relief to Court The holder of a kennel license or other person who is the
subject of an order under Section 15.5E may petition the district court for relief in accordance
with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 140, Section 137C.,

See Section 15.10 Fines and Penalties.1-Fi intaini : dand;

15.11. Fines and Penalties

15.11.1 Criminal Disposition - In addition to any other legal remedies that may be available,
the Animal Control Officer or other designated enforcing person, may enforce this By-law by
Non-Criminal Disposition. If a Non-Criminal Disposition process, as provided in
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 21D and the Town’s Non-Criminal
disposition By-law is elected, then any person who violates the provisions of ARTICLE XV,
Section §15. of the Town’s General By-laws shall be subject to the following enforcement fines
and penalties.

The enforcing officer may give a written warning for the first offense or shall impose the
following fines:

First Offense $50.00

Second Offense $100.00
Third Offense $300.00
Fourth and subsequent offenses $500.00

Each day or portion thereof shall constitute a separate offense. If more than one, each provision
violated shall constitute a separate offense.

15.11.2 These penalties shall apply to all violations of Wellfleet’s General Bylaws, ARTICLE
XV ANIMAL CONTROL, Section 15 except that:

(a.) Section 15.5 Dog Waste Removal Owners or keepers of dogs found to be in violation shall
be fined immediately as a First Offense and subsequently as listed for the Third, Forth and
subsequent offenses, with no written warning;

(b.) Section 15.9 Kennel Licenses. Inspection and Regulation Kennel owners shall be subject
to a penalty in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) per day for each day of violation. Each
day or portion thereof shall constitute a separate offense. If more than one, each provision
violated shall constitute a separate offense.

60



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

STANDARD ANNUAL ARTICLES

SECTION VII: STANDARD ANNUAL ARTICLES
Voted on Together as part of a consent agenda

ARTICLE 46: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Town Administrator or his designee
to dispose of the following articles of personal property by trade in or sale, or do or act anything
thereon.

Majority vote required.
None at time of printing.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

SUMMARY: This Article authorizes the Town Administrator or his designee to
dispose of surplus/outdated supplies and equipment over $1,500 in value during the
fiscal year. All money received for the disposal of such goods is to be placed in the
General Fund, as appropriate. Any credit for trade in value will be applied against the
purchase of the replacement vehicle.

ARTICLE 47: To see if the Town will vote in accordance with G. L. c. 41, §38 to authorize the
Town Collector to use all means for collecting taxes, which the Treasurer may use when
appointed Collector, or do or act anything thereon. Majority vote required.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

SUMMARY: This Article authorizes the Town Collector when appointed to use all
pertinent sections of the Massachusetts General Laws to collect taxes due.

ARTICLE 48: To see if the Town will vote to assume liability in the manner provided by G. L.
¢c. 91, §29 and 29A, as most recently amended, for damage that may be incurred for work to be
performed by the Department of Environmental Protection of Massachusetts for improvement,
development, maintenance and protection of tidal and non-tidal rivers and streams, great ponds,
harbors, tidewaters, foreshores and shores along a public beach, excluding the Herring River and
Herring River Dike, in accordance with G. L. c. 91, §11, and to authorize the Selectmen to
execute and deliver a bond of indemnity therefore to the Commonwealth, or do or act anything
thereon.

Majority vote required.

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

61



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

SUMMARY: The Commonwealth requires that the Town annually assume all liability
for damages that may occur when work is performed by the Massachusetts Department
Environmental Management within tidal and non-tidal waterways within the Town.

ARTICLE 49: To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provisions of G. L. ¢. 71, §16B, to
reallocate the sum of the Town’s required local contributions to the Nauset Regional School
District in accordance with the Nauset Regional School District Agreement, rather than
according to the formula of the Education Reform Act, so-called, for fiscal year 2021, or do or
act anything thereon.
Majority vote required.
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

SUMMARY: This annual request would apportion the operating budget of the Nauset
Regional School District on a per pupil basis, rather than the Education Reform Act
Formula. The Article will apportion the Nauset Regional School District Assessment
for Fiscal 2021 to the four-member Towns based on their proportionate enrollment
within the school district. This is the method provided within the inter-municipal
agreement approved by the four Towns establishing the Nauset Regional School
District and has been applied in each of the past fifteen years by Town Meeting vote.

SECTION IX: STANDARD CLOSING ARTICLES
ARTICLE 50: To hear reports of the Selectmen, Town Officers, and all other Committees and
to act thereon, or do or act anything thereon.
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.

ARTICLE 51: To act on any other business that may legally come before the meeting.
Selectboard: Recommends 5-0.
SUMMARY: Moderator’s appointments are made under this
article.

62



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

APPENDIX B

Article 3B: Shellfish Department Pick-up Truck
To see if the Town will vote to borrow the sum of $24,000 for the purchase of a replacement pick-

up truck for the Shellfish Department, and costs related thereto; or to do or act anything thereon.
And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Selectmen, be
and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant
to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; provided,
however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall
have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds or notes issued
pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 2%%). Any premium
received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied
to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of
costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby reducing the amount
authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any other action in relation
thereto.

NOTE Original Draft said it was funded via a transfer from shellfish fund

Selectboard: Recommends 5-0

Finance Committee: Recommends 8-0

SUMMARY: This article requests town meeting voters authorize the replacement pick-
up truck for the Shellfish Department.

Article 3D: Ambulance 98 Replacement To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from the
Ambulance Receipts Reserved for Appropriation Special Revenue Fund, in accordance with G.L.
c.40, SF, the sum of THREE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($340,000) for the
purpose of funding a replacement ambulance; all expenditures to be made by the Fire
Department, subject to the approval of the Town Administrator; or to do or act anything thereon.

Majority Vote Required

Selectboard: 5-0
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase a replacement ambulance for the
Fire Department using funds from the Ambulance Receipts Reserve Fund.

Article 3F: Mobile Data Terminal Replacements To see if the Town will vote to Raise and
appropriate, transfer from available funds or borrow the sum of $25,000 for the purchase of mobile

63



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

data terminal replacements for the Fire Department, and costs related there to; or to do or act
anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the
Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant to M.G.L. c.
44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town
therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and
until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any bonds
or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition 25). Any
premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such
premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied
to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20, thereby
reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to take any
other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required
Selectboard:
Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase mobile data terminal replacements
for the Fire Department.

Effect on Property Taxes: These funds will be borrowed as a debt exclusion. The cost of
$25,000 would be borrowed over five years and would add $0.002 to the tax rate in the first year
and would cost the owner of a median priced ($545,200) single-family home $1.21.

Article 3: Town Hall Railing Replacement — Only borrow for 1 year (Should be operating or
capital outlay override) To see if the Town will vote to borrow the sum of $6,000 for the purchase
Town Hall replacement railings for the Department of Public Works, and costs related thereto; or
to do or act anything thereon. And that to meet this appropriation the Town Treasurer, with the
approval of the Selectmen, be and hereby is authorized to borrow said amount under and pursuant
to M.G.L. c. 44, §7, or pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the
Town therefor; provided, however that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless
and until the Town shall have voted to exclude the amounts necessary to pay debt service on any
bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from the limits of M.G.L. ¢ . 59, §21C (Proposition
2%). Any premium received upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any
such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be
applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with M.G.L. c. 44, §20,
thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. Or to
take any other action in relation thereto.

2/3 Majority Vote Required

Selectboard:

64



DRAFT Warrant Articles revised 4-22-2021.

Finance Committee:

SUMMARY: This article requests authorization to purchase Town Hall replacement railings for
the Department of Public Works.

65



SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I I
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021
BUSINESS ~ C
| REQUESTED BY: Selectboard
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and take a possible vote on the 2022 Budgets that
have not been approved by the Selectboard
PROPOSED I move to approve the 2022 budget for (each department will be
MOTION: clarified for each approval)
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




8z jo T abnyg

loo*szg

120Z ‘22 jdy “Aopsinyy

000 ~ loo'szs Jos-zer- l00°s29 00°0ze- 00'009 | miog
loo"o loo*oor loooov loooz- l0o-oor looozt- 00°00Y | sasuadx :jejoL
000 o000t o000t loooz- ooy ooozt- 0000 SdIHSHIBNIW/SING 000000-0ELS-FTT-T0
sasuadx3y
000 loo'szz [ooszz Josztt- 00°sze lo0"00z- 00°002 | sapeles ;301
000 oo'szz loo'szz loszrr- - 00'szz looo0z- 00°00¢ ] SO WIL LYYd M/S 000000-02TS-¥TT-T0
- o sajeles
101eJ3pOIN  PTT
PiEOGIAPS  ulwpyumol  pesHideq 120TA 120ZM 020ZA4 0Z0ZA4
(44114 zz0z ze0z QLA 1e8png len1oy 198png

j'elaq - Z20zZ Ad - 198png 193}|IPM




8L fo z abng

loo'o

lo0‘00T

loo-oo1

looo

1Z0Z ‘2z jdy “Aopsinyj

00°00T | 1m0y
000 00001 00001 00°0 00°00T | sajefes :|el0)
000 oo oot loo 0ot 000 00°00T | INIL LYYd - W8S 000000-0ZTS-STT-TO
salejes
sajqejsuo)  SIT
PIBOGP3RS  ulwpyumol  peayidaq TZ0ZA4 0Z0ZA4
zzoz zeoe czoe aLmd 198png

11e19Q - Z2Z0ZC Ad - 193png 1934 I9M



8z fo g abod

1202 ‘gz 14dy ‘“Appsinyj

oo lo0000°0p 00°'sv0'vz 000 loo00s'zz l00000's- 000006 | miog
000 ~ |o0ro00‘oy oosto'vz oo’ 00°006'z2 l00000°s- 00°000'€2 | sasuadxg :jeoL
000 Jooo00'oy lbo'svo're looo 0000622 loo000°s- 00°000'2 _ LIaNV/9NILNNOIY 000000-0Z€S-TZT-10
o sasuadxy
upny  1¢t
PiEOGRRRS  ulwpyumol  peaHadaq T20ZA4 T20zM 0Z02Ad 020TAd
zzoT [A4114 [4{1[4 QA 1e8png [emoy 198png

[1e1aq - 2Z0Z Ad - 1938png 199}|I9M




8, jo v abnd

1Z0Z ‘2z 1dy ‘Aopsinyy

000 looozg'st ooozg‘ot |06°tv6's- 000/8'1 [re898°1- 00°0£8'9T | moy
000 ooosey oooze"y 86°¥t6'T- Jooocew [0 TLE Y 00'0LEY _. sasuadx3 :jejoL
000 loo ooz 0000z 000 00°00z 000 00002 SIN3LI GIHISSYIINN 000000-08£5-Z2T-10
000 00000 00°002°7 009181 00°002° 00°969°- 000022 ] dIHSYIBWIW/SINA 000000-0ELS2ZT-10
000 0000 00°00Z 000 0000z ve'szy- 00002 ONIAOV/STVIW 000000-TTLS-Z2I-T0
000 0000 0000z 000 0000z oo'stt- 00002 T3IAVYL 000000-0T£S-ZZ1-T0
000 000 looo 000 000 looo 000 $3SN3dX3 61-0IAOD 000000-0695-ZZT-T0
000 000 00°00€ 86871 00°00€ 000 00°00€ INOHdITAL 000000-0VES-ZZT-T0
000 0000 00002 000 00002 00°6T¢- 0000z ONINIVHL/SHVYNINZS 000000-80ES-ZZT-T0
000 000L 00°0L 000 loooL 000 00°0L ONLLNI¥d 000000~L0€S-ZZT-T0
000 00'000'T 00°000' 000 00°000'T vLST8- 00'000'1 $3JIAY¥3S 1OVYLNOD 000000-00€5-ZZ1-T0
) sasuadx3
000 jo0ooszt loo00s‘zt z6°666't- 00°005°ZT e L6b°21- 00°005°T sajJejes :jeloL
000 000051 loo00s'zT 26666t~ 00'005ZT E846v'T1-  00'00SCT INIL L¥Vd M/S 000000-02TS-ZZT-T0
sauejes
uswddes  ZZIT
pleoqyidas  ulwpyumol  peaHidag T20ZAd T20ZA 0Z0TA4 0Z0ZA4
(44014 zT0T F44e74 aimM 398png |enjoy 193png

[1e33Q - 2202 Ad - 193png 193}}|I9M




8, 4o 5 3bod 1202 ‘2 I1dy “Aopsinyy

oo 00005582 00°ZYELST T8 LE6TYT- oo°zve'zsT 96'8€0'TLT- 00'50'6.2 | 1oy
oo 00°006° loooszrt 98'S9T's- loooszr [zo'go0‘0t- 00°0SE‘TT | sasuadx3 :|eyo)
loo'o 000057 000052 [oo't16- 00005 00005 SAIHSHIEWAW/SINA 000000-0EL5-€ZT-T0
looo 00'005' loooos'z 000 00'0057 00005 ONISAOV/STV3N 000000-TTLS-€2T-10
000 00°000°T 00'000°T looo 00'000'T 00°000' 13AVYL 000000-0TLS-EZT-T0
00’0 000 |ooose Ot ST 000SE 00052 saljddns 32140 000000-0Z7S-€2T-T0
000 000 000 0F'€- 000 000 3DV1S0d 000000-SYES-€Z1-TO
000 000 00009 L1046 |oo'009 00009 INOHdATI3L 000000-0rES-€2T-T0
000 00°006'€ 00°006'€ 00°092'T- 00'006' 0S0vS'y- 000007 . ONINIVHL/SHYNINIS 000000-80€S-€Z1-T0
000 000 00°00% 000 [oo00v 000 0000S . ONISILYIAQY 000000-V0ES-EZT-TO
000 000 000 6€°S0T'T- 000 00096 000 . SADIAYIS LIVYLNOD 000000-00€5-€Z1-10
i sasuadx3
000 00°009's£Z 00°260°91C S6TLL'6ET 0026091 v6'0£0'T9Z- 00°szL'L9t . sae|es :|ejoL
000 lo0'000°s Jooooo's 000 00°000'S 00°5£6°8T- 00°5£8'62 JAILNIDNI NINQY NMOL 000000-E6T5-EZT-10
000 00009022 00°Z60°TPT S6TLL'6ET-  |00T60THT v6'550°2€ - 00°058°L€T _ AL 1IN M/S 000000-0TTS-EZT-TO
- salejes
Jjojessiviwpy umol €21
pieogses  ulwpyumol  pesHadasg TZ0ZA TZ0ZA 070ZA4 070TAd
zeoe (44114 [440]4 alM 198png |enoy 198png

11e33Q - 220T Ad - 198png 199)3|I9M




8¢ fo 9 abnd 1202 ‘2z pudy ‘Aopsinyy

loo'0 0'T0E'e9z 00°ZEE'PST e'896'8L- Joo-zes st P6VE0'OST-  00'ESH0ST | oy

000 l00°086'2S loo008TZ 9.°'895's- 00°008TZ lLo'vys‘oz- oooor'e | sasuadx3 :|eo)

000 oot 00°00€ Jooo 00°00€ $8'ssT- 00007 | T3AVYL 000000-0TLS+ZI-10
000 000888 0000v'Z  [8S'660°T- loooov'z vS'68Y°T- 00002 u $311ddNS 31340 000000-0Z¥S-¥ZT-10
000 00°008'. 00'000'T 000 000001 000 00°000°T _ 39V150d 000000-SYESYZT-TO
000 000007 00'000'% 00°vT8- [ooa00 ~ |svrsoo'e- 00000% | 3NOHdIT3L 000000-0VES-+Z1-10
o0 loooos 00005 000 00005 000 00005 l ONINIVAL / SYYNIAZS 000000-80ES-¥2T-TO
oo’ loo00s oooos oo 00°00S 000 00005 | ONILNI¥d 000000-LOES+ZT-T0
looo 00'000'8 000007 lerer- 00'000'7 tozzss  0000s'T | ONISILYIAQY 000000-VOES-FZT-T0
000 oo 00009 E€°€0T- [oo00s 8555 00009 ] IW3LSAS WY¥1Y 000000-TOES-ZT-T0
000 00000 000057 98'29€- lo0os'z se'ser's- 00'005°7 ] S3DIAY3S LOVHLNOD 000000-00€S-YZT-T0
looo ~ Joooooor 00'000'8 08'290°¢- 00°000'8 S0'TIS'6" 000008 _ 35v37 431d0D 000000-06Z5-HZT-10

) sasuadx3

000 [zotzeore 00°zES ZET T9VOVEL- oo°zes‘zeT (806’621 00'ss0'6zT | sauejes :|ej0L

o0 00°009°T 00'009'T 00'009'T- 00'009°T 00°005'1- 00'005° ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS+ZT-10
loo'o L6065 00°'2€0' 697812 00'€0' 66'950°C- 000 . LNOANE NOILYIVA 000000-0STS-7ZT-10
000 oo'zss'st 00'2798°8T SE'509°01- 00'Z98'81 lto'6v0°01- 0089612 IWIL L4Yd 000000-0ZTS-HZI-T0
000 TE'SSEYET loogg00TT lzsvro'ss- 00°€€0'0TT TTP06'SIT-  00°'S8S'SOT INILTING M/S 000000-0TTS-HZI-T0

saue|es
UCHEASIUIIPY [e43USD T
PIEOGP3RS  ulwpyumoL  pedHidaq T20ZA4 T20ZA4 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZAd
zzot zz0z zz0t aLAd 198png lenjoy 198png

11813Q - Z20¢ Ad - 193png 199)}||I9M




87 Jo £ abog

00°0

00°00€

8Y'ISL-

[oo-00e

120Z ‘2z j11dy “Aopsinyy

00°0 sz 000 10101
oo ooo loo00e BYTSL- loo‘ooe o8t 000 _ sasuadx3 :|ejo)
oo 000 loo00e [sv1se- loo"00g secgz 000 | ONISILYIAGY 000000-POES-TET-T0
sasuadx3y
291WwWo) 3dueuly  TET
pieoqpaps  wwpyumol  pesHidag TZ0ZA4 TZ0ZA4 020TAd 020ZA4
[44V/4 (44114 (4414 aLAd 198png [en3oy 193png

j1e13q - 220Z Ad - 198png 1991}IIPM



1202 ‘22 14dy “Aopsinyy

8¢ Jo 8 abnd
000 ~ looroos‘es 00°00568 000 00°005"68 oo 00°z0L'0L | 1osor
loo'o ~ [o0'00s’68 00°005'68 000 00°005'68 000 o0zoz'or | sasuadx3 :|eso)
oo 0000568 0000568 000 0000568 000 00'z0L'0L | NN 3A¥IS3Y TOOTTO0-08LS-ZET-TO
sasuadxy
punjaniasey  Z€T
PIEOGIARS  ujwpyumoL  pesHidag T20ZAd 120ZAd 0Z0ZAd 020ZAd
zz0z ze0t 4404 ad 128png lenoy 198png

|'e13Q - 22Z0Z A4 - 198png 199)}||I9M



8£ fo 6 abng 1202 ‘ZZ ydy “Aopsinyy

000 00'058°262 00'8Ls°2L1 90°sp0'se-  [00°8LS'LLT OE'STT'9ST- 00'IT'9sT | ooy

00’0 lo0osa‘se 00°06€°0T [18°026S- 00"06€°0T [evos‘ot- 00°06€°0T | sasuadxy :ew0)

000 looozz 00'0z2 00°SY- o00zz lo'se- 00022 | SAIHSHIANTN/SING 000000-0ELS-GET-T0
00°0 loooot’s 00°00T°T 000 00'00T'T looo 00°00T' ONIDQOT/SIVIW 000000-TTLS-SET-T0
000 loo'00s 00008 000 00008 [ereti- oooos 13AVYL 000000-0T£5-SET-T0
000 000 00'000'T 18'581- Jooooo'T leTostT- 00'000'T $311ddNS 321440 000000-0Z¥S-SET-10
000 000z [oooz ~ |ooo 000z 08'95- 0007 | 39V150d 000000-SYES-SET-TO
000 00°015°T looots't 000 00'0T5°T 00°0ST- 00°015°T ONINIVHL/SHVNIAZS 000000-80£5-SET-T0
000 000 000 Jooost- 000 looo 000 ONISILYIAAY 000000-YOES-SET-T0
00'0 00°000°SE looovss 000 00'0vS'S 00°Z2E's- o000z | DNISSIIONd YL¥A 000000-TOES-SET-T0
000 000 Jooooz loo'ovs‘s- 00°002 00°0v79°€- 00°0VS‘s | SIDIAYIS LOVHLNOD 000000-00E5-5ET-T0

sasuadx3y

00'0 00°00z'652 loo'gsT'z91 SZ'vET'68- loo'ggr’z9T b6°L09°SYT- 00°LZL'SYT sauejes :jejo)

000 000 00002 00°002°e- ~ |oooozz o000tz 000017 . ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06T5-SET-T0
000 000 000  |rresse 000 05'58€°2- 00'0 _ LNOANE NOILYIVA 000000-0STS-SET-T0

000 loo0o0z'6sz 00886791 18'S9€'v8- 00'886'79T Yy Eel YT 00°Lzo'EVT | JWILTINA M/S 000000-0TTS-SET-TO

- _ . saue|jes
JUBUNOIDY  GET
pieoqieEs ulwpyumol peapidag TC0CAd TC0TAd 020ZAd 0202Ad
7207 2707 zzoT alAd 1°8png [enioy 1e8png

|'e12@ - 2ZO0T Ad - 198png 123|4|19M




8£ fo 01 3bnyg

1202 ‘22 jdy “Aopsinyy
00°0 fee'619'96T loo-zzs'z61 [ro'sos‘zs- 00°TZT'S6T S9°E19'8LT- 00°269'8LT 10}
oo0L£€s  [00°02ES lov-zoc's- 00°06'99 lLosLT'08- 000207 | sasuadx3 :jeoy
ooos  ooroos 00°05€- 00005 00°061- 00005 | SAIHSHIGWAN/SINA 000000-0££5-TT-T0
100000 00000 00°0 00'000°'T 59°va8- 00000T DNISAOT/STVAW 000000-TTL5-TT-T0
00'0LE'Z ooz fesies 000z 05052'z- 000022 13AVHL 000000-0TLS-TT-T0
000 00°00 000 00005 10°2r1- 00°00§ $2I1ddNS 321440 000000-0Z1S-TI-T0
000 00°0SS st v9v'T- 00055 oz 6ps- 00055 39V1S0d 000000-S7ES-THT-TO
00000 [oo000'z 00°S61- loo000'z S1881- 000007 ONINIVHL/SYYNIES 000000-80ES-TFT-T0
000 000 Zren 0o 000 000 ONISILYIAQY 000000-¥0ES-THT-TO
00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 00°000'€ 00'006's- loo000'e $3DIA¥3S ONIddYIA €00TT0-00€S-T¥T-T0
000 Jooo 000 00°000°SY 0000Z'67- 0000262 d NOILYATYAIY Z00TTO-00€S-TPT-T0
00°005'v 00°005'v¥ 107107 0002121 ~ loovo0’ot- 0002121 _ SADIAYIS 1OVHLNGD TOOTT0-00€S-THT-T0
. sasuadxy
o0’ £E°60EEVT 00°ZSZEVT [rz'g6s'ae- oo-T8T'szt 86'T90'8T- o0zLs'szt _ sallejes :jeio]
loo'o looszez loo'szLz oo'szy- 00'525°T 00°SLET- 00°'SLE'T _ ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS-T¥T-10
looo eevssiovt 00°£25'0v1 ltz'es1'89- 00°909°s2T 186'980°921- 00°£61SZT | JWNIL TING M/S 000000-0TTS-THI-T0
. sauejes
510SS9SSY  TPI
pleoqidsps ulwpyumol pesny-idaq TZ0ZAd TZ0ZAd 0T0CAd 020ZAd
zeoz [AA4 14 zeot aird 198png |enjoy 198png

[1e39Q - 220¢C Ad - 198png 193|}|I9M




8L fo 1T abngd

I20Z ‘gz judy “Appsinyy

looo ooosc'viz Joosoviove ozTse'’80T-  [o0'sov'ove lteoss Tz 00'e69%eE | oy

loo'0 00'S9EDL  00'ShE'SY 09'952'TT- loosve'sy  [pssselse- 00°STY'EY _ sasuadx :[ejoL

oo loooos‘T looo 000 000 98 YT 00'0 | $334 JAILVHLSININGY 000000-T8LS-S¥T-T0
looo 000007 00000 los'Ts- loo000'z SL'L16'T- 000007 | SIDYYHD YIHLO 000000-08LS-SYT-T0
000 ooooo'se  oooor'y 90°£89'T- 00°00T'Y 00°00T'€- 0000T' _ $994 UIWIPY 1920 000000-0SLS"S¥T-T0
000 00°59¢ Joo'see 0001z 00°S9€ 00°06T- 00'59€ SAIHSY38WIN/SINA 000000-0ELS-S¥T-T0
000 00°000'T Joo'000'T 000 00°000°T £8's88- 000w ONI9QOV/STVAN 000000-TTLS-SVT-T0
000 00008 00008 000 00008 EE'VL0'T- 00°0£5 13AVYL 000000-0TLS-SYT-T0
000 000 0008t sz 00°08v' 060862 00'08v'¢ $3r1ddNS D10 000000-0Z¥S-SHT-10
00 [00000'9 00°005°0T 7TT6E T loooos‘ot S0'968'€- 0000501 | 39V150d 000000-SYES-SVT-T0
000 000011 00001T 000 000013 looos1- 000017 _ ONINIVYL/SHYNINZS 000000-80€S-StT-T0
000 00'00T'E 00°001° |sove- 00001 00°6¢- 00'055'T ONLLNI¥d 000000-£0ES-S¥T-T0
000 000 Joo'o00't oo 000001 00'559- 000 DNISILY3AAY 000000-50ES-S¥T-10
00°0 0000561 loooos'6T 6v°008'S- Joo00s'6T 781261 0000561 S3IDIAY3S LOVELNOD 000000-00€S-SHT-T0

sasuadxy

00°0 00°SBE"70Z 00°09t°€6T 09vZTL6- 00°09t'E6T £0'S07'98T-  00'BL0‘T8T sauejes :|ej0)

000 005251 00°525'T 000 looszs't 00°SLE'T- 00's°T ] ALIAJONOT 000000-06TS-S¥T-T0
000 00'098'202 00°SE6'T61 09'vZT'L6- 00°S£6'T61 ErOER'VBT-  O0E0L'6LT _ INILTING M/S 00D000-0TTS-SPT-T0

sauefes
lainseas]  SpT
PiEOGPAPS  ulpyumoL  pedHidaq TZ0ZA4 T20ZAd 0Z0ZA 0Z0ZAd4
(44314 44114 (44114 QLAd 128png lentoy 198png

11e13Q - 220 Ad - 393png 193}}|I9M



8¢ Jo Zt abng

1202 ‘2Z I1udy “Appsiny]

o0’ |oo000'szT 00'000'sZT t9'ves‘se- 00°000°5ZT £2°666'70T- 00'000'50T | moy
ooo 00000'szT  [00°000'5ZT T19'v88'sz- 00°000°SZT ET'666P0T-  00°000'SOT sasuadx3 fel0L
000 000 000 00'6€2'T- 000 00°887°E- 00'00E'T | SNOILdI¥JSENS/S3NA 000000-0ELS-TST-10
oo 00000521 loo000'szT To'sv9'sz- 00°000's71 €ZTIST0T-  00'00£'€0T | $3IA¥3S Y931 000000-€0S-TST-10
B B sasuadx3y
|e3a71  TST
PIEOGRBIS  ulwpyumol  pedHideq TZ0ZAd T20ZAd 0Z0TAd 0Z0ZA4
zeoe zeoe zeoz a1 18png lenady 1o8png

11e39Q - TZOT Ad - 133png 133}}|I9M



8, fo g1 abod

120Z ‘2z 1ady “Aopsinyy

00'0 [00°005 86T ..8.832 |LL°z06'9z- _S.ccm.wﬂ ”mn.omm.mﬁ- 00°000°€ST _ o104
_oo.o _co.ocmwumﬁ 00°005'86T NR.NcmGN- Joo.oom.amﬂ 9/'095'9¥1- 00'000°€ST _ sasuadxg :jeloL
00’0 00'000'ST [oo0oo'sz B logvorte- ﬁoo.oonN £0'€89'ET- 00°000'ST ANIWIND3 TIVINS 000000-0S85-€ST-T0
000 00°00S 00°00S LT 00°005 looo 00005 $3I1ddNS 301440 000000-0ZS-€ST-10
_oo.o |00"000°2 00'000'4 ¥8°G5EZ- |00-000°L YO'vEY'Y- 000 LINYILNI 000000-TES-EST-TO
000 00°000'66 00'000°66 000 10000066 06'800'2L- 00'€0.°86 (L128) SIDIAYIS LI 000000-90€S-EST-TO
000 00°000°£9 0000029 L8971 00'000°£9 SLVEY'9S- 00°£6L'82 SIDIAYIS LIVHINOD 000000-00£5-€ST-TO

. . sasuadx3y
uonezuaindwo) €91
pie0qlI9jes ulupyumoy peaq-dag TC0ZA4 TZOZAd 0TOTAd 0¢0ZAd
(44074 [44sl4 f44e14 QLlAd 198png 1enldy 128png

11e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199}|I9M




8z Jo vt aboy

1202 ‘2Z pady “Appsinyy
[o00 - ._8.83 l00000'9 e oey'T- 100°000°TT T TE's- 100°000°TT moy
looo lo0-000'9 00°000'9 [zvoey'T- 00°000°TT TeTve's- 00°000'TT | sosuadx :e3oL
|ooo 100°0009 00°000'9 eroey'T- 00°000'11 TLTrE'S 100°000°TT 3SN3dX3 31LIL XYL 000000-60€5-85T-T0
N o sasuadxy
SlLxej 8ST
pieoguaes ulwpyumo)  peayidag TZ0ZAd T20ZAd 020ZM 020ZAd
[44014 44114 zeoe alAd 198png lenpoy 198png

|'e1aq - 220z Ad - 198png 199}}|I9M



8. fo ST 3bng

120z ‘zz jdy “Aopsinyy

oo ETms'n (00°€09'00t £8'865 '€ 00°08+'96 90'8z5°v0- 00°'vYS'Y9 | mox
000 00°0z0'TT 00'020't se'esT'T looozsTt BLETs |00'v6TET sasuadx3 ;e0L
000 00°005 0000s  |ooo ~ Jooroos 05'96- 00°005 ] SAIHSY3EWIW /53Na 000000-0ELS-TIT-TO
000 00°00€ 00°00€ ~ |ooo 00'00€ 00'S62- 00'00€ _ 3ui3pol / sjeaw 000000-T1L5-19T-10
000 00°005'T |oo00s'T looo 00°005'T SE'E6T- oovz8T | 3ABL 000000-0TLS-T9T-T0
00°0 00°005'T looo0s't 000 00°00S'T 000 00007 | ONIGNIBNO0S ¥431D NMOL 000000-0855-T9T-T0
000 000 00°005 15'622- 0000s  [eLee 00°00S $3M1ddNS 3140 000000-0ZYS-TIT-T0
000 000 00°05 £8'2- 000 SzTE- 000 | 39V1S0d 000000-SYES-T9T-10
000 00°020' Joo0zo't 000 00°020'T 00°0£1- 000201 | ONINIVYL/SHYNINIS 000000-B0ES-TIT-T0
000 00°00z'€ 0000¢°€ v0'€08- 00°000'€ 96'vb'z- 00°000° | S30IAY3S LVYINOD 000000-00€5-T97-T0
000 00°000°€ 00°00S° 00°S61'T- 00°005'€ 00°S61°T- 00005 m SMYTAS Y4310 000000-1625-T91-T0

) . sasuadx3

€1'vS8'90T 00°e€5'88 |strsve‘e- 00°099'v8 8z'v00'09- 00°0SE‘TS | sape|es :|e3oL

00'000T [ooooo‘t 000 00'000°T looszi- o0000'T aN3dILS 000000-S6TS-T9T-10

00°629'01 00'629'0T 876671 00TEY' 75'929't- 00'0 awi| Bed 000000-0Z15-T9T-10

EU'sze'se 00'v06°92 LTov0'LeE- 00'62Z'vL 970225 00°05€'0S ANILTING M/S 000000-0TTS-T9T-T0

sajeles
M umol 19T
PleogaRs  unwpyumol  peaHideq T20ZAd T20ZAd 020ZAd 020ZAd
[44\14 Tz0z 720t alrd 1°8png |enloy 198png

1'e3aq - 220¢ Ad - 193png 193}|I9M



8¢ fo 91 abod 1202 ‘2Z j4dy ‘Aopsinyy

000 00°8€8'01 oo-ozt'ot evo6e's- 00'sEL'TT 15°205'TT- 00°p0S‘TT | im0y
00°0 jooazs’e loo'8so’z log-ass‘9- 00°00z'9 [eorse9’s- 00°'¥8T'9 | sasuadx3 :|ej0L
oo looroor boooy  [soziz 00°00Y EL°L0Z- oooge $3M1ddNS 4004 000000-06¢5-Z9T-10
000 000007 00°000° 6T°TZe- 00°000°T 20166 00°000'T $3MddNS 301440 000000-02YS-Z9T-10
000 00009 007887 0£'69%'T- 00°00€‘T STLE9- 00'00€'T 39V1S0d 000000-S¥E5-29T-10
o0 [ loovzst 67'990'T- 000007 orzes- 00°000' Sunuld 000000-£085-29T-10
oo Joozszz loo'esz' 00'885°€- 000057 oegos - 00552 S30IAY3S LOVHLNOD 000000-00£5-29T-10
) sosuadxy
oo [oo'zg0 00°z90° t5este- 00'5€5'S 68'998°- 00°0Z€'S sajJe[es :|ej0)
o0 00'0s€ 00°05€ 00's521- o0 ooo. 00'05€ QN3dILS 000000-S6TS-Z9T-T0
looo 007TLZ oozie'e les'8s0'e- 00'5€s's l68'998'1- 00°0L6'Y AL L¥Vd M/S 000000-0ZTS-Z9T-T0
a sauejes
suojensifay/suondaly  z9t
PleOgIaPsS  unupyumoL  pesH3daq TZ0ZA4 T20ZAd 020ZM 0Z0TA4
720t Teoe (444 alAd 198png |enjoy 198png

]1e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 1931}1I9M



8L fo /1 3bnd

TZ0Z ‘2Z judy ‘“Abpsinyy

00’0 00°08€'E ooog9’e leg'6sz't- boogs’e \Lozrs- l00'0€9'€ 19101

00'0 00°08€E 00"0E9'E leg'652'T- 000£9' tozrs- 0009 sasuadxj jejoL
oo 00°00€ 00°00€ 00°€9Z- 00°00€ os'zez- 00°00€ SNOILJINDSANS/S3NA 000000-0ELS-TLT-T0
oo 000 0000z 000 o000z oo o000z | 13AVYL TOOTTO-0TLS-TLI-T0
000 lovosz'z 00005’ ST'8I9- 00°00S'T [ezvvs 00005 $311ddNS G314 000000-085S-TLT-T0
000 oocosz  looosz [zse6T- 00'0sZ 99481 00052 sa|iddng 2040 000000-02YS-TLT-T0
000 000 00°0€S 000 looogs ozTZS- 000gS | 39VLSOd 000000-SVES-TLT-T0
00'0 ooosy looosy Jooo ooosv 000 00°05t ONINIVYL/SYYNINZS 000000-80ES-TLT-T0
oo 0001 looost 000 00°0ST oo ooost 8unuLg 000000-L0ES-TLT-T0
00’0 000 oo0sz 9T'S8T- 000sz €061y~ _00°0sz | ONISILYIAQY 000000-7OES-TLT-T0

sasuadx3y
uoneAsasuo) LT
pieogpaes  ulwpyumol  pesHidaq 120ZAd TZ0TA 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZA4
zeoe zeoe zzoz QLA 198png lemay 193png

[1e39Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199} I9M



87 Jo 8T abogd

1202 ‘2Z [1dy ‘Aopsimyy

o

looo loosso’s 00°s€v'0T BT loosevot SETEV'OT- 00'sev'0T | pmsox
000 oo'sso’s oosev'ot se'182'- loo'sev'or S6°ZEV0T- 00°sEY0T | sasuadx3 :jejo)
oo 00'SET 00°'S€T 000 oo'set 000 00°SET | suodiosqNS/saNa 000000-0£S0£1-T0
000 000 |ooo0e Sg'IE 00'00€ ET°685" jo0'00€ | $311ddNS 31440 000000-0ZYS7LT-T0
000 00°0 00055 000 00055 oL '€6¢- 00055 | 39V150d 000000-5¥ESPLT-TO
000 000547 00'05£T 000 000547 0005£T- 00051 . Sujures| 13 UOREDNP3 00000-BOESHLT-TO
000 000021 000071 000 000021 000021~ 00002 8unuld 000000-LOES¥LT-T0
000 Jooo 000051 00°0 00°00S'T Z1005T- 000051 ONISILYIAQY 000000-0ES+LT-T0
oo 00000 00°000° 00°0Sz'z- 00:000° 000005~ 00'000°S S3DIAIBS 10R1UOD 000000-00ESLT-T0
sasuadxy
pieog Suluueld L1
Pieogaes  ulwpyumol  peaHidsg TZ0ZA4 TZ0ZA4 0Z0TAd 0Z02A4
[4414 (4474 A4V alnd 388png {enzoy 198png

|1819@ - 2207 Ad - 193png 133|j||IaM



8¢ Jo 61 abiod T20Z ‘ZZ 1dy “Aopsiny)

00°0 oosoe  oogssT esvvo't- ooase' lo'vsLT- ooess't | mer
000 00°90€ Joorese't E8rr0'T- 00°95£'T ogvsL'T- 00'95£' _ sasuddx3 :jer0L

000 0092 009z looo 00'92 05°E€E- 00'9L ] SAIHSY3GNIN/SING 000000-0E£S-9LT-T0
000 0008 0008 loo'o looos 90Ts 0008 _ [AeJL 000000-0TZ5-9LT-T0
000 000 00052 1s€6l-  000se L96YT- 00'052 | saiddns 320 000000-0Z75-921-T0
00° 000 00°00 Sb'799- locaoz |se6sT'T- 0000Z | 39Y1SOd 000000-StES-9LT-TO
000 00'0S 00'05 000 loo'0s 000 0005 ] 8ulujel) '3 UOREINPI ODDD0O-BOES-9LT-TO
000 00'00T 00'00T 00'0 looroot 000 00'00T _ 8uRuIId 000000-£0€5-9£1-T0
looo 000 00'005 (8'88T- 00005 89°09€- lo0'00s . ONISILYIAQY 000000-¥0E5-9LT-T0

sasuadxz
sjeaddy jo pieog 8uluoz 9/T
pleoqpaias  ulwpyumo] pesHdaq TZ0TA TCOTA 0Z0CAd 0¢0TAd
(44114 [44014 [AA114 dlAd 198png Jenoy 198png

11839Q - TZOT Ad - 133png 133§||I9M




8£ Jo 0z 3bpqg

I20Z ‘22 judy ‘Abpsinyy
00’0 |oo00s't Joooos't 000 00005’ lo006¥'T- 00°00s° | oL
_oo.o |ov-00s'T loo-00s‘t 00°0 J_.S.Sm; |ooost'T- booosT | sasuadx3 :jejog
000 00005 00005 000 00005 00°06v- 00°00S Sunuud 000000-L0ES-£LT-T0
[ooo 00°000°1 00°000°T 000 00°000°T 00°000°T- 00°000'T | $BDIAISS 19841U0D 000000-00ES-£LT-T0
B - sasuadxy
991MwWwo) aseds uadpo  Z/1
PJeOqIR|3S  ulwpyumol  peaHideg 120ZAd TZ0TAd 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZAd
720t ze0e 7202 aLAd 198png (eMPy 198png

j'e13q - 2202 Ad - 193png 193[}|I9M




8¢ fo 1z abnd 120z ‘2z judy ‘Aopsiny|
loo"o lo000v' o000z 00°007°T- 00°00£' (00002°- 000057 | imou
oo 000 loo"o0e 000 loo00e 000 00°00¢ _ sasuadx3 :|ejoL
0o looo 0000€ 000 00'00€ looo 00°008 | Sa0IAIBS 10BAUOD 000000-00ES-BLT-T0
N ‘ sasuadx3
000 0000z o000’z l00002'T- loo oo’z loo00z'z- ooo0zz | sale|eg :|ej0).
000 loooov'z oo0ov'z 0000z loooor o000z ‘e- 00002'z | aN3dILS 000000-S6TS-BLI-T0
sajsejes
uapiepy SUIBH  8/ZT
pIeoqaPEs  ulwpyumol  pesHdag 12074 T207Ad 020ZAd 0Z0ZAd
20T zeoz zz0z aLAd 198png lenoy 198png

[1e19Q - ZZ0T Ad - 198png 1931} I9M




8¢ Jo zz abod 1202 ‘zZ 1dy “Aopsinyy

osvee'ssz  |00'985'89Z  [szeveTET  l0ossviest (19w o0E9WT | oy
00'095'82 100090°6Z 88781 00°090'6¢ 97'69€'T2- 0002912 _ sasuadx3 :jel0L
[oooooz o000’z 000 000 00' 2Tz 00000 _ AINIWAINDA TIVS 000000-0585-6£T-T0
0o'ovy 0o'ovy 000 looovy 00°0TE- 00°002 " SAIHS¥38WIW/SINA 000000-0EL5-6LT-T0
00°05€ 0o'0se orzel- [oo0sE 0989 000SE “ 13AVYL 000000-0TLS6L1-10
000021 0000z [STLUT- 00002 60'786- ovoo0'T | IWSOAINN 000000-Z855-6£1-10
00008 00°008 152LT- 000087 o 1sy'1- 00°0s¢ $311ddNS ¥3HLO 000000-T8S5-6L1-10
00'000'T 00'000' 000 000001 t9ve- 000001 5334 ¥3HLO 000000-0855-61-T0
00'00£'8 00°00£'8 S6'9LT'T- 00°00L8 YO'SSL-  00'00Z'S 135310/INFOSVD Z00TT0-08YS6LT-TO
00°002  Jooooe 00'0 0000z £6'591- 00°00t | $3MddNS IDIHIA TO0TT0-08YS-6£1-T0
000 00008 00°008 v6'691- 00008 vS06T'T- 00009 $3MddNS INIVN/IVA3Y 000000-0EVS-6LT-T0
00°0 00°009 00009 LEEOV- 00009 28'899- 00°00s $3MddNS D140 000000-02¥S-6£1-10
000 ooozt 000zt og LT 00°0zt 69261 e 39V1S0d 000000-SrES-6LT-T0
000 000022 00'002°z L' looovz'z 9v'698'T- 00002 INOHJI 3L 000000-0VES-6LI-10
000 00°00€'T 00'00€'T 000 looooe‘t 00°0TT- 00'008 ONINIVYL/SHYNINIS 000000-80ES-6LT-T0
000 00059 00059 |s090% 00°059 weze 00059 ONILNI¥d 000000-£0ES-6LT-T0
000 000 o000 68'8T- 00005 or'ssz- 00002 B ONISILYIAQY 000000-¥0ES-6LT-10
000 00°05t'E ooosv'e 8vL9v- 000sv'E 8°660°c- 00050z S301AY3S LOVYLNOD 000000-00€S-6L1-10
000 00'0SLY Joooszv 000 0005L'y Jeerore- 00000% | S30IAY3S NIVW/IVd3Y 000000-0v2S-6L1-10
. sasuadxg
000 0s'vL2'952 00'9zS'6ET  [1£'99L°zT-  00'86E'0ET wzogorz-  oo'eso'ozz | sauefes :|ej0)
00'0 00°00T 000062 oo ‘e- 000067 loooos'z- oooorz | ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS-6£1-T0
000 000 00'6€8'L 000 00'€06°9 TEIv5's- 00'8TSE LNOANE NOILYIVA Z00TT0-0£156L1-T0
000 000008 |oo'saL's  [tg'sseT- [oov0'e 89'8LE'G 000 | AVAIOH M/S TO0TTO-0LTS-6L1-T0
[ooo 00'€09'€ |oog0g'e 6T SV T- 00°£0S° le60Lz'2- oots | 3NILYIAO M/S 000000-0ETS-6£1-T0
000 00°09702 00'68602 OTYSLZ 00'sessT Jos'eL0'81- 00°097°6T | JWIL L4Yd M/S 000000-0ZTS-6LT-T0
oo 0sTT6'T2Z 00°0€p'86T 97018201 |00'0Er'96T 6T's60'00z-  00'vos’s6T | JNILTINS M/S 000000-OTTS-6LT-TO
sauejes
Ysldys 641
PIeOgIIRPS  Ulwpyumol  peaHIdag TZ0ZAd 120ZAd 0Z0TAd 0Z0ZAd
44074 4474 ze0t aLAd 123png fenoy 128png

jle1aq - 20T Ad - 198png 193)}|I9M



8s fo £z abnd

1202 ‘2z p4dy “Aopsinyy

oo 00000’ boooo'tz  JozseeTt- l00°000'9 06'sEE"DT- 00°000'2 | moy
) loo000's 0000012 lozsz9't1- 00°000°9 o6°see'9T- 00°000°72 sasuadx3 :jel0)
000 000 00700001 Joo'o000t- 000 VE'SE6'S- 00°000°1 | HOLIND 000000-T8SS-08T-T0
looo 00'000°9 loo000‘tt orse9T- 00'000'¢ 95°00v°0T- 00'000'6 ] $3I1ddNSs 34N1INIVNDY 000000-0855-08T-T0
) sasuadx3
uonesedoid ysyjidys 08T
pieoqalRs  ulwpyumo) peaH1dag TCOCAd TC0CAM 070ZAd 0Z0ZAd
zz0z zz0e zz0t QLA 198png (enzoy 1e8png

[1e33Q - 220T A4 - 198png 1991} I9M




8¢ Jo vz abind

1207 ‘gz judy “Aopsinyy

000

loo-oot

loo"oot

o0 |oo-o0t 000 00°0S | o0y
00’0 o001 o000t looo o000t 000 000§ _ sasuadx3 :jeo)
looo 00'001 o000t oo oo oot loo'o 0008 | 8unuud 000000-LOES-T8T-T0
B sasuadxy
29nIwwo) AIOSIAPY Ysiyjlays  T8T
pieoqrepes  ulwpyumol peaH-1dag Te0TA3 TZ0TAd 0Z20ZMd 020ZAd
zzoT zeor (444 aLAd 198png lenioy 128png

[1833Q - 220¢C A4 - 393png 193}}|19M




87 Jo sz abny

120z ‘zz jdy “Aopsinyy
oo oa-000‘0t 00°000°0T oo Joo-o0o'0r lo0'c00‘01- 00°000°0T | moy
oo loo000°01 100°000°0T 000 00°000°0T 00°0000T- 00°000°0T | sasuadxg ;jejoL
000 ~ Jooooo'or looooo‘ot 000 00°000°0T 00°000°01- 00°000°01 _ SIDIAYIS LOVHINOD 000000-00£S-Z8T-T0
- . sasuadxy
22JaWwo) jo 1aquey)  z8T
PIEOROBSS  uWpYUMOL  pesH1dag T20ZA T20ZAd 0Z0TAd 0Z0ZA4
zeo0z zeoz (44114 QLA 198png fenjoy 198png

[1e19Q - 2Z0T Ad - 133png 193|}|19M




8¢ fo 9z abind 120Z ‘2z jdy ‘“Aopsinyy

00'0 00'050' 00°0ST'T oo oorosT's loo'o 00°0ST'T | moy
000 00°050°T 00'0sT'T looo o00sTT 00’0 00'0ST'T I sasuadx3 :[e30)
000 loo'o loo'00t 000 00°00T looo 00°00T sa|1ddng 22140 000000-0Z1S-E8T-10
000 loo'0so'T [oo0s0'T 000 00'050'T oo 00'050°'T S30IAISS 10BIUOD 000000-00ES-E8T-TO
sasuadxy
pieog AIOSIADY 924N0S3Y [BINlEN €8T
pleogpaes  ulwpyumol  pesHadag 1202Ad TZ0TA4 0Z0ZM 0Z0ZM
720t [A4114 (44114 alnd 198png [enoy 198png

[1e13Q - ZZ0Z Ad - 193png 199)}||I9M



8L fo £z abng

1202 ‘22 [dy ‘Aopsinyy

000 loooos'v 00°000° szzieT loo000's oe'se6'-  00'000°s | moy
loo'o 00’008y 00°000° [szzieT 00°000' 0E°666't- 00°000'S ) | sasuadx3 :|ejo)
oo Joo0 00002 000 00002 loo0 00002 | s91ddng 891130 000000-0ZYS-68T-T0
looo loo008'y loooos'y STTIET 00008y 0€'666'7 o008y | SA0MIBS 10BIILOD 00D000-00ES-68T-T0
B T sasuadx3y
Auoyiny Suisnoy 68T
PiEOgS3S  ulwpyumol  peayidag 1202Ad 120ZAd 020ZA4 0Z0TA4
7207 7707 720T alAd 198png [en3oy 198png

[1e13Q - ZZ0Z Ad - 193png 193} I9M



8/ fo 8z abvg

1Z0Z ‘gz pady “Aopsinyy

00'0 00°000°7T 00°005°98 les'ste's- 0000591 loo000°t1- 000507t | oL
000 00°000'%T 0000591 es's1L'6- 0000597 00°000'vT- 00°050°VT _ sasuadx3 :jejoL
000 000 00°005° r616'T- loo'oosz 00'000°- 000507 39Y150d 000000-S¥ES-S6T-T0
000 00°000°1 0000051 18562t 00000%T  |00°000'Z1- 00°000'ZT ONLLNI¥d 000000-L0ES-S61-T0
B sasuadxg
sjuesiepy/uoday umo) S6T

pieogpaPs  ulwpyumol  peayidaq TZ0ZA4 T20ZAd 0Z0TAd 0Z0zZA4

[£4014 720z zz0T QlAd 108png [en3oy 198png

['e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199} I9M




8/ fo 6z abng

T20Z ‘TZ I14dy ‘Abpsinyy

00'0 00'000°0Z 00°000°02 oo Jooooo'oz e£'666'61- 00'000'0Z | imoy
loo'o 00000’z oo°0o0’0z jooo joo"000°0z eE'666'6T- 000000 | sasuadx3 :jejo)
looo loo000'0z lo0000°0¢ oo Jovooo'oe [ee'666%6T- 0000002 _ $3IAY3S LOVHLNOD 000000-00€S-961-T0
_ sasuadxg
foueynsuoy 967
PIEOGBPS  ulwpyumol  pesHidaq T20ZAd 12024 020ZAd 0Z0TA4
44114 2202 T20z alAd 198png Jenioy 198png

|1e12Q - ZZ0T Ad - 198png 193|||9M



8¢ fo o€ 3bnd 1Z0Z ‘2z judy ‘“Aopsinyy
000 |ooo0s*s loo-o00's S0°L81°C- 00°000°S mmm.nmm.m- 00'000°s INOHJ3131 000000-0v€S-012-TO
000 looo0z'T 00°002°T 000 o000t 000 o000zt | NOILVSILSIANI ON¥Q 000000-0ZE6-0TZ-T0
000 00°00% oo oov looo 0000 Jooogz'e- 00'00¥ ] SIDIAY3S TWDIQIN 000000-TTES-0TZ-T0
000 00°00L 00'00L lsTege- ooz 20821 00°002 ONLLNI¥d 000000-L0ES-0TZ-T0
looo looo 00°00€ v0"vor- 00°00€ lovist- 00'00€ ONISILYIAQY 000000-¥0ES-0TZ-10
000 000 000  ooote'e- 000 lveessz 000 ONINIVHL/SHYNINZS 000000-TOES-0TZ-T0
000 loo000sT loo"000'sT 0zYS8T-  |00'000°0T ee'szo't- 00°000° | S3DIA¥3S LOVHLNOD 000000-00€5-0TZ-10
looo 000051 000051 07’2811 001005'T £6'866" 000051 | 35v31 43140 000000-1625-01Z-10
000 00°07£'0€ 000 000 000 000 000 wesB0.q e1awe) Apog / 95837 000000-0£25-0TZ-10
000 00°000°0T 00°000°01 66615 0o'sez'ot [ezvze- 00°SELL | SIIDIHIA AYIS LNIVIN/HIVAIY 000000-Z2S-0TZ-T0
looo 00005 00005 96'651'¢- 000 LrssLz- 00005 _ SIDIAYIS LNIVIN/¥IVAIY 000000-0725-0TZ-T0
sasuadxgy

000 BLEOTSS'T  [00TLYbLST  [I6BTESTL  O'EGELLY'T  [yS'EBO'EEVT-  000GT'EOVT | sajiees :jejoL

000 looosv'et boosy'zt 00v01'z- 00'09¢' loo9t8’z- 00029 | JALLNIONI NOILYONGE 000000-7615-0TZ-10
000 00'000°1 00°000°ZT loooo0's- 000001 l00000'6- 00'000°01 | FONVMOTIV INMOAINN M/S 000000-€615-0TZ-10
000 00000 00000t |o00 00'000' 00°005T- 00°000°€ | 1no3so¥d/anL03L3a aNadILs 000000-26T5-0TZ-10
000 00'000'8 lo0000'8 Jooossr- 00°0vt'9 000VE'TT- 000022 | ALIAZONOT M/S 000000-06TS-0TZ-T0
000 000 000 log'910'T- 000 L9150 000 | INIL 318NOA/ SLNIAT D3dS 000000-9¥TS-0LZ-T0
000 00°000'5 loo000sz 0z0gTs- 00000S  |9S760'8T- 0000057 ] ANILYIAO/ SLNIAT T¥1D3dS 000000-STS-0TZ-TO
00'0 00'£55°E€ 00'£55E€ £7'689'8- 00'085°2€ [z0ze5'sz- 00'965'0¢ ] AVAIIOH M/S 000000-€71S-0TZ-10
000 looao0’z 00°000°¢ 00055 00°000° 000088 000 DUVHI NI ¥3213H0 M/$ 000000-THIS-0TZ-T0
000 00'v90°zT loopso'zt 00°6vZs- 00'790'ZT 090196~ 0090t WILN3¥343I0 LHOIN M/S 000000-0¥TS-0TZ-T0
looo 00°000°2T 0000021 ov'80s- 000 79851 000 Bulufes | 3SNOK-U| 000000-EETS-0TZ-10
000 00°000°0ST 00000051 Sv60ETY- 00000°0ET v6'881'201-  00'0000ZT JNILYIAO M/S 000000-0ETS-0TZ-10
000 000005 000 000 000 0o o0 awiL Hed M/$ 000000-0Z15-0TZ-T0
000 000059 00'005°9 000 oooos's oo 000059 QYVND DNISSOYD TOOHIS 000000-8T15-01Z-10
000 000052 00°005° ee'sve- 000002 OT'9vE‘T- 000002 NOMLYINl M/S 000000-£T1S-01Z-10
00'0 000000 0000002 [vrEsETs 00000001 75'695'€9- 00°000°0L SVID3dS M/S 000000-9TTS-0TZ-T0
000 000 000 95°0€T'6- 0012901 oLeLz's 000 | 3WIL¥3A0 ONINIVHL 3SNOH NI 000000-TTTS-0TZ-T0
000 BLTOT'ROCT  (00TZE0ZZT  OEE6TYSS  (00BLT6TIT  [T919609TT  000SOTT | JNLL TINA M/S 000000-0TTS-0TZ-T0

saue[es
Nlod 0T
pieoqises  ulpyumoj pesaH-idag T20ZA T20ZM 020z 0¢0TAd
zzot zzot C£4174 QLA 198png lenjoy 198png

j1e13Q - 220 Ad - 198png 199}|IPM




8. Jo 1€ abog

1Z0Z ‘22 I1dy “Aopsinyy

000 Breco'osst  [007zE'9TsT  [BST6ETIL  00'SZOS09T  [Z9SOB'LIST-  O0'SIETIST | ioiol

oo 00°0T8'Z8T 00°006°TST \L9°z9v'or- 0O'SETZZT  BoTZLMYT- 00°SE9'8TT | sesuadx3 :je3o)

000 00°000°8 00°000'8 s618  [000009 €8'026'6- 00°000°9 ANINAIND3 TIVINS 000000-0585-0TZ-T0
000 00°000°F 00°000°F 00°0¥9't- 000007 |ogzo8's- 00°000'F SNOILJI¥DSBNS/SINA 000000-0ELS-0TZ-T0
000 00'000'81 00°000°81 o0 00000ST JooBLs‘e- 00°000°0T ONINIVH1/uoneanp3 000000-ZTLS-0TZ-T0
000 00°000'ZT 000001 00'0 0000008 L8906 000000 | S1S00 AW3QYDY 000000-TT£S0TZ-10
000 000057 00005 lezzer- 000 IEEIE 00°005"T ONISQOT/STVIN Z00TTO-0TLS0TZ-10
000 00005 00005 esvLL 00°005°E [esvov'- o000z 13AVHL TO0TTO-0TLS-0TZ-T0
000 00°000'% 00'000'% E0°66T Y 000 58'088'0T- 00°000°Y (3NYMOTIV) WHOAINN 000000-€8SS-01Z-10
000 ou 00’y 00°000°Y 6570L'9- 00005 [scsev'e- 00000 ] wawidinb3 - SWYO4INN 000000-Z855-0TZ-10
000 00000 00'000' 8T9LE- l00000° lorssts- 00°000° $3M1ddNS ONINIVYL 000000-0855-0TZ-T0
000 00°005°z o000sz |00 00°000° ST2zs- cvoosz | $3I1ddNS LNIVIN/4Ivd3Y 000000-0vSS-0T2-T0
000 000057 000057  |te'se6- 00°005' TSSLY'L 000057 $311ddNS WDIA3N 000000-0055-01Z-T0
000 00007 0000z 000 0000z 000 0000z ] Q004 000000-06¥5-0TZ-T0
000 00°000'SE 00°000'E TEL09' 00°000°sE Ly LIY'ET 00°000°S€ 135310/3NMNOSYD Z00T10-08S-01Z-10
000 oozt Jooo00’zs 61'807's- 000 |es-608'€T- 000052 B $311ddNS 1DIHIA TO0TTO-08YS-0TZ-T0
00 00'00s's 00°005' L9619 00005 96292t 00005°S $31ddNS 301440 000000-0Z7S-01Z-10
oo 00009 00009 z€'L85- 00009 sz'sze- 00009 B 39V150d 000000-SES-0TZ-T0

pieoqpaps  ulwpyumol pesHdaq TC0ZAd TT0ZA 020CAd 020ZAd
44924 zzot zeoe alAd 198png [emoy 198png

[1e13Q - Z20C Ad - 193png 193}}|19M




8L jo zg abingd

TZ0Z ‘2Z fdy ‘Aopsinyy

00°0 BE0TT'EEY _8.%59 be'8EL'86T- .To.sw.ms _wm.os.ﬁm. ..oo.eum.nwm io301

000 loooosze Joo00s'ze [evoscor- Joooorsz €0TIYOT- 00°00£Z2 sasuadx :je30L

000 00°00% 00°00% _oo.ﬁm. 00°00t oo £0€- 00°007 SAIHSY3aWIW/SINA 000000-0E£5-51Z-10
00'0 [00°000'T 00°000'T looo 000 log'6z1- 00'00T ONIDAOV/SIVAN ZOOTTO-0TLS-SEC-TO
00'0 00'00S' 00°005°T |00'0 00°009 08'€9- 00'005 13AVYL TO0TI0-0TL5-TZ-T0
000 00°005°T |oo'00st jooot- 00°005°T |8reoe- 00°005'T 3 saiddng 22110 000000-0ZtS-STZ-T0
000 00°00T 00°00T 000 00°001 00'0 00'00T a8e150d 000000-SYES-STT-TO
000 00'000'€ 00'000°€ 000 00°00S'T 00'855'T- _ao.oa ONINIVYL/SHYNIWIS 000000-80€S-STZ-T0
loo'o loo'ooo‘oe 00°000°0€ [evgzo'ot- 00'000'22 ls£'080'81- 00'000°02 SIDIAYIS LIVYLNOD 000000-00€5-5T2-T0

B i o sasuadx3

00'0 '8€°019'56€ 00'680°26€ .Nm.sm.sﬂ.l |00°z95‘08¢ ls6'829'ss€- 00'v99'59¢ sajiefes ‘jejoL

000 00°000°T 00°000°T 000 00°000'T 000 00000 A¥d JAILNIONI 000000-€6T5-5TZ-10
loo'o 00°00S 00°005 000 00'00S 000 00'0 SWYOLINN 000000-Z6TS-5TZ-T0
[oo0 ”."8.83 00°000"7 00008t loo'000'% 00'000"t- 000007 JONVMOTIV INJOHINN 000000-T6TS-STZ-T0
oo 100005 00'005'S 00°009'T- 0Ly 00'SzL'- 000027 ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-061S-STZ-T0
_.oﬂo - 002286 0028’6 87'826'C- 00'9£8°8 vTT6L L 00'T61°8 AVQAINOH M/S 000000-0£TS-STZ-T0

000 loo"005° 100°005'S 00'€59'2- 00°005'S 00°Z05's- 00'005'S IVILNIY3441d LHOIN M/S 000000-TFIS-STZ-T0

00'0 looo 000 000 000 oetty- 000 — (10d) 3WILYIAO M/S 000000-0TS-STZ-T0

000 00'PEE'E 00'pEE'E os°z59- 00'S61°2 |...~m.8m.~. 00'0 1 ONINIVYL ISNOH NI M/S Z0OTTO-SETS-STZ-T0
000 00°000'ST lo0-000'sT vE YT TT- o000s‘ET (P TL6'ST- 00'SLETT $43113¥ M/S 000000-TETS-STZ-T0

000 00°Z28'LY 00'2Z8'LYy OT'€L0'YT- 00'2Z8'vr SLYYR'8T- 00°0v8'sy JNILYIAO M/S TOOTTO-0€1S-GTC-T0

.o|o.o 00°005°T 00'005°C 87708 loocoog't oroty'z- 00°008'T QW3/LIN3 M/S 000000-0€TS-STZ-T0

000 8€'L79'00E 00°901'20€ lorzes‘tr1- 00'665'€62 Tosoes'esz- oo'ssc'ose | JNIL TIN M/S 000000-0TTS-5T2-T0

souejes
yajedsig/suonediunwiwio) STe
pieoqlisjas  ulwpyumo] peaydag TZ0ZA TZOZA 020ZA4 0Z0ZAd
ze0T [4{0r4 (44174 alAd 1edpng |enjoy 188png

[1e19q - 220 Ad - 193png 199}}|IoM




8Z fo g€ abog 120z ‘22 Iudy “Anpsinyy

00°00S"ET 00°00S'ET 20°160%- 00°€88°07 726561 00°000°9T | $311ddNS TIIIHIA [25910/5U110SED 000000-08S-0ZZ-T0
looroor 00°00% 000 |oo-oor 000 000 ] ONLLNI¥d 000000-TZv5-02Z-10
00000 00°000° [sz689- 00'000°€ v0900°z- 00°000°€ — $3MddNS 321440 000000-0Z¥S-0ZZ-10
00°56 00's6y 00°8¢- 00°s6¥ el 00°09% 39104 000000-SPES-0Z2-T0
oo018'1 00'0T8°7T £8'996'5- 00°0TL'6  [sovso's- 000056 . 3INOHAIT3L 000000-0¥ES-0ZZ-T0
ozet'e o0'LLT'E 00'650'T- 00°000°€ 006EL T 00°00£°€ — $30IAY3S WIIQIW 000000-TTES-022-T0
00000°ST  |00°000°ST 8Y'TL6'S Joo00o'st Z8706'ST-  00'005°9T b ONITIE IINVINGAY TOOTT0-L0ES-0ZZ-T0
000 00°095' 000 00°095°T 06T10°T- 00°095° ONISILY¥IAQY 000000-POES-0ZZ-T0
00'sTYLE looserze 78'898'LT- Po'seove vr'9LL'62- |_8.mﬁm.mm ] $30IAY3S 1OVYLNOD 000000-00E5-0ZZ-10
0005512 Jooosstz 8O TZY'S- 00 16°9LLET- 00'005'6T SIDIAYIS LNIVIN/HIYAIY 000000-Tv2S-07Z-T0
000059 000059 ls5°558°T- 0000522 SOPR'E- 000059 _ $3MddNS INIVIN/4Ivd3y 000000-0vZS-022-10
sasuadx3y
BREECVIET  [00°L6E°VTBT  66°LBTTLL 00'TES'YST  BTOTLTEV'T-  00°668'TIST | sajees :jejol
loooor'z 00°00%° 00°000°S- 0000t lo0009- 00008 | 11e3 - Avd JALLNIINI SO0TTO-E6TS-02Z-10
00°606'vT 00°606'6T 000 00°606'6T [9°(85'TT- 00°606'61 ANINIIM/AVA M/S 7OOTTO-T6TS0ZZ-T0
000 000 00°0EE"v- 00'680'T€ 0009572  00009L'Sy | T2 SNNY IONVINGINY M/S E00TTO-T6T5-022-10
00°TE0'TL loten'zs 05'06€'z- 00'zv6'OY 97'8v6'87- 00°952°ZS TIVD AND53H/34I4 M/S ZOOTTO-T6T$-022-T0
00°002'SE lo000s'z€ 00°€zL'L 00°00z'sE 9y'6TL'9T- 000096 | TIVI/ANIdILS M/S TOOTTO-T615-022-10
00°056° 00°056'9 0000T'€- 000099 oo00s"e- 00°000°9 ALIAZONOT M/S 000000-06T5-0¢2-10
00'000°L 00000 000 loco00'z 00°000°9- ovoooor | 1/4 puadns NOILYING3 ¥O0TTO-0LIS-0ZZ-10
Jooo 000 000 00°09€’9 9£'Z8E'- 00'09€9 | QN3dILS HITY3H €00TTO-0LTS-0Z2-10
000 00TrT9 000 ooTeL’s 72°8L9°S- 00°TET'S . LNOAVd NOLLYIVA M/S ZOOTTO-0Z1S-022-10
0009169 Joco9t's9 9518592 0075209 Sy €596 00°96£'99 AVANOH M/S TOOTTO-0L1S-022-10
000 . 000 92°€0- 000 le6'250°T- 000 ] TIVJ INIL 318N0A M/S 000000-€€TS-02Z-10
looo 000 86'95T'Z- 000 8'€07'8- 00°0 B 1/4 3NIL 378N0A M/S FOOTTO-0ETS-0ZZ-10
looo 000 760111 000 L0'T80'T- 000 TI¥D IWILYIAO M/S E00TTO-0ETS-022-10
000 looo vOZEE'T 000 L8'EEV'ET- 000 . 1/4 ONINIVHL 1/0 M/S T00TT0-0£TS-02¢-T0
00'092'7vE  00'09LYSE E£T'SEL'06T- 00°66°L9€ les'0z0'TL2- 00'SE€'987 1/4 INILYIAO M/S TOOTTO-0ETS-0ZZ-10
00'886'87 looo lsorot9- 000 000 000 SHYNIW3S H/d M/S 000000-ZTTS-07Z-T0
BESEBTVTT  [D0OY'ESZT  [Z0TILOS- loo'£81°996 9E768'786° 00°75€020°1 IWILTING M/S 000000-0TTS-02Z-T0
salie|es
alld  07¢
pieoqiasjes ulwpyumoj peaH1daqg TZOTAd T20ZA 0Z0ZAd 0202Ad
720 ze0T zz0z alAd 198png lenoy 198png

]1e13d - 220Z Ad - 198png 199} I9M



8/ fo vg abngd

I20Z ‘22 I14dy “Anpsinyi

loo'o 88028'8£0'7  (00Z65'60T'Z  [06°289'098-  [00'ETO'6Z8'T  [9S'6TZ'TZOT  00'969°TBLT |  ioioy
looo o0 z8s'vsz looseT'ssz 16'66v'56- 0o°zet'sLz BE'€05'68T- ooz6L'6tz | sesuadx3 :jejoL
000 0000012 000 looo 000 00°0 000 | 4239 INQ UINL 000000-7£8S-02C-T0
000 00°000°ST 00°000'9¢ LTSt 00'000'9¢ v8'800°6- oo000'sT | INIWAIND3 TOOTTO-0S85-022-10
000 00'9LL 009LL 28'L0Z- ooosz 00°002- l00sEe | SINILI Q3MISSYIONN 000000-08£5-022-T0
000 000051 000051 Jooooe- 00°005'T 0£°€05°0T- 00°00L'6 _ $994/SUWIa4/585UB01 000000-TELS-0ZT-TO
000 00690 00'690'% Sv'668'- 00'0£S'E 00°8v6°Z- 00'0ST'E LdIMDSENS/SAIHSHIBNIN/SING 000000-0E£5-022-10
000 00°'s£9's oo'szo's 00°'s0¢- 00°5£9' 0008 00'002'% ONINIVYL SIN3 000000-ZT.S-0ZZ-T0
000 000057 00°88Y°0€ 000 00712'9 00°059- 00'005'T ONINIVYL/SYYNIINIS 000000-TTLS-0ZZ-T0
000 00°502°0T 00°'s0z°01 60°s6- 0099201 EE'ELO'T- 000009 13AVHL TO0TT0-0TLS-02Z-T0
000 00'SSE'EZ  J00'ssE'Ee 6v'868°7C- 00°€8Y'¥Z 859TE'ET- o HOLVdSIa ALNNOY 000000-0£95-022-10
000 0000221 000021 08'LTT'E 0008421 961818 0009v'T SINHOAINN 000000-Z855-022-T0
000 000057 000057 sLszz- 00°00S"T 000 000 sayddns Buluies] 000000-T8S5-022-T0
000 00°000°9 00'000°9 Jos0se's- 000009 ZS8YT'E 00°000°9 $3rlddNns a1314 Z00TT0-0855-02Z-T0
000 00°0S€'2€ 00°0S€'L€ L8'6LY'ET- 00°009'%€ e SEYTE 0000022 _ $3rlddNS W2IGIW TO0TTO-0055-022-10
000 00'009 o009 000 00009 10°L5€- 00009 | $3r1ddNS G004 000000-06¥S-02Z-T0

PIEOGPBSS  UWpPYUMOL  peaHideq 120ZAd T202A4 0Z02A4 0Z0ZA4

zzoT zeoe zzoz QLA 198png lenloy 198png

11e13Q - ZZ0Z A4 - 198png 193}}|19M




8¢ fo s€ abnd 1202 ‘ze judy ‘Avpsinyy

000 SY'08€E'6Z 00'vT8'622 g5 265°T0T- 00'v1S'622 15°25L'022- 00'€6T'£22 | oL

000 00'£55°6 loozs9'6 los*ave'z- 00°L5€'6 ELTIE'S  00°0S6'TT sasuadx3 :|ejoL

000 00'00¢ 00°00€ 000 loo-a0e 000 00'05Z $3MddNS 1314 000000-0585-T+2-T0
000 00°00¢ loo0oe 000-  l0000E 05'€01- ~ loo'o0€ . SJIHSYAGNIN/SING 000000-0EL5-THZ-10
000 00005 00'005 000 looo 000 loooss . ONISQOT/SIVAN ZOOTTO-OTLS-THZ-10
000 00°005'T 00'005'T 21651 lo0'000 80°£65- 00005 . IAVYL TOOTTO-0TLS-THE-T0
000 00052 00'052 000 00'052 000 00052 . SINHOHINN 000000-285S-T¥Z-10
looo loo00s' 000057 L9 00'005'T 0L191'T- 00'005°T ] $311ddNS 3D1H40 000000-0ZS-THZ-T0

000 00'009 00009 0000z 00009 szu1e 0000s | 39VLSOd 000000-SYES-THZ-10
looo 00'00% 00'00€ SEE6- 000 vO'v6E- 00°00€ I SINOHJT13L 000000-0FES-T¥2-10
000 00005t 00'005'T 000 00'005'T 00'€45°T- 00'005°T ] ONINIVYL/SHYNINIS 000000-80€S-T7Z-10
000 00°005 00°005 oo 00005 000 000 8unuid 000000-£0E5-T7Z-T0
00'0 oo loo 00z 00°5¢- 0000z 000 00°002 R BuISIIAAPY 000000-VOES-THZ-10
00'0 00000°T 00'000°T 78'€29- 00°000°T [T2T09- 00°000°€ $3IDIA¥3S LOVHINOD 000000-00€5-T+2-10
000 00202 00°202'T 88LLE 00°£0z°T streorT- 00°009 . 431400 LOVHLNOD 3DIA¥IS 000000-0625-T¥Z-T0

sasuadxy

00°0 Iswrezgere o' zsT'0zz £0'TST'66- 00°£5T°022 8L'0V8'YTZ- 00EVZSTZ | sapejes :|e10)

000 Joooos‘s l00°006°1 looo 000067 [00'00ET- 00'00L'T I ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-0615-T¥Z-10
000 ) 00°000°€ o000 00°00€- 00°000° looo 00'000' | AYVHOJINAL M/S ZOOTTO-0215-THZ-10
000 00'000'08 0000008 0€'168°8¢- 00°000°08 L7'096'LL- 00'€rS'9L ] INIL LYV M/S TOOTTO-0ZIS-Tre-T0

000 SY'ETEvET oo'sz'ser ££'650°09- oozsz'sET TE'085'SET- 000007ET | IWILTINA M/S 000000-0TTS-TrZ-T0

saue|es
3upiing  TYZ
PieoqpaPs  ulwpyumol  peaHidsq TZ0ZA4 T2OTA4 020ZA4 020ZAd
zeoT 720t [44{s14 almd 1e8png |enjoy 198png

[1e33Q - 220¢C A4 - 198png 193}J}|I9M




8/ §o 9¢ abog

120Z ‘2z ady “Aopsinyy

000 00°000's 00000’ vrot9'- 00°000's lrse9s'T- 00°005'T2 | oy
00’0 00°000°S oooo0’s vttt oo-ovo’s bS'€95°T- 000057 _ sesuadx3 :jeoL
looo 00'000' 00°000's r019'1- loo000's 7S'€95'T- 000051 | LINIWISVNVIN AINIDYIINI 000000-00€5-162-T0
= sasuadx3
juswaSeue AouaBiawg  T6Z
pleOqR[aS  uwpyumol  peapidag TZ0ZM TZ0ZAd 0Z0TA4 0z0ZM
[44114 44114 [A4114 almd 128png [en3oy 1o8png

11833Q - 2ZTOT Ad - 193png 133§|]9M




8 Jo (€ abng

Te0zZ ‘2z 1dy ‘Aopsinyy

000 000052 000052 lo0"s6€€- l00°005'2 £9'088t- 00'05Z'9 301
00'0 000sz's - looosz's _8.2~.~. jo0°0s2's _mo.owﬁ. .S.PMN.e _ sasuadx] :jejoL
_..8.0 000 00°0 00°591- 000 00°SS- 000 _ 39¥1S0d 000000-SrES-E62-T0
looo 00°00S'T 00°005'T 00'¢88- 00°005'T £9'6£9°T- 000 | ONILNIYd £00TT0-Z0€S-E62-T0
_oo.o |00°0SL'E 00°0SL'E 00'12Z'T- 00'0S4'E 00°98T'T- 00°0SZ°v _ S3D1AH3IS LOVHINOD 000000-00£5-€62-TO
sasuadxy
oo looosz'z o005z 00°szT'T- 00052z 100°000'- 00'000° 1_ saue|es ejo
_mlo.o [o0'0sz'e 00°052' oo'szt't- _oo.o.mNN [oo'000z- 00°000°C _ AaN3dILS 000000-S6TS-€62-T0
. sauejes
Sunjed/oell €62
pleoqps|as  uiwpyumol  peayidaq TZ0ZA TZ0TM 020ZAd 020ZA
44114 zeoe 720t ata 138png jemay 128png

jle1aq - 20T Ad - 198png 193jj|IoM



8/ fo gg abod 1Z0Z ‘zz pdy “Aopsinyy

oo 00'€L8'098'7  [00'BEZT'T6L'T  |L0TLYOVOT-  00°BETT6LT  SS'STE0EVT  00°TOLL69'T 1301
000 oo'gsz'es oo TUBVE'SVZ- 000 SL'V08'909- 000 sasuadx3 :|e1oL
000 Jooo 000 SEETS'SE- 0o SETLS'Lo 000 ] TIO¥AVd GFHVHS TO0TT0-0S95-00E-T0
000 00'852'8£9 000 loe'sea‘ziz- looo OV €£7'6E5- 000 1 AVQ 4YIND3Y SISNIAXT 000000-0825-00£-T0
sasuadxy
000 loosto'zsrz  oosez'iers  [peeerees:  jposeztesz  josozs'ezsT  00T0Lr697 | saueles ;e
000 000 000 00'002'T- 000 jo000z'T- 000 _ FONVMOTIV WHOHINN 000000-T6TS-00€-T0
oo 000 00°0 ohlu.oom.h- OIO.O .oo.omod.T .O0.0 ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS-00E-TO
000 000 000 97'989'- 000 SSTSYI- 000 _ JNILYIAO M/S 000000-0ETS-00E-TO
loo'o 000 loosez'tecz  Jooo 00'8EZ'T6LT  |000 0070L'2697 | 3LVWILS3 1390NE 000000-0ZTS-00€-T0
000 000 000 S L9V 000 vSL10'6- 000 _ AVQ 934 dX3 QIHVHS GSYN 000000-8TTS-00€-T0
000 00°'ST9'Z8TC 000 S9'6T8'SLL- 000 TLLELTBL'T- 000 | AVA ¥Y1N934 M/S 000000-0TTS-00€-T0
saLlejes
SI00Y3$ Jqnd  00E
PJEOGIIBAS  UIWPYUMOL  PEIH3Idag TZ0ZAd TZ0TAd 0202Ad 020ZAd
zeot ze0t 220t aLAd 18png enjoy 18png

['e19Q - 2202 Ad - 398png 193}}||I9M



8¢ fo g€ abngd

1202 ‘22 11dy ‘Aopsinyy
000 00ZYo'BOT'E  00'SEETVTE O0'E90'8ZL'T-  [0'S6E‘TVT'E  [ySE6G'GYT'E-  OUBITOST'E | /ool
00°0 ._oc.uvw.wuN.m .oo.mmm..ne.n.m ._oo.mwo.mﬁ.ﬁm .._cc.mmm.ﬁﬂ.m .Mvm.mmm.meﬁ.m- 00'VTTOST'E _ sasuadxy :jejo]
000 00'zre'89z's  |00°S6E‘THT'E 00°€90'82.'T-  |00'S6E‘THT'E [PS'E66'6VT'E-  00'PTT'OST'E IN3INSSISSY QSYN 000000-0€95-TOE-T0
) sasuadxg
1I141S1a HIS TYNOID3IY 1ISNYN  TOE
pieoqs@s  ulwpyumol  peayidsg TZ0ZAd TZ0ZA 020ZA3 020ZAd
770t 7202 (4404 alAd 1°8png jenjoy 198png

11e19Q - 2202 Ad - 133png 193]}|I9M




8¢ Jo gv abod 120z ‘2z 11dy “Aopsinyy
00’0 00'626'T8Y 00'6EE'96E  [00'20L°6EZ-  00°6EE‘96E 00°'L0v'ST-  00°00S'STY | folos
000 00'6L6T8Y  |00'6EE'96E 00zos'ee-  [oo'6eE'a6e 00°L0v'ST-  00°00S'STY | sasuadx :je3oL
oo 006L6T8Y 00°TOL'€EEZ-  [00'6EE'96E 00'L0V'ST-  00'00S'STY _ SLNIWSSISSY IHLO 000000-60ES-Z0E-T0
000 00°6€€'96E 00°70L'€6-  [00°6EE'96E 00°L0Y'STY-  00'00S'STw ._ SINIWSSISSY ¥IHLO 000000-60E5-Z0E-T0
. sasuadxy
LO141SId SH HO31 934 d0D 3dvD  20€
PIEOGIOBIDS  UIWPYUMOL  pesH1dag T20TAd 1207 020ZAd 0Z0ZAd
zzoz ze0z zz0T QLA 18png (emay 128png

[1e13Q - 220¢C Ad - 393png 193}}|I9M



8, o v abod 1202 ‘2z jdy “Aopsinyy

joo'0 l00°0s6'0vE 00'0S6'ETE Eb'E8T'STT- loo0s6‘ove [19'vsg'ste- 00°056'9€ | ooy

000 bo‘ose‘ove 000S6'ETE  [sy'eBT'sZT-  [00°0SGOvE TOVSBBIE  00'0S69EE | sasuadx3 :jejoL

000 00'0009 00'000'9 000 00'0009 8T LLT'S 000000 | 35N WALSAS HILYM TYAIDINNI 000000-ZELS-LTH-TO
000 Too'ose 00'05€ 000 00°05€ 00'5¢- B 00°0s€ $334/SLIMWY3d/SISNIDN 000000-0ELS-LTH-T0
000 00'000'T 00000 |ooo 00°000T LTLLO'Y 00'000°T $3M1ddNS ¥3HLO 000000-08SS-LTY-T0
000 00000°S 00°000° S0°9T0°T- 000005 £E08TT 00°000°9 $aNddNS ONIdIIN SONNOYD 000000-THSS-LTH-10
looo 00°005'€T 00°005°€T V7 v09'6- loo'oos‘eT 66'TLY LT 00°005°0T . $arddNS VIOLSND 000000-0¥SS-LTY-T0
looo 00°000°0€ 00000°€ 000 00°000°0€ 00°991€Z- 00°000'9€ . INY3d ONINYITD 000000-98€5-£TH-10
jooo 00005°Z 00005'L S6V06T-  |0000SZ v5'688'0- 00005z ] INOHJIT3L 000000-0VES-LTH-T0
000 00°009°ST 00°009'ST 000082~ TJooo09'st 00°000°5T- 00'009'ST YOO ONINVIT) 133448Nd 000000-20ES-2£TH-T0
000 loo-000°s6 00°000'56 08'085'€r- loo'000'se £5'895°58- 00°000'6 . SIDIAYIS LOVHINGD 000000-TOES-LTH-T0
000 000 000 1098 ~ Jooo 000 000 SLHOI 133415 000000-£62S-LTt-T0
000 000 000 000 oo looo 000 3! PUE MONS 000000-S6Z5-LTH-T0
000 00'000%6T 0000061 | [tstTe'01- 00000'6T [trecoee 00000'ST $31ddNS INIVIN/HIVATY 000000-0625-LT7-T0
000 00°000'9 00'000'9 6018 000009 [poros6t- o000y | 10 13N4 ZOOTTO-STTS-LTH-T0
000 00°000°0% 000000 S9'€99'9- 000000 VE686'EE- 00'000'8€ | SYD INVAOYd TO0TTO-STZS-LTF-T0
000 00000201 00°000'20T BE0ET'6E- 00'000'z0T 657796 00000701 | ALIDIMIIT13 000000-0TZS-LTH-T0

sasuadx3y
senbed mda LTIV
pieogpalEs  uwpyumol  pesHdag 120ZAd TZ0TAd 0z0ZAd 020ZAd
zz0T [44114 7202 alAd 138png Jenyoy 198png

11e13Q - 220Z A4 - 198png 199} I9oM




8¢ o g abng 1202 ‘Zz j1dy ‘“Aopsanyy

looo o000e’e lo0"00€’ Bresz- loo-ooe’ oo 0000y | LINIWAIND3 TIVS 000000-0585-02-T0
000 000007 00'000'T 00°0z5- 00'000T 00'8L- 000001 | SAIHSYIBWAW/SINA 000000-0£L5-02-T0
000 00°002 0000z 000 oo 00005 00°002 _ ONISAOV/SIVIW Z00TTO-0TLS-02y-T0
000 00'00Y 00°00% Jooo 00'009 vi'ss- o000y 1IAVYL TOOTTO-0TLS-02Y-T0
000 000002 .oo.ooo\h T8'EL6'T- 00'000°£ SEL6L Y- 000002 SIWYOLINN 000000-285S-0ZF-10
000 00'000'T 00'000°T looo 00'000'T TSEL 000001 $993/5Hl124/35U2011 D00D00-0BSS-0ZY-T0
00 000027 000027 89'STY- 00'00z'T EV'99€°T- 00'005 j $31ddNS WDIGIN 000000-00SS-02y-10
000 00005 0000sE  |a5'90€T- 00'005' Lot 00005 _ INIMOSYS 000000-08YS-0Z¢-10
|oo'0 00°00%‘T 00°001'T 09°SLL- .oo.oowr_.‘ L EETT- .”oo.ocv..n $311ddNS 321340 000000-0Z¥S-0ZF-T0
000 00°05 o0'0s 000 0005 OT'6LT- 0005 39V150d 000000-5¥ES-02-T0
_.oo.o 00005 w.oo.oom HNm.mmm- 00°00S 00°00%- 00005 B | SADIAYAS TYIIQIW 000000-TTES-0ZH-TO
000 00'006'T 00'006T 00'08¢- 000067 00'989'- 00'006 ] ONINIVYL/SHVYNINIS 000000-80£5-025-10
000 000 00°005 oo 00°005 88'V6€'T- 00005 ONISILYIAQY 000000-FOES-0Z¥-T0
000 0000002 00'000'0 [srzoz'e- 00'000'0Z £6'L15'TY- ooooo'oz | S30IA¥3S LOVYINOD 000000-00ES-0Zy-T0
joo'0 00°0SL 00005 000 _oo.oom TE'SCS- 00°00S | Ja1ded-1esiun) 3135 000000-16Z5-0Z7-T0
00'0 00000'sS boooo'ss  le6LL0%El- 00000'ss  [poreve'se- 000005s S3NddNS LNIVIN/¥IVd3Y 000000-0625-027-T0
_.@o.c 00°006'¢T 00°006'PT 000 0000671 000 .oo.o SLNIW33UOV I5v3IT 000000-0L2S-0ZF-T0
000 00°000'z€ 00'000°ZE 9E'€E02°CT- 0000002 6v'999'0¢- 000000z | 1430 314 STIOIHIA W/Y ZOOTTO-ZYZS0Zy-10
0o _looo0o'0e Joo'o000 E0'9EL'S- o0000'0€ 70 TE9ET- 00'000°0€ A¥3S STIDIHIA LNIVIN/HIVA3Y TOOTTO-ZVZS-0er-10
% _.oc.oow:n 00°009°T looo ] 00°009°T Moo.o 00°00€T i $31NddNS ONId3A3% SONNOYD 000000-0¥ZS-0T-10
. - = ————— sasuadx3y
00'0 T0099TITT  00'SZS'980'T €S Z8E"YYS- 00°'525980'T 6ETIF'SO0'T-  00°Z85'E90'T saueles :je10)

000 000 000 v esse- 000 vZ'082z- 000 AVQIOH M/S TO0TTO-T615-024-10
..uo.o 00°000'T Oo.ooo..ﬂ 00'00€T- .Qc.ooo:n 00°00€'T- 00°000°T | JONYMOTIY WHOLINN 000000-T61S-021-10
000 00'00Y'TT 00°00v'T1 |oosze'e- 00°00V'TT 00'sLEDT- 00051 ALIAIDNOT M/S 000000-0615-025-10
000 000 000 00°05- 000 00'002°8- 000 | IIN3¥34410 ONINTIM M/S 000000-0VTS-025-T0
000 000 000 OV L26- 000 69TTS'E- 000 ] JNIL 378N0A M/S 000000-EETS-02H-T0
(000 ~ joo0ov'vE 00°007vE |ewotetoe- 00'00t'v€ SE9TS'7T 00'007'7E ] IWLLYIAO M/S 000000-0ETS-0ZF-T0
000 0000009 00'00009 00'TTLTE- looooo'09 90'€08'€9- 00'000'09 TYNOSV3S M/S 000000-0ZS-02b-T0
looo 20'098'S00'T  |00'STL6L6 bvzoov'i8r-  |00'SszL'6Ls S0'9ZE'E68- 00TEV'SS6 IWIL TING M/S 000000-8TTS-0Z4-T0

sauejes
Mda ocv
PIEOGIPS  ulwpyumOl  peaH1dag T20ZA4 T20ZAd 020ZAd 0Z0TAd
44074 44174 zz0t QLAd 128png ey 128png

11e19Q - Z20ZC Ad - 193png 199)}{|I9M




8/ Jo gt abng

120z ‘gz jdy ‘Aopsinyy

oo 20'098'882'T  [00°5£6'29Z° ~ [sez00's6s- 00°5£6'0SZ'T [STE9ETET'T-  00°ZEV'ETZ'T jo104
00’0 ~ Jooooz'act loo0s'9LT 58'619°05- 00°0sY'v91 98'0ss'szl-  [00°0SS‘6vT sasuadxg :jes0)
000 |oo00s oooos  [oo0 |00 00s logzot- 00005 IONVNILNIVIN AYYLINGD 6v0TTO-1S85-02r-10
pieoqIsPES ulpyumol peay1dag T120TAd TC0CAd 020z 0C0cAd
zeoz 44114 zzor aLAd 1e8png lemay 198png

|'e1aq - 220T Ad - 193png 199} |I9M




8¢Z jo v abng

1202 ‘22 Hdy “Aopsinyy
000 00°006°26 0000626 60°S€6'9T- 00'006'26 66'982'69- 00°006°26 | 1m0s
looo loo006°z6 00'006'26  |60°SE6'9T- bo00s'z6 669869~  00°006'Z6 _ sasuadx3 :jejo)
000 loo-oos 00005 ) oo oos etoss'z- 00005 LNIWAIND3 TIVINS 000000-0585-22-10
000 00°000°0Z loco00°0z ZU049°c- loo-000'0z [te'906°TT- 00°000°0Z FDONVNILNIVIA FHNLINYLSYHANI 000000-0€85-22H-T0
000 00°000°S 00000 |16°S6LT- loo'o00's 850110 00°000'S 1 5311ddNS LNIVIA/HIVAIY 000000-0vS5-ZZr-10
000 00°000'LT 00°000°LT rELET- 00000°LT SB'SETZE- 00°000°LT S3ddNS SYYOM IaNd 000000-0£55-TZr-10
000 ~ |oo‘oovos 00°00%°05 $9'560'TT- 0000105 ZUY80'LT- 00°00¢'05 | $3JIAY3S LOVHLNOD 000000-00€5-2Z5-10
sasuadxgy
AemysSiH zev
pJeogapPs  ulwpyumol  peaHidag TZ0ZAd TZ0ZM 020ZAM 0Z0ZAd
(44114 20T (44074 alrd 128png |lenyoy 198png

|1e12@ - 22Z0T A4 - 198png 193)}|I9M




8¢ fo v 3bod 1202 ‘2z judy “Aopsinyy

oo'o loo08T8z1 00°081'82T loo"sse‘z- 00°081'821 6rLLT'se- 00°08T'8ZT | im0y
oo oo"08T'e8 00°08T'E8 loo"sse’z- o00sT'es  [TTosv'es 00°08T°E8 | sasuadx3 :|e30L
000 loooooze Jooooo'ze ot'ess'e- 00'000'ZE 9'880°0Z- 00000'7€ _ ¥3D130/11VS SHYOM JI18Nd 000000-SESS-E2H-10
000 ooose. 00°08€ oz9z- looose 9L'T9- 00'08¢€ _ $3r1ddNS 4004 000000-065-€24-10
000 |oooos’e 00'008°€ |re0os - 00008 1£0v0'9T- 00°008°€ ] $311ddNS I1JHIA 000000-08YS-EZY-T0
000 00°000"Lt 00°'000"2t 00°048°T- 00'000'LY 00°s82'91- 00°000'L% ._ $30IAY3S 1OVYINOD 000000-00ES-E26-T0
o sasuadx3y
000 00°000'sY loo000'sw oo 00°000'sw 80'T08ZT- ooo0'sy | sauejes :ej0)
000 loo000'st loo"000'st oo 00°000'st 80'T08'21- 00°000°st INILYIA0 M/S 000000-0ETS-EZY-TO
sauejeg
V| B Mous €TV
pJeogpspEs  uiwpyumoy peay1dag TZ0CAd TCO0CAd 020ZAd 020TAd
4414 (44114 zz0z alAd 1e8png [enoy 198png

|'e1aq - 20T Ad - 198png 199}J1I9M



8 fo 9y abnd

1Z0Z ‘ZZ jMudy “Appsiny]

oooog'ct  oo'oog‘or 000 looovg'or e Tve's- _00'009'0T | im0y
000 0000901 oo009‘ot looo 0000901 |zeTre's- 00°009°0T _ sesuadx3 :|e30L
00°0 00009 00°009' 000 00°009' [evsser- 00°009'T ] S3DIAY3S LOVYINOD 000000-00ES+Z-T0
000 00°000° loo000's 000 00°000° S6'Z85'7- 00000 ONILHOI 1334LS 000000-0TZS+Zv-10
] sasuadx3y
Sunysp wans vy
PJeOqRRPS  UlWpyumoL  pesHadag T20ZAd T20ZA 020ZA4 0Z0ZA4
(4474 (4404 [44074 alAd 198png |enjay 123png

[1e19Q - ZZ0¢Z A4 - 198png 193} I9M



8¢ fo ¢y 3bng

1202 ‘2z 11dy “Aopsinyy

oo loooss'tse lo00s8‘1SE BvByY'6LT-  00°0SE‘ZSE osee'ere-  Jooosszze | ooy

00’0 |oorosstse looosg‘1se SYSyY'6LI-  000SETSE  |[(0'6LL'tlE  oo‘0ss'zze | sasuadx3 :jeio)

000 0000z 00002 00'8L2- 00002 00°s6T- 00°00 $994/5}UL12d/25U0r 000D00-¥8SS-EEY-TO
000 0000t 0000t 00°0v8‘T- 00°00%' 00°02L'T- 0000t . SNIg DNIAD3Y 000000-T8SS-EEY-10
000 00000’ 00°000° o6 21v- 0000041 YT YIT'9T- 00°000°T1 $3NddNS ¥IHLO 000000-08SS-EEV-10
000 00005z 000057 000 loooos'z oseL'e- 000057 $3r14dNS SHUOM Ji8Nd 000000-0ESS-EEV-T0

000 Jooooe 00°00€ 8T 00°00€ o 00°00€ $3MddNS YDIQIN 000000-00SS-EEY-T0
000 00'000°59 00°000°S9 5220’ 00000°59 wEzsor- 00°000'59 135310 ZOOTTO-08YS-EEV-T0
000 000006 00°000° vE'se6- 00°000°6 000 00°000°L $311ddNS I1DIHIA TOOTTO-08YS-EEV-10

000 Jooooe "~ Joorooe Loz 00°00€ 000 00°00€ ] sayddns (epolsnd 000000-0SKS-EEF-10
000 [o0000's 00°000°S 65°TTY- looo 6L8vL'T- 00000 S3M1ddNS LNIVIA/HIVA3Y 000000-0EvS-EE-10
000 00°000'T 00°000'T o€ '8t 00°000° 69°0EL- 000007 | $3M1ddNS 301440 000000-0TYS-EEY-T0
000 oo0st 00051 oT'Z6- ~ ovost sz 00°0ST _ 39Y150d 000000-SVES-EEV-T0
000 00°000'€1 00°000°€1 looo 00'000°ET 000 00°000°01 | AV ALSINNY 000000-TOES-EEY-10

000 00°000'02Z 00°000°022 01T0069T-  00°005'0zC 6L9T6'EEC-  00D'000'T6T . S3DIAYIS LOVHLNOD 000000-00ES-EE-T0
000 00°000°1 00°000°LT EVL0Z'E  [00000zT 00'109'2- 00°000'1 ONIYOLINO TIIHANY 000000-0625-€£%-10
looo 00'000'Z 00000’z 000 Jooro0o’z r'8v9's- 00°000'0% S3DIAYIS LNIVIN/HIVAIY 000000-0vZS-EE0-TO

. sasuadxy
uonels Jaysuesl  E€v
PIEOGIIBPES  UnupYUMOL  peaH1dag T20zAd 12074 0Z0ZAd 0Z0TA4
70T 220t Te0e alAd 198png jenoy 193png

[1e19Q - 220Z Ad - 3193png 199|}|I9M




8/ fo gv abng

000

00°sLL

looo

[o0'sze

oo

00°SLL

pJeoqajes
ceoe

TZ0ZAd
198png

1202 ‘2z 1dy ‘Appsinyy
l00°szz't _ [p10]
00'SLZ'T | sasuadxy jejo)
loorszz't | S3DIAY3S 1OVHLINOD 000000-00€S-VER-T0
sasuadxy
sanlwwo) Sulphrny  pEY
0Z0TAd
199png

|1e1aq - ZZ0Z Ad - 193png 193}|I9M



8/ Jo 61 abog 1202 ‘2Z jady “Aopsinyy

000 £L°08L'LhT lo"sze‘sze feeovv'oor-  Jooesevoz TOV66'T8T-  00'619°06T | miox

00’0 00°60¥'T9 00'605°T9 ¥S'108'9T- 00vee'e 8T°89Z'sT- 006299z | sosuadx3 :(e0)

000 00°00Y 00°00Y looo 00"00Y ~ Jooo 00°00% wawdinb3 jlews 000000-0585-01S-10
000 oorsos 00508 sszge- loorsos S0'99t- 00009 SAIHSY3WIW/SINA 000000-0ELS-0TS-T0
000 00°00% loo00y 000 000 Jooo Jou00v ONI9QOY/STVAW ZOOTTO-0TLS0TS-T0
000 00'000'T 00°000'1 looo 00°'00°T 0T 9€Y- 00'000'T ] 13AVYL TOOTTO-0TLS-0TS-TO
000 000027 00002 000 00°002°T 000 00002 SUINDILS NOILVLS ¥3JSNVYL £00TTO-085S015-T0
000 00001 00007 90°€09- 00001 ££'667'1- ocoort | $311ddNS 321440 000000-0ZV5-0TS-T0
000 00009 00009 orTLT- 00009 00002 00009 39Y150d 000000-SYES-0TS-TO
000 00009 o009 0000T-  [oo'009 00°00€- 00009 . 3INOHJIT3L 000000-0VES-0TS-TO
000 lo0000' o000t |oo'oor- 00°000'T 00°508- 00°000'T ONINIVYL/SYVYNIAIS 000000-8OES-0TS-T0
000 000077 00°00T'T $9°L91- oo'00T't 000 00'00T'T .. ONILNI¥d £00TTO-LOES-0TS-TO
000 000 looo0t 000 oo00T 9T'v0z- 00001 ] SUISIIBAPY 000000-Y0ES-OTS-T0
000 000027 00002°z 00°002Z- 00002z 00°002°z- 0000 TO¥.NOD A4 A¥IHNIIYO 000000-TOES-OTS-T0
000 00°26v'6Y 00°L6V'6Y 1061LTT- 00772657 18'ELY'S- 00°72€'ST SIDIAYIS LOVHLNOD 000000-00€S-OTS-TO
000 ~ loozoz 002021 (8'LLE- oozt eress loozor ¥31402 LOVHLNOD BDIAY3S 000000-0625-01S-T0

) sasuadx3y

000 L TLE'98T 00°618'991 6€"Sv9'68- 00678991 YeSZLL9T-  000SOVOT | sauefes :|e3oL

000 00°00£° 00'00£'7 00°056- 00002 00°00T2- 000s7 | ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS-0TS-TO

000 [soziT'sz 00TSE'ST  wLTvLEl Jootse'sz 20°'826'97- 00%05'ST ] INLL LYVd M/S TOOTTO-0ZTS-01S-T0
loo'o S9'655VST 00°'891°8ET S9°TS6VL 00°'89T'BET  [z8'£69'8ET- 00°'9v0'9€T | INILTINI M/S 000000-0TTS-0TS-T0

sauejes
UijeaH jo preog  01S
pleogpaps  ulupyumol  pesH1daqg 120ZA4 TZ0TA4 0Z0ZA 0Z0Ad
[44[4 (4414 2202 alid 198png |enloy 198png

[1e13@ - 220Z Ad - 198png 199131I9M




82 fo 05 abod

1Z0Z ‘2z judy ‘Aopsanyy

000 0000050 [00000'S0E  [s97zeTE- 0000’0 [ee'seL'vsz- 00000082 | oo
00°0 loo000°s0¢ oo000'soe  [s9rcesie- 00000's0E  [ge'SEL'vSZ-  00°000'082 sasuadxa :esoL
000 000 looooooor |00 00000001 (rsez’se 000 ” SO0 ¥AE 404 NOLLINL 000000-99€5-025-T0
000 O0.0 000 00°000C- 000 00°005°02- 000 S3DIAYIS HLTVIH 3dVD ¥31NO 000000-S9€5-025-10
o oo 000 0s7s- 000 00'0s2- 000 TONNOD IONVLSISSY YINNSNOD 000000-E9ES-0Z5-10
m0.0 000 000 05°L81'T- 000 00'0SL'8- ....O0.0 HOVIYLNO 3dvD YIMOT 000000-29€5-02S-T0
000 000 oo 0sTIE'E: 000 00000 000 NJWOM N0 ONIT3H 000000-09€5-025-T0
000 000 000 00'sLE- 000 loooosT 000 S133HM NO STV3IN AY3S 43013 000000-LSES-025-T0
000 0000000z [00000°00L  8T'S99'0z-  |00'000°00T SosTeZ6 00000001 | J342NOA [0042531d/UORINL 000000-SSES-0Z5-TO0
000 000 000 00°005z- 000 000000T 000 T0V1d SNIHQIHD 3HL 000000-PSES-025-TO0
000 Jooo 000 00'sz9- 000 00005 000 140ddNS SAIV 000000-TSES-025-T0
000 0U000S0T  00000'S0T 000 00°000'501 00SZ06-  000000BT | Q3LYDOTIVNN SIDIANIS NVNNH TOOTTO-0SES-025-T0
- sasuadx3
SB0IAI9S UBWINH 0TS
PIEOGYARS  uWPYUMOL  peaHIdag T202Ad 1202 020ZAd 020ZA4
zzoe zzoe zz0z aLAd 328png lenoy 18png

['e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199}|I9M



8L jo 1s abnd

1202 ‘2Z 11dy “Aopsinyy

000 fevvev'iee 00°z98'9L2 15'8S0°0ZT-  00°608'892 Lrs9s'est 00'wsT'9ST 10304

00'0 oo'scz'es 00'5£5°€S 98'T28's- 00'S2T'TS lozz6t'st 00'szs'oy sasuadx3 :jejoL

looo 000 00°00€ 05°L5- 00°00€ T78EE- 000 $334 Q¥VD LIQ3¥D 000000-0SL5-T¥S-10
000 00'sze 00'sze 00°s8- 00'sZ€ 00°s9z- 00°5LZ SAIHSYIAWAN/SING 000000-0ELS-THS-T0
000 00°000°T 00'000'T 00'€sz- oorooo't [reene 00008 713AVYL 000000-0TLS-TvST0
000 00°005°ST 00°005'ST 0s'719- [oo00ssT 2vr'09£'01- 00°000°ST $3r1ddNS G004 000000-06vS-TvS-T0
000 00°00t°€ 00'00v°E vz LTS |oooov’e 000 000 735310 /3NINOSYS 000000-08tS-TvS-T0

000 looose looosz 85°LE- ~looose €v'9Ty- 00°0ST $3r1ddNS TYIGOLSND 000000-0SwS-TvS-T0
000 o000z 000007 [15°698- 00000 ve'sey - 000527 $3ddNS D10 000000-02YS-TvS-10
000 00009 looo0g loooss- 00°009 loooge- 00°009 39V150d 000000-SVES-TYS-10
000 00005 00005 9g'LES T- loooos‘e 1798 00005 3NOHdIT3L 000000-0VES-TYS-T0
000 000 000 00'sz2- oo 000 000 ONNIVHL/SUYNIN3S 000000-B0ES-TVS-T0
000 000051 00°00s €1 oT'0sK'T- 00'00s'sT Y8 TZIEl- 00°00S'€1 1DVHINOD SIDIAYIS HLTVIH Z00TE0-00ES-TYS-TO
oo 000058 Jooos’s 06'188- 00°000°8 (S'L12T1- 000052 S3DIAYIS LOVYLNOD TOOTTO-00ES-T¥S-T0
looo looooe'y 00002 0s80T'T-  oo'osz'E £0'SSL'T- 00°05Z'€ B ¥31d0D LOVYLNOD 3IA¥3S 000000-0625-T¥5-T0
looo 000 000 19721 000 000 000 | S3IAYS LNIVIN/HIVA3Y 000000-052S-T¥S-T0

o sasuadxy

ooo Trevr'ser 00£82'€TT S9'9ELTTT-  [00'v8Y'9TE Toes'soz-  o0'6zo's0r | saleles :jejoL

oo 00°006° 000069 00'007'T- 00008° 00°00€°9- 00°00€"9 ALIAIONOT M/S 000000-06TS-T7S-T0
000 00'2vE DY 00°TVETY S9V68'L1- 00°0S0°€Y |soTeeve- 00000t $33A0TdW3 Y3HLO Ld M/S 000000-0ZTS-T¥S-T0
looo 21°L06'981 joo'svozet loozry'zs- 00vE0°L9T 76TS6B9T-  00'6ZE°TIT AWIL TING M/S 000000-0TTS-T7S-T0

sajiejes
Sui8y uo [PUNO) TS
pieogiislas  ulwpyumol  peaHidsg T20ZAd T20ZA 0Z0TAd 0Z0ZAd
zzoz (4414 (44114 QLA 198png lenjoy 193png

11e39Q - 2Z0Z Ad - 133png 193|}||]9M




8L fo zs abnd

1Z0Z ‘2 judy ‘Aopsinyy

oo‘o loo00s‘6z joo"o0s’6z 99'£59'92- 0000862 LL°EEE'6T- 00°sEE'6T | iwior
oo'o lo0008‘6z loo008'62 logrzs9'9z- oooos'sz  seees'se- 00'seE‘6e _ sasuadxg :jejo)
000 0000021 looooo'zt v1'099'- 00°000°T VTSeY'TT- 00°000'ZT SL143N38 SNY¥ILIA 000000-0LLS-EPS-TO
oo loocos'cT loooos'z1 15°£66'8T- 00°008°LT es8€8'L1- 00'SEE'LT SLNIWSSISSY YIHLO 000000-069S-EVS-T0
) sasuadxy
S3JIAJIS SUBIDIDA  EVS
pleoqideles ulwpyumo | pean-ydaq TC0ZAd TC0TAd 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZAd
[4474 [0 r4 f4de14 alAd 198png jenydy 198png

[1e13Q - 2Z0T Ad - 198png 199} |I9M




87 o £€ abod

120z ‘zz judy “Appsinyy

00°0 08699995 00°696'v6% e'898'viz-  |00'6TL'205 ve'8E9'Is-  00'tvzzay 1101

looro 00°00£°SbT 00°0ss'svT L5689 l00-00¢'svT TL9ET'9ET-  00'00E'VET sasuadx3 :jeloL

000 00000 00°000' eS8y 00°000's 18°265'T- 00'000's B ANIWAIND3 000000-0585-0T9-10
000 00052 looosz 000 00°000'T bsEBE-  00'000°T TIAVYL TOOTTO-0TLS0T9-T0
000 000 000006 80°Zv0'6- boooo've oo 000 SIVIYALYI LNININON 000000-£855-0T9-T0
000 000 loo'o0o'ss 66VZ8YVI-  00'000'SS 000 000 N $3008 000000-9855-019-10
000 oo 00°0 l66°6¢- 000 STZ0EVE- 00'000°9 STVIYILVIA LNIYNON E00TTO-SBSS-0T9-10
000 000 oo eSS 000 SUEBE'9E- 00000V $5008 Z00TT0-5855-019-10
000 00°000'T0T o0'0b0's 0005 00°000°0T T7'650'6- 00°000 HL-UON/S[EAIPOLIRY /{008 TO0TTO-5855-0T9-T0
looo 00'005' 00005 TL68LT- 00°005'6 leesio's- 000056 $3MddNS 301440 000000-02¥5-01-T0
000 0005y ooosr  |evest ooosy 00'0gE- ‘ovost 39V1S0d 000000-57ES-0T9-T0
000 loooos't 00°005'T €LLL6- 00°005'T 860851~ 000051 INOHdIT3L 000000-0VES-0T9-TO
000 000 ooosz 000 00°052 00'0 00052 SUISIIaARY 000000-F0ES-0T9-T0
000 00°003'T 00'009'T Ov'89¢'T- 00°009°T lesuvesT- 00°009°T SIDIAYIS LOVELNOD 000000-00€S-0T9-TO
000 000009 lo0000'2 6veeT'El- 00'000°22 s8'675'9¢- 00'000°22 SINVTD LOVHLNOD 000000-0675-0T9-T0

. - sasuadxy

000 03'69E'TZy  |00'6Tv'6YE Ov'6TV'89T-  |00'6TH'Z9E ETT0S'SYE-  00'VbeUSE | salefes :|ej0)

000 00°0SE"S 00'0SE'S 00°SLS'T- 00'0SE'S 00'SLL'Y 00889 | ALIA39NOT M/S 000000-061S-0TS-T0
000 00°000°€T Jooo oo 00°000°ET Jooo 000 | AYVHOdINAL M/S 000000-€ZTS0T9-T0
000 000 o0 ELEV0'E- looo |s69zziot- 000291 _ AYVHOAINIL M/S Z00TTO-0ZTS-0T9-T0
o0 S0'829'%S 00°0sZES L66TY'6T-  00'0STES 1816075 00'TYS2S | JNIL L¥Vd M/S TOOTTO-0ZTS-0L9-10

00'0 lsetee'ave 00°618'06 ocosEvET-  |o06T806 Lesov'si  oosvissr JNILTINA M/S 000000-0TTS-0TS-10

sale|es
Areaqrr 019
pJeOGIRRS  Ulwpyumoy pesHidaq TZ0ZAd TTOTA4 070ZA4 020ZAd
ze0z 220t 20z aLAd 128png lenoy 128png

I1e13Q - 2ZOZ Ad - 193png 133§|I9M




8¢ fo vs abing

1202 ‘22 j1dy “Aopsinyy

000 00°000°€ 00'000'€ 00°00T- 00000° loo'o 00008 1] WsLdinb3 [lewS 000000-0S8S-0£9-T0
000 000  |ooosy og-sz- 00°0s 6'6L- 000 _ $334 QYYD LIA3HD 000000-TELS-0E9-TO
000 00059 00059 00°0¢- loo'os9 00'05Z- 00059 ] SAIHSHIBNIN/SING 000000-0E£S-0E9-T0
00°0 00064 00'062' 000 looos2's Sr'89r's- 00'005 ] SINHOLINN 000000-Z855-0E9-T0
000 00005 Joooos's 8616~ |00°00ST 66°6VT- o000sT | $311ddNS AINYNOL/ANDYIT SO0TTO-0855-0€9-T0
000 00°000° 00°000°T z0'szY- 00°000'T z75'819- 00000t | $3114dNS AVAIOH #00TTO-085S-0€9-10
000 loooosz 00005 L6'T6T'T- 00°005' St'006°T- 000057 $3Mddns Q1314 SUIAVE €00TTO-08SS-0£9-T0
000 ~ |ooooo‘or 00°000°0T 08'8v8°T- 0000001 eveas’e- 00°0000T $3r1ddNS 30vY QVOY ZOOTTO-08SS-0£9-T0
000 00000 00000 89'18L T 000 Z0TZE Y- 00000 $3MddNS TYNOLLYIYD3Y TOOTT0-0855-0£9-50
oo |oorooy 0000t 8E0ET- loooor'y <9'€60'- 00'00% sayddng Jo410 000000-0855-0£9-T0
000 looroov 0000t orzLy'T- 00°00 0676~ 00'00€ $3r1ddNS T¥2IQ3N 000000-00SS-0€9-T0
looo 000007 000007 000 o000z 6L 00000°7 auljosen 000000-08YS-0E9-T0
000 ooooe 00°00€ |6sw6z'1- 0000E troe- 00°00€ $3MddNS 391440 000000-0ZYS-0EY-TO
000 00'05 0005 SO'ETe- |ooos ST'9- 0005 39V1SOd 000000-SPES-0E9-T0
000 00°LLZ 00'£LZ log'gTe- o022 looo o022z INOHJI13L 000000-07ES-0€9-10
000 loo'009 00009 looo 00009 00081 00009 ONINIVYL / SHVIW3S 000000-80€5-0£9-T0
000 00791’z 00791 00'0 loovor'z 000 000027 ONILNI¥d TOOTTO-£OES-0E9-T0
000 Jooooz 0000 000 Joo00z 000 00°005 SdI¥L Q1314 2S0TT0-00€S-0£9-T0
000 0000 00°00Z 000 looooz 05°209- loo oo INIL 301 E00TTO-00ES0E9-TO
000 000 00°008° 000 o008’z 000 000 3SNOH 3SN08 ZOOTTO-00ES-0E9-10
000 000009 ooo00'e 00066~ 0070009 0z°199's- 000009 SAINN/S43Y AINYNOL/INDVIT TO0TTO-00E5-0£9-T0
looo 00°868°6€ “loo'gsoze 1r€L8'8C- 00°860°L€ 1217705 00°ST9'8E S3DIAYIS LOVHINOD 000000-00ES-0E9-T0
. sasuadxy

000 79'sss‘ese 00°06£'88¢ TEEIEeYT-  00'009°92 TrTe'eve-  o0vesosz | sauefes :|e3o)

000 000 00°009°S 000 00667 lor626'7- 000 1NOANE NOILYIVA ZOOTTO-T6TS-0E9-10
000 loooos'e 00°009° looooz1- . 00009 00°009'- 00'009°€ ALIAIONGT M/S 000000-061S-0E9-T0
looo 000 looo ooz Jooo STHOSTT- 000 SHOLINOW G¥VOFILYHS M/S E00TT0-021S-0£9-T0
oo 00°Z8Y'EET loo'zeveet [15°580'99- 00890627  |0S'TOE'€6- 00°9YT'81T WNOSY3S M/S Z00TT0-0ZTS-0£9-T0
ooo [eecvavt 00'80T'9YT 0ET8Z0L-  00'LS6'6TT 82'975'0ET- 00'818'87T IWILTIN M/S 000000-0TTS-0£9-TO

sauejes
uoneanay Q€9
pieoqiises  ulwpyumo] peaH-daq TTOZAd TCOZA4 020¢CAd 020ZAd
(44174 70T zeoe aird 138png |enpy 198png

|1e1aq - 2Z0Z Ad - 123png 199}|I9M



8¢ fo 55 dbod 1202 ‘2z jdy “Avpsinyy

000 9'v8v'soE 0069T°128 SS'00T'68T-  00°€86'8VE €rose'ste  oo'9sv'eze | ool
000 loo°sz6'8 loosL£28 vL98L'sE-  00'6LE'TS Tosav'ss-  l00zes'se _ sasuadx :[e30)
PieOqIdds  ulwpyumol  pesH1dag T20ZAd T20TAd 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZA4
zz0z ze0z zz0z Ve 198png lemay 1a8png

j1e12q - 220¢ Ad - 193png 199} |I9M




8¢ o 95 abing

TZ0Z ‘2Z 11dy “Aopsinyy

000 85°560°8ST loozvz'ote lseovr'viz-  loorses'soe BE'SZ0'8ZT- 0029901 | mior
looo 00°0S£'sS looe68'T12 187E9'ELT- |00'668'TTZ 26°299'9¢- 00'05£'5L _ sosuadx3 :jeoL
oo 00'05Z ooosz es-sve- 00'05L 0865  00'0SL B INOHAIT3L 000000-0VES-099-T0
000 00°000°s5 00°6v1'TTZ 86°98€°E2Z- 006Y1'TIZ  ZZ'690'9%- 00°000°SL | SLIT0L 318VLHOd #£OTTO-00ES-099-10
sasuadx3y
ooro 85'SYE'Z0T (00°8v8°v0T vS'ETS‘0s- |o0'9s9'v6 o' LS€°T6- 001606 _ sauie|es :|e30)
000 00'001°Z 00'001°z 00006'T- 000007 00°008'1- 00'006'T | AinaBuo - W3S 000000-0615-099-10
000 000 00'TTL'E 000 loo'syr' 00'0 00'b9E'E _ LNOANS NOILYOVA Z0OTTO-0L15-099-T0
000 8552 '00T 00'££0'66 S ET9'SY- oogiz'es 9v°£55'68- 00'€59'68 IWILTIN M/S 000000-0TTS-099-T0
) sajejes
1032211Qq 9IRS AYUNWIWo) 099
pieogqalas  ulwupyumol  pesqidag 1Z0ZAd TZ0ZA 020ZAd 020ZAd
[44\r4 44014 (44174 alAd 128png [en3oy 198png

[1e19q - 220 Ad - 198png 199)}|IPM




8¢, fo £§ abng

1202 ‘ZZ pady ‘Appsinyy

loo-o |o0r00z 00009’z ooott- 00°009' leg"z1- 00°009° o104
000 o000z o009 looote- 00'009°z egzr- 00'009' sasuadx :jej0)
000 o000z 00002 00°0TT- boooz oo 00002 saljddns 2210 000000-0Z¥S-069-10
000 000 00°00%° 000 0000t 68°T1- 00007 ONISILYIAAY 000000-FOES-069-10
sasuadxy
UO|SSIWIWO) [EILI0ISIH 069
PJeOqIRI3S  ulwpyumo)]  pesyidaq TZ0ZA4 TZ0ZAd 0Z0ZA4 0Z0ZAd
(44014 (44114 [A4114 QLAd 198png lenpdy 198png

[1e12Q - ZZOT A4 - 198png 193)||I9M




82 Jo 85 abind

1Z0Z ‘22 fiady “Aopsinyy

000 00°002'T oo 00°00Z‘ | oy
oo 00°002'T 000 00°002°T _ sasuadx3 :|ea0L
looo 000021 looo 00°002'T | $3114dNS ¥3HLO 000000-08S5-Z69-T0
. sasuadxg
suope.qaa) AepiloH 269
pieoqpajes peaH1dag 120ZAd 0Z0ZA
[£41]4 (4404 aimd 198png

[1e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199131 I9M




8¢ fo 65 abng

1202 ‘22 1Mdy “Aopsinyy
00°0 [oo-000° |00°000'z 00Y9TT- __8.o8.~ |oo-000°z- 00°000'T | 1os01
_g.o N (00°000' |oo000z |oo'poz‘s- 00°000° _8.o8.~|. 00°000°Z _ sasuadx3 :jejoL
looo Joo-o0o'e 000007 00w9TT- 00000 00'000°Z- 00'000'T | S3D1AY3S LOVYINOD 000000-00£5-969-10
o sasuadxz
[PUNO) [RAMN) 969
pJeoqiads  ulwpyumol  pesHdag TZ0ZAd T20ZAd 070ZA4 020ZA4
720z 4114 (44114 ai 1e8png |enjoy 198png

[1e13@ - 220Z Ad - 198png 193} I9M




8¢ Jo 09 abog I202Z ‘¢z 11dy ‘“Aopsinyy

) oozve'szy  [ooLvs'evy TUSBE'SEE-  00'588's8E peresze ooessze | mios

00°0 00°006'65 |oo"00s‘2s og1€6 - 00'09£'59 lsosvB'z9- 00'00z99 | sasuadx3 :jeo)

000 00°000°8 loco00' 86'LYT'E- 00°000°Y 90°€98°- 00°000's _ LINININD3 TIVIVS 000000-0585-669-T0
000 00°000°T 00°000° 000 loo000’t 05'991- 00°005° | SINALI Q3IISSYTONN 000000-08LS-669-T0
000 000 00'00061 s 00'000°0¢ 2r6TLLT 0000821 _ $333 QY¥VD 1103¥D 000000-05£5-669-10
000 00000 00000 000 000007 00'165- 00°00€'T | $333/53SN3011/S3NQ 000000-0ELS-669-10
000 Jooooo'tt 00000TE  |LET69't- 00001’ 18'2€6°01- o008 | TIAVYL TO0TT0-0TLS-669-T0
000 000007 |00000'T 00'988'T- 00°000'T O OTY'T- 00°000°T | saddns J3410 000000-T8S5-669-T0
000 ~ |ooooo‘ts 00'000'TT 08'822'T- 00°000°0T SLY0ETT- 00°000°9 | SINOAINN 000000-085S-669-10
000 000007 00000z TL0TY'T- 00'000'Z S0'9vS‘z- 00000 $3M1ddNS TYNOILY3¥I3Y 000000-0ESS-669-10
00 Joo00s’ 00°005°€ 80°06- 00°000'T 89'962- 00000 $311ddNS YIGIN 000000-00SS-669-10
oo 000052 000057 Joserz- 00005t [z9009°T- 000001 $3NddNS LNIVIN/MIVd3Y 000000-0565-669-10
000 00°000' 000000 96'EVL- 00000t st 00°00Z' . $3M1ddNS 301440 000000-07vS-669-10
000 oooor't 00°00t'T oo'ovy 00099 sesieT 00°00 3DV150d 000000-5vES-669-10
000 00°005°€ 0000t ler 00°005'T oeTS8'e- 00°005 B INOHd3ITAL 000000-0VES-669-T0
000 00°000° 00°000's 00°000' 000 00°000°9 i ONLLNIHd £00TTO-20ES-669-T0
000 000 000 looo 16°LEL- 000 | SIALSAS WYY 000000-TOES-669-T0

000 |ooo00'z 00°000°L 15'686'T- 00°000°z 1019201~ oooo's | $30IAY3S LIVHINOD TOOTTO-00€5-669-10

sasuadx3y

000 |00 zve'see 00°2v2'598 6'Es0'808-  00'STTETE 69'989'6S-  00'68T'T9Z | salejes :[eloL

looo ~ |ooooo'st 00°000'8T 0E'9€6'6- 000006 00'899'tz- 00'00€ZT INILYIAO M/S 000000-0ETS-669-T0
000 oozzaTye 00zze'ere eriL6's6T  00'000'S0€ SE'B6TEET-  O0VIL'ET TYNOSV3S M/S Z00T10-071S-669-T0
oo ooszr's boszr's ov'ovr'e- 00'sZT's ety 00°SZT'S SQI/SYOVY YO8 1/d M/S T00TT0-0ZTS-669-T0

salees
yoeag 669
PlecqpoRs  ulwpyumol pesH1dag T20TAd TZ0CAd 0Z0ZAM 0c0zA
zeo0e zeoz zeot QLA 328png len3oy 128png

[1e13d - 2Z0Z A4 - 198png 193]} |I9M




8/ fo 19 abog

120z ‘zz jdy ‘“Appsinyy

000 [oo0 O0ZVE'ETZ'T  BY'IvE's06-  D0TUE'ETZT  [00'/18'8ETT-  00°LIS'BECT | sasuadx3 :jejoL

000 looo |00000's0¢ looo Joo000's0e 00°000°s0¢- 0000050 | NOILV.LS 3110d OE0LTO-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00'000°0T looooo‘or- 00'000°0T jooooo'ot- 0000001 | 4004 TOOHDS AUVLNINI1I 6Z0£10-0T65-0TL-TO
000 000 0000001 00°000°0T- 00°000°07 |o0000'01- 00'000°0T SL¥NOD SINNIL NOILYIYOIY 8ZOLTO-0T65-01L-T0
000 000 0000001 00°000'0T- loo000°01 00°000'0T- 00°000°0T ZLSNIVIN '8 9 3LNOY LZ0LTO-0T65-0TLT0
000 000 00°000°01 0000001 00°000°01 00°000'0T- 00°000°0T YYNOS NYOS 30IS HOBHVH STOLT0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 loo'o loooo0'0z 000000z 000000 00°000'02- 00°000'0Z Y3dINNd 3414 ¥Z0LT0-0T6S-0TLTO
000 000 loo000'0v 00'000°0%- looc0o'or 00°000°0%- 00'000°0% 3INIONE 3414 £20£T0-0T6S-0TL-TO
1000 00°0 00°000'52 |00000°sz- [00'000°sZ 00°000'52- 00°000'sT IN3IWdIND3 TYLNIWLYYAIA ZZOLTO-0T6S-0TL-TO
000 000 00°000's 00°000°s- 00°000°S 00'000°s- 00'000' 107THDV38 OAYIl ONIAVA TZ0LT0-0T65-0T£-10
000 looo 00'000°01 00'000°0T- 00°000°0T 00°000'0T- 0000007 | AONYD NOILLVLS ¥34SNVHL 0Z0LT0-0T65-0TL-T0
00 looo 00000 000005 00°000's Joo000's- 00'000's AVMQVOY L191M OS ONIAVA 6T0LT0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°01- 00°000°01 00'000'01- 00°000'07 1300W3Y TIVH NMOL BTOLTO-0TES-0TL-TO
000 000 looo00'0z 000000z~  00°000°0% 00°000'SZ- 00°000'SZ SINOOYLS3Y 01314 SYINVE LTOLI0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00'800'6 00°800°6- 008006 00°£18'8- 00°£18°8 LYdMIN YILVM3ILSYM 9TOLTC-0T65-0TL-TO
000 000 00°000'S8E 00°000's8¢- 00'000's8€ 00000066~ 00°000°06€ NOILINYLSNOD NOILVLS 3414 STOLT0-OTES-0TL-T0
0oo 000 00°000°ST 00'000'51- 00°000°T [oo000's- 00'000'S Z N9IS3 NOILVLS 3414 ¥T0LT0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00'000'01 00"000'0T- 000000 00'000°0T- 0000001 390148 SWIL ITONN €T0LT0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00°000° 00'000's- 00°000° l00°000°s- 00°000°S Z 3WNSOTD TIHANV] ZTOLT0-0T65-01-T0
000 00'0 00'000's 00000's-  Joor00o's 00000'ST-  00°000°ST N9ISIA NOILVLS 344 TTOLTO-0T65-0TL-T0
000 00'0 looooo'se 00'000'S€- loo-000'se 00°000°0%- 00°000°0% ALY3dO¥d NOILVLS 3413 0TOLTO-0T6S-0TL-10
000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T- 00 000%0T lo0o00'01- 00'000°01 aN1IX3 NON ALNNOD DILd3S 600£T0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 00000001 00°000°00T- 00"000°00T 00000'S0T- 00'000°50T ONIddVI/IUNSOTD TIHANYT 800LTO-0T6S-0TL-T0
000 000 Jooveeys BYVEEYS- loovee'vs 00'000°05- 00'000'0S 445 ¥3LYM INNIN £00LTO-0TES-0TZ-10
000 oo 00°000'ST 00'000'ST- 00°000'ST 00°000°5T- 00000t | 1809 ¥3LYM INOW 900LT0-0T65-0TL-T0
000 000 000 000 000 looo 000 10X3 NON ONV1 3ZAYAVHOAVHD S00LT0-0T65-01£-10
000 000 00°000'st 00'000'SY- 00°000°Y 0000005  00'000°0S ¥3LN3D YOIN3S YOOLTO-0T6S-0TL-T0
000 000 00'0 00'0 000 Jooo 000 318¥aNTOX3 NON ANV ¥39139 £00£T0-0T65-0TZ-T0
looo 000 ~ looooo'or 00'000'0%- 00°000'0% loo000'se- 00'000°E | HO¥NHD ONIGTING INNW Z0DLT0-0TES-0TL-TO
looo Jooo 00°000°s 00'000's- 00000 loooo0'st- 00°000°T 4004 AYVYEN TO0LT0-0TES-0TL-TO

) sasuadxy
1/1-jedpung 815199 0TL
pieoqpalss  ulwpyumo] peaHidag TCO0ZM TZ0CZA 020ZAd 0¢0ZA
44014 720t (44014 QLA 128png lenoy 108png

[1e33Q - 220T A4 - 193png 193[}|I9M




8¢ Jo z9 abog 1202 ‘zz ndy “Aopsinyy

000 000 DOTVEETZT  ByZvE's06- 00°ZVE'ETZ'T 00°LIZ'BETT-  00°LT8'8EL'T {0301
pieoquaEs uiwpyumol  peayidag T20ZA4 T20ZA4 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZAM
7207 7207 7707 aLAd 198png [enjoy 188png

[1e39q - 220 Ad - 198png 199}|I9M



8¢ fo £9 abog 1202 ‘z2 udy “Avpsinyy

000 loo'o [0o-6t89ve S5°02'961-  (00'6T8‘9VE 8rzss'ose-  oovss'ose | msos

00'0 looo loo618'9vE SS'L07'96T-  00'6T8'9VE BLTSS'0BE-  |00'vSL'08E . sasuadx3 :[ejoL

000 oo 00'€/800z  |ST9EV'00T-  |o0ess‘ooc OSTLO'€TZ-  00'EL0'ETZ | NOILYLS 3D10d OE0LI0-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 loo'o 00'00T'T 00'00T'T- 000017 looo0g‘T- 00'00E'T _ 3004 T00HIS AYVININTI 620£T0-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 00'092° 00'092'- 00092 00°09v'z- 00'09%'z SLYNOD SINNIL NOILYI¥IIY 8Z0L10-5T65-TSL-T0
000 000 00002 00°002- 00002 0000 loooor | Z 1S NIYW '8 9 3LN0Y £Z0£10-ST65-TSL-T0
00'0 000 00'008 00'008- 00008 00°008- 00008 YYNOS NVIS 30IS HOSHVH S20LT0-ST65-TSL-T0
_oo.o 000 00°06%'E 00°06Y€- [oo0str'e 00°068°¢- 00°068€ ¥3dWAINd U1 $ZOLTO-ST6S-TSL-TO
oo looo [ocoto's 00'019'8- 000198  |oo0Tr'6- ovoty's . INIDNG 3414 £20LT0-ST6S-TSL-10
000 |ooo 00026 00°026'7- 000267 looozv's- ooory's LNINCINDI TYLNINLYYHIA ZZ0LT0-STES-TSL-TO
000 Tooo Jooooo 00°009- 00°009 “loooos- 00'00£ 1071 HOV38 OAVIN ONIAVd TZ0LT0-ST65-TSL-TO
000 000 00'5£0° 00'sg0'z- 00'$€0' 00'5€2°2- 00°5€2° AONV NOILVLS ¥34SNVHL 0Z0LT0-ST65-TSL-TO
000 000 ~ Joorooe 00"00z- ovooz 00'00€- 00'005 AVMQVOY L141M OS ONIAVd 6T0LI0-ST6S-TSLTO
000 Tooo o00gz'T 00'092Z- 00°092° 0009tz looosv'z | 13Q0N3Y TIVH NMOL 8TOLTO-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 000Z5'y 000257~ looozsy 00'020°s- 00'020's SINOOYLS3Y Q131 SYDIVE LT0LT0-ST6S-TSL-TO
o 000 00'sSTE  [po'ssTe- loo'sste BETEE'E- 00TEE'E LYJMIAl HILVMILSVM 9TOLTO-GT65-TSL-TO
000 000 00°'SLE'3L 00'5L0°2- l00's2€'8L 00°050'88- 00050°88 NOLLINYLSNOD NOLLYLS F¥l4 STOLTO-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 00'5Lv' 00'00¢- 00'5L¥' 00059 00059 ] NOISIA NOLLVLS 3¥I4 ¥T0LT0-ST6S-TSL-TO
00'0 000 00007 00'SZTT- 00'00T'Z 00'0S€Z- oooser | 3901¥8 SWIL TTONN ET0LTO-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 00'528 0005~ 00528 00'056- 00056 3WNSOTD THHANY ZTOLT0-ST6S-TSLTO
000 000 00'525 00'05€'T- 00'52S 00'058°2- 00°058° NDISIA NOLLVLS 3414 TT0LT0-ST65-TSL-T0
000 000 00'szz 005292 002y 00'059's- 00059 " ALY3dOYd NOILVLS 3414 OTOLT0-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 looosear  Joosze'e- 00'05€'91 00'006°81- 0000687 | ONIddVD/34NSOT) TIHANYT 800£10-ST65-TSL-T0
000 000 00°9vS‘T 9712 00°9YS'T 06'vSL'- oossLz | 44S ¥3LSAS HILYM INNW £00£TO-ST6S-TSL-TO
000 000 00'SZT'T 000 00'STT'T 00'005'T- 00°005'T _ 1809 ¥ILYM INNIW 900£T0-ST65-TSL-T0
000 000 000 000 [oo0 000 000 15X3 NON ANV 3ZAVAVHDAVHD S00LT0-ST65-TSL-T0
000 looo 00's£0'€ 005287 00's20' o0"0sz't- 000ST'Y g Y3LNID HOINIS Y00LTO-ST65-TSL-T0
00'0 oo 000 000 000 looo 000 | 218¥an15%a NON ANV 439139 £00£10-ST65-T5L-T0
000 Jooo 00'009 ~ loooos- 00009 lo00s5°1- 00'055'T HO¥NHI ONIQTING INNIN Z0OLTO-ST6S-TSL-T0
000 000 0o's¢ loo'sz- 00'sz 0000~ 00°00¢ i 400Y AYVYEIN TO0LTO-STES-TSL-T0

sasuadxy

L/1-1sai900u) d1A9S392a  TSL

pieoqu3|3S  ulwpyumol  pesaqidaq T20ZAd TZ0ZA4 0Z0TA4 020TAd
720T 7207 7e0T alad 198png [endy 128png

|'e1aq@ - ZZ0T Ad - 198png 193}}|I9M



87 fo 9 abog

1202 ‘22 j4dy “Abpsinyy

ooo oooo0'or  [00'000%0% se'sio’te joooo’'sz |00 ooost'sz | mos
oo lo0"000'0t [o0000'0r I5€'5L0°L¢- 00'000'sZ oo 00°0ST'SZ | sasuadx3 :jeo)
000 000000y oo o000y SE'SLO'LE 0000052 oo 00°0sT'sZ | LS3YILNI W31~ LHOHS 000000-ST6S-ESL-TO
o ) B sasuadx3
isaiajuj wal Moys €52
Pleoqis[3s  ulwpyumol  pesHideg TZ0ZAS T20ZAd 0Z0TA 0Z0ZAd
zzoe (44114 zz0z dLAd 198png (enjoy 198png

I1832@ - ZZOT A4 - 193png 193)}]19M




8/ fo 59 abng

T20Z ‘22 iMdy “Aopsinyy

00'0 oot
(00°0 oo'ost
00'0 00°0sT

pJEoqIOBI9S  UIWPYUMO]
[4414 (4474

000 | o
000 ] sasuadx3 :|ejo)
000 LS3IYILNI ANNS3Y XVL 3/4 000000-09£5-952-T0
sosuadxzy
spunjay 3/Y -1sa1a3u] 952
0zoZM
198png

|'e19Q - 2Z0Z Ad - 198png 193|}|I9M




8/ Jo 99 abng

00'0

ooro

looost‘orz

loo0s1'01Z

120Z ‘2z j4dy ‘Aopsinyy

|so-z90'69- _Sdﬂ.ﬂ- 000 ._ 10301
.@cd ._85 _8.9:6: [00°ze0'69- __mo.oﬁdn _S.SEN- loo0 .._ sasuadx :jerog
000 000 00'TS9TL 00'0ZZ'vz- 00'T59°CL 00°ZLY'ET- 000 uomn L Bulpuas -32I0HD 100HIS SO0ZTO0-0£95-0Z8-10
woo.c 000 ] 00°080°€ 00°000°T- 00'080°¢ 00°10¢- 000 B IDYVHIUNS TYMINIY NON ANY #002T0-0£95-078-T0
__8.0 000 |oo066'€S 00°Z78'L1- 00°066'ES 00'Z21'T- 000 | ALIMOHLNY LISNVHLTYNOID3Y E00ZTO-0£95-0Z8-10
000 00°0 00'ST6'C 00'88Y- 00°ST6°C 00'T- 000 4 $11SIQ NOILNTIOd ¥IY Z00ZT0-0€95-028-10
%.o _oo.o 00'¥iS'LL 00°7€S°s2- 00'¥S'LL 00°94T 000 _ 1J3r04d T04.LNOD OLINDSO TO0ZT0-0£95-028-10
) sasuadx3y
SUBWISSASSY AJuno) 1@ 3jeiS 078
pleogaeles ulwpyumol  peaqidag TT0ZA T20ZAd 0T0ZAd 020z
(44114 zeoz Te0T alnd 198png lenjoy 198png

[1e13Q - 220Z Ad - 198png 199}|I9M



8L Jo £9 3abnd

IZ0Z ‘ze judy “Aopsinyy
00'0 00°s8£'T9 |o086€'50Z _.eqmaw.sﬂ- /00°86£°50Z 00°88€°002- 100°0 | oy
_mo.a lo0's82'zt9 loo86€'s02 loog69°zo1- |o086E"s0Z _oo.wwm.oﬁ- 000 _ sasuadxy :|er0)L
[ooo 00'£8E'ZTY 000 00 LET'ES- jooo 00'Z89'€01- 000 | IN3INSSISSY IWINOD ALNNOD £00ZT0-0£95-0£8-10
000 00'86€'502 00'86€°50T 0029561 00°86€°50T 00°90£96- 000 ] €S SEJ 19N XVL ALNNOD 900ZT0-0£95-0£8-10
- sosuadxgy
sjuawissassy Ayuno) g8
pleoqpaps  ulwpyumol  peapidag TZ0TAd 120ZA4 020ZAd 0Z0ZAd
[440]4 (44014 [44074 alAd 198png [enoy 198png

1'e33Q - 220T Ad - 198png 199}|I9M



8/ Jo 89 abog

1Z0Z “‘zz judy ‘“Aopsinyy

_,o]c.o. _S.Sﬂ.ua.ﬂ _oo.umEme.ﬂ 00'EZ8'TEY'T-  |00°LLS'90V'T _8.@%5&@- 00'969'Lb2'T jp301
_o|o.o _oo.mﬁ.ﬁm; _S.wmmume.ﬁ (00'EZ8'TEY'T-  |00°2£S°90b'T ?c.ommsﬁ;. _.8@353 | saue|es :jejo)
_o|o.o oo'Tot'9LsT loo'gez ‘960 00°€T8TEV'T-  [00°££5'900'T _8@85&4- 100°969°2¥2'T | NOLLNGIYLNOD NOISN3d 408 ¥3 000000-0LTS-TT6-T0
o sallejes
Juswaanney Ajuno)  TI6
PIBOQIIDBS  ulwpyumo] peaH-daq T20ZAd T20ZAd 020ZAd 020CAd
2202 [440r4 zeot almd 198png fenyay 1°8png

[1e39@ - 220Z Ad - 198png 193} I9oM




8, fo0 69 abod 1Z0Z ‘22 (1dy “Aopsinyy
oo 00°520'6T1 00°000'STE  00°£20'e8- 00°000°sTT 00°00SPTT-  00'000°STT | oy
o000 Joo'szo'sTT ooooo'stt  [00'cz0'ss- loo"o0o‘st1 loooosvi-  ooroo0'sTr saldefes ;jelo0)
000 loo'szo'stt loo000’sTT 00°£20°€8- loo0o'str Jovaost1- looooo'ste | 3DNVUNSNI dNOD SHINHOM 000000-TLTSZT6-T0
) sauejes
oouesnsu| dwo) siaqiom  ZI6
pieogpaias  ulwpyumol pesy1dag TZ0CAd TC0TAd 020ZAd 0C0CAd
[4414 [£4v74 [44v14 QLA 398png |en3oy 198png

1e12Q - Z20Z Ad - 198png 1291419M



87 Jo 0£ 3boyg

120z ‘2z j1dy Aopsinyy
looo loo000‘0e 00000°0€ [eos90zt- loo000'sz 86'996'VZ- 00°000°ST | ooy
lo0o o0'000'0¢ Jo0000°0€ e0'690'21- 00°000'5T 86'996'Z- 00'000'sZ | sauejes ‘jeo)
oo l00'000°0€ 000000 [g0'690'1- Joooo0*se B6'996'vz-  00000'S | 3ONVHNSNI LNJWAOTANINN 000000-0LTS-ET6-T0
) . salejes
uonesuadwo) juswiojdwaun €16
pleoqaslss  uwpyumol  pespidag 1Z0ZAd 12024 0Z0ZAd 0T0ZAd
(44014 et (44114 QLA 138png Jen3oy 193png

11e13Q - ZZ0Z Ad - 393png 199} |I9M



8¢ fo 1£ abog

1202 ‘2Z 1udy ‘Appsinyy

00’0 0O'BL6'LYY'T  (00'BL6LVY'T  [8v9sv'sa9- 00°7z0'6/ET  LL€BT'SIE'T-  00°Z20'6LET | imow

000 00'BL6UtY'T  [00'8L6'4vb'T  [8v'9BV'S9-  O0LTOGLET  LLESTSLET  00°LZO'6LET sauiejes :jejoL

000 000 looo vrov9's- 000 0£'009°S- 0o | N8 Odd-GH OTOTTO-TLIST6-T0
000 000 000 05'STE01- 000 [cevsrze- 000 _ QH 3NT8-OWH 600TTO-TLIS+T6-T0
000 000 0o  |oz9es'or- 000 0578505~ 000 | 0d3 T1d/¥VH QH 800TTO-TLIS¥T6-T0
looo [oo0 000 v8'059°01- 000 8L'9LY'TE- 00'0 ] Odd T1d/4VH QH LOOTTO-TLIS-+16-T0
000 00'0 000 00°'STH's- 000 05'LTY'ST- 000 Odd S33¥1L34 91id/A¥YH S00TTO-TLIS-HT6-10
000 000 oo 00'£82'T1- 000 00vL5'€2- 000 Odd S33¥1L3Y 3YD 38 SOOTTO-TLISYIE-TO
oo 000 000 00°€29 - 000 [oezvg'6s- 000 $33YIL3Y HN3 91Id/AYYH $0OTTO-TLIS-VI6-T0
oo looo 00'0 oo'sss- 000 00'0 00'0 $3341134 318 OWH €00TTO-TLIS+T6-10
000 oo 00'0 00'68T°5- 000 00'681'LS- 000 — 043 $334IL3Y O11d /AYYH ZOOTTO-TZIS-V16-10
00'0 000 000 099697 000 S9'661'T6- 000 $334113¥ X3AIW TOOTTO-TLISYIE-TO
000 000 000 91'926'09- 00'0 orscz'ezt- 000 Odd SIAILIY 1Id/AYVH YO0TTO-0L1S+16-T0
000 looo 00'0 8L €201 00'0 L6E18'L9- 000 Odd SIAILOV 34VD 318 E00TTO-0LIS-HT6-TO
000 000 looo € LTv'oLt- 000 LUSEL'90r- 000 0d3 SIALLIV 318 OWH Z00TIO-0LTSVT6-TO
000 000 000 ¥9'162°€LT- 000 E66IT'YYE- 000 0d3 SIALLOY 91d/A¥YH TOOTTO-0LIS-+T6-T0
000 00'8L6'YY'T  [008LE'LWY'T 000 00£Z0'6LET 00162V 00LZ0'6LET | YDIQIN dNOYD FALLDY 3 000000-0LTSYT6-TO

sallejeg
?duesnsuj yyeay dnosn 16
PIEOGPAPS  uiwpyumor  pedyidag 120ZAd 120ZM 020ZAd 020ZAd
zz0T 4404 zz0T aLAd 128png lenjoy 198png

['e13Q - 20T Ad - 193png 1939)}||I9M

T e T S f ——— ORI



8. fo zz abog

TZ0Z ‘2 j4dy ‘Aopsiny)

000 ~ loorosz'z 00°000'9 [o08z6°e- 00°005°9 98'8TE'S- oooos's | mor
000 00'05£'L l00°000° joo'8z6°- lo000s'9 Jogrsre’s- 00'005'9 | sape|es :jeio)
000 00°0SL'T 000 98'69L- 000 log"£99'1- 0000sT | S3341L3Y 341 ZOOTTO-0LTSSTETO
oo 00'000°s 00'000°9 07'8S1'Z- 000059 os'T59'- 00'000°s SIALLDV 341 TOOTTO-0LTS-ST6-TO

) ) sauejes

817 #dueansu) dnoig  GI6
PJEOGIIBPS  unupyumol  peaHidag T20ZA4 T20ZAd 020ZAd 020Ad
44074 (4414 ze0z QLAd 129png en1oy 18png

[1e13Q - ZZ0Z A4 - 393png 199)||I9M




8/ Jo g/ abogd

TZ0Z ‘¢z pady “Appsinyj

00’0 00°9v6'SHT loo"gv6°0sT [ersze'se- 00°040'TET lesozt'zr-  oossgerr | ymior
00’0 00°9v6'sVT 00°9v60ST feeseese 00°0v0°TET le6ozrzzt oosss'ert _ ssjejes ;e
looo looove‘syt 00'9¥6°0ST ersez'se- oo oro'TeT 660z 221 00'S58°6T 3¥VDIQIN ¥3 000000-0£15-9T6-T0
o sauejes
21EJIPaAIA DJBYS UMOL  9T6
PiEOGYSRS  uppyumol  pesH1dag 1202 TZ0ZA4 0z0zZM 0z0ZM
et 20t (44174 alAd 198png |en1oy 198png

|1e1aq - 2Z0Z Ad - 193png 193)J1PM




8z Jo vz abnd

IZ0Z ‘zz judy ‘Aopsiny

00'0 00°000°eY 00°000°€¥ ocot8ze- [15°666'L2- 00'000°s% | IosoL
000 00°000'p 00°000°ew oL oT8TE- 00°000°0% [15°666'22- 00°000'sY . sapejes ;oL
000 (00°000°Et 00000'€w ozote'ze- 0000001 [rs'666'22- 00°000's% | SON3dILS IONVHNSNI HLTVIH 800TTO-0LTS-LI6-T0
salejes
2duelnsu] YjeaH - spuadns  £16
pieoqiiaes  ulwpyumoy peay1dag T20ZAd T¢0ZM 020CAd 020ZAd
7zZ0z zz0z zeoe QLA 198png [enjoy 1a8png

['e1aq - 20T Ad - 198png 193}1I9M



8L Jo sz abod

1202 ‘22 1dy “Aopsinyy
ooo |o0-000°0t 00°000°% 00'00s'TT- 00°000°6T ~ Joooo0zr- 00'0 | mar
000 Joo-000'ot o000’y [o0'00s'TT- 00°000'6T 00°000°£3- 000 ] sajiejes :|e3o
000 oo 000’0t o000’y [oo0os'Tt- ooooo'st  Joooo0'zT- 000 _ SNOLLNERILNOD VSH Y3 000000-0LTS-8T6-T0
- o sauejes
3UN02DY sSuIneS Yi|eaH aleys umol 816
pJeoqias|ss ulpyumo) peaH1dag T20TA TZ0CAd 070ZAd 0Z0ZAd
44174 zzoT (44114 QLA 198png lenaoy 1e8png

[1839@ - 20T Ad - 198png 193|4I9oM




8¢ fo 9, abod 1202 ‘zZ udy “Aopsanyy
00’0 joooos' Joooos's 9T 000 [o0 00°0 | moy
000 00°00s'8 l00°00s'8 eoTIv's- Jooo looo 00°0 ] sauejes :|ej0)
000 loooos' 000058 eoTTr's- looo looo 000 ] INV¥9O0Yd 310-NHOM XV 000000-06TS-0v6-T0
B - sape|es
HOIOM XelL  0Ov6
PiEOGI3PS  ulpyumol  pedHidag 1202Ad T20ZA4 0Z0ZAd 020ZAd
ze0z (44114 ze0t aLMd 128png en1oy 1e8png

[1e13Q - 220T A4 - 193png 199}}|I9M




8£ Jo £ abog

1202 ‘22 pudy ‘“Apopsinyy

000 loo00o'vee l0-000'sTE TrTeLsie 00'000%0EE 03'866'TIE-  00°0007TE | foi01
000 00°000°pEE [00°000°STE [rzzes'sce-  Jooooo‘ose lgges'te-  oo'000TTE | sasuadx3 :jejo)
000 oo 000 6v"029- 000 000 000 $318115N030 3ONVENSNI E00TTO-0VLS-S6-T0
000 o000y 00'0 00°sLTT- 000 0s°L€L'T- 000 aNO8 WNIN¥d IONVENSNI Z00TTO-0vLS-5v6-T0
000 00'000'0€€ 00-000°sTE cL9T0vie  [00'000'0EE 9ETLT'OTE:  OD000ZIE |  IONVHNSNIALMIGYI/ALYIJOY TOOTTO-0VLS-Sv6-10
000 000 000 0008 000 00°06- 000 334 SYINNNY 000000-00ES-Sv6-T0
sasuadxy
aoueunsuj Ayjiqer] / Auadosd  sv6
PiEOGII9BS  UlWpYUmMOl  pesH‘idag 120ZA4 TZ0ZAd 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZA
720t 44114 zzoz aLAd 198png lenyoy 198png

['e13Q - 220T A4 - 198png 193}}|19M



8¢ o g¢ aboyg 1202 ‘zz 11dy “Aopsinyy

00°0 VE'665'POY'TZ  00'I8P'690'CT  £7'98T'656'T1- _oo.mwno%.ﬁ Fmdﬁdmv.ﬁ. 00°L65°£80'T2 _ :398png |e10] pueln
pieOqO8I8s  UIWpPYUMOL peaH1daq TZ0ZAd T20ZAd 020TAd 020¢ZAd
20T 20T 7e0z aLAd 198png |lemay 198png

|'elaq - 20T Ad - 198png 199}IIPM




vT fo T abnd

IZ0Z ‘Z2 1dy “Abpsinyy

000 00°005's82 00TvE'LSZ  [18uEEVVT-  00°TvELST losse0 e oosco'siz 10301
00°0 00'006'6 00'0sz'TT |98'59T°s- 00°052°TT z0°800°0T- 00°0SE“ET sasuadx3 :|e0)
sasuadx3y
000 00'009's.z  (00°260°9v2 S6TLL6ET-  [00°2Z60°9%2 PEOEOT9T-  00'STL'L9T sauejes :|eloL
sajejes
lojelpsiuilpy umol  €ZT
000 00°0L€"LT looozs‘9t 06°vv6'9- looozg‘or 16'898'9T- 00°0£8'9T 1301
00'0 00°0£8p jooozey 86vv6'T- loo-oze'y soTeer 00'0LE'Y sasuadx3 :je30)
sasuadx3y
000 loogos‘zt 00°00S°ZT [26°666% Joo-00s‘zt £8"L6'TT- 00°005'ZT saue|es :|ejoL
saleles
uswIPRRS  ZZT
looo 00°000°0% 00°sv0'vZ loo'o 00°006°2Z 00°000'5- 00'000'2 | oy
oo lo0"000‘0p loo'svo'vz looo loo-006'zz 00°000°s- 00°000°€Z | sasuadx3 :|ejoL
sasuadxy
upny 171
o' o000t loo'00T loo'o 00°00T 00’0 00'00T 19101
00°0 l0o‘00t o000t oo 00°001 Joo0 00001 saeles ;elo)
sauejes
sa|qesuo)  SIT
000 loo'sz9 loosz9 os'zer- 00529 oooze- 00009 | moy
00°0 00°00v l00°00v loooz- 0000y oo'ozr- 00°00Y sasuadx3 :[e30)
sasuadx3y
000 00'szz joo'szz os°eTT- bo'szz ooooe- 00°002 saue|es :jejoL
sapejes
lojesapoly 1T
pieogsjes uiwpyumo) peaH1dag TC0TAM TZ0TAd 0C0ZAd 0Z0ZAd
zeoe TeoT zeoe aind 338png |enyoy 1o89png

[1e39@ - 220Z Ad - 198png 199} |I9M




vI fo z abod I20Z ‘gz judy ‘Aopsinyj

lo0'o ee'629'961 0o'zes'z61 [TosoE‘zs- loo'TzT's6T SOTYO'BLT-  00°ZYI'BLT o101
000 [00°0L€eS 00'0ZE'PS 0v'29L'¢- 0007699 lt9°6£T°05- 00°0£0'TS | sasuadx3 :jejoy
sasuadx3y
looo £€"60€EVT 00'ZST'EVT 12'865'89- 00°181'8ZT 86ToV'STT- 00°zLs'cer _ saue|es :|ej0)
sauejes
siossassy  THT
loo‘o 00°058'267 oo'8Ls’LLt 90°5p0'56- boses‘zet 9ESTT'OST-  00°ZTT'9ST | oy
000 lo00s9°ge 00°06€0T 18'026's- o-ose‘0r 220501 00°06€°0% | sosuadx3 :jeoL
sasuadx3
00’0 ocooz'ssz  [o0'88tiLat [svzres- 088291 v6'209'sKT-  00°ZzL'SHT . sauejes :jejo)
salefes
ueunNo’yY et
loo'o 0000568 00°00568 loo'o 00°005'68 ooro oozoLoL | ooy
loo'o 0000568 [o0-00s68 oo 0000’68 000 ~ oozoL'0L _ sasuadx3 ielo)
sasuadxy
pund anJasay  Z€T
000 oo’ l00"00¢ 8YISL 00°00€ ses- 000 | miog
oo oo looo0g 8Y'ISL- 00°00€ sz'8e- 00°0 .. sasuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadxy
salwwo) adueury TET
000 20°T0€'e92 oo°zeg vsT \£'896'8L- 00°zEE VST v6'vE0OST- 00°€SY0ST | ooy
000 loo‘osszs l00-008'1z 9£'€98"s- 00°008'12 20'vs'oe- 0000512 _ sasuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadx3y
00°0  [eotzs'ore oozes‘zet tovov'eL- loozes‘zer Lg'06Y'6ZT-  00'ES0'6ZT . sauejes :jejoL
saleles
uoHEASIUIWPY [eIBUSD  HZT
pleoqidds  Ulpyumol peaq1dag TC0CAd TC0TAd 0Z0TAd 0Z0ZAd
[£4v14 ez Teo alArd 198png [en3ay 1e8png

11e39Q - ZZ0T Ad - 193png 1933I9M



vr fo £ abod I20Z ‘zZ udy “Aopsinyy
000 Jevoesan lo0°e09'00T €8'865°€1- 00°08+'96 0°8zSs‘vo- 00't%S'v9 19101
000 bo'ozo‘TT 00'0£0°2T seesze- 00°028'TT BLEEs'y 00'v6TET sasuady3 :jejo)
sasuadx3y
00°0 'sT'p58'90T 00'ges’es SY'SYE‘TY- 00'099'v8 8T'V0009- 00'0SE'TS sapejes :jejo)
souejes
P umol 191
000 00°000°9 l00°000°9 evoey'T- 00°000°T [remes 00'000°T1 | mioy
loo'o 00°000°9 00°000'9 evosv'T- 00°000°'TT TLThE'S- 00°000'TT sasuadx3 :|ejoL
sasuadxy
9L Xxel 8ST
oo lo0"00586T loo-0os‘get L2706'92- 00005867 9'0959vT- 00'000°€ST | o0t
looo |o000s'861 00'005'86T L2°206'92- 00°005'86T 9£:095'9vT-  00°000'EST | sasuadx] :|ejo]
sasuadx3y
uoneziuayndwo) €ST
00'0 00°000'sZT 00"000'5ZT [ro'v8s'6z- 00°000°sZT ET666'V0T-  00°000'S0T 104
00'0 00°000'5ZT loo000'szT [r9-v88‘6e- Jooooo'ser €T'666'0T-  00°000°S0T sasuadx3 :[eoL
sasuadx3z
[eda1 1St
looo 00'0S£'vL2 00°sov'orz 0zTTSE'B0T-  [ousovorz 16'085'122- 00'869'vZZ [
oo 00°sgg0L 00°5v6'9Y log'9sz'T1- 00°Sv6'9 vS'SLE'SE- 00'ST9'EY _ sasuadx3 :|ejo)
sasuadxg
00'0 Joo'ssevoz oo0av‘e6T logver'ze- 00°03t'€6T |evsoz'est-  00'szo‘tsr sapejes ;oL
sapejes
Jainseall Syt
PIROGIIBPS  ulwpyumol  pesHidag TZ0ZAd TZ0ZA4 020TAd 020ZA4
zz0T Te0T zz0T QLAd 198png [emoy 198png

|'e1aq - 20T Ad - 198png 193}4|I9M




vT fo v abvg 1202 ‘2z iudy ‘Appsinyy

oooos't 000057 000 00°00s'T l0006'1- 00°00S°T | oy
000 00°005'T 00°00S'T 00'0 00005t looo'T- 00'005'T _ sasuadxd :jejoL
sasuadxg
aquwwo) adxedsuadg /T
00'0 lo0°90¢ loo9sz'T es'rvoT- 0095zt log"vsL - 00'95L'T | moy
looo 00°90€ 00°9sL'T e8'tp0°T- 00'952'T 98'vSLT- 00'95£°T sasuadx3 :jel0L
sasuadxgy
s|eaddy jo pieog Suluoz 9/1
oo oo'ss0's oo'sevot |s8't8z'z- 00'sEY°0T S6Zev'oT- 00°sev'0T 1301
oo 00°sg0'8 00°sgv'0T 81827 00'SEY0T S6ZEY'0T- 00°SEP0T _ sasuadxg :jejoL
sasuadx3z
pieog Suiuueld tLT
00'0 lo0ose’e 000€9'€ e8'652'1- 00°0£9°E Lozis- 00'0£9°€ | oy
00°0 00°08g‘E 00"0€s‘e leg'65z'T- 00°0E9°E (tozrs- 00089 | sasuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadx3
uoReAIISUO)  TLT
000 loo°ses’ot oo‘ozrot V066" Joo'sec't 15205 TT- 00°b0S'TT 1101
oo 00'9LL't 00°850°z 98'955'- jooo0z's 79'sE9'6- 00°V8T'9 | sasuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadxy
loo'o 00°290°€ Jooz90'e ts'esT'e- 00'ses's 68098 00°0Z€'s _ saueles :e30]
salejes
suonensiday/suonds|y  z9t
PJEOQIIBRS  UlWpyumoL peayideg T20TA4 TC0ZAd 020ZAd 0C0CAd
zzoz zeoe zzo0t GLAd 1o8png lenay 128png

llelaq - 20T Ad - 198png 1393 I9M



vt fo s abod

looo

lo0"000°0T

120z ‘zZ pudy “Aopsinyy

loo"oooor 00°000°0T o0 00°000°0T- 00°000°07 10301
000 loo000‘ot 00°000°0% loo'o 00°000°0T (00°000°0T- 00'000'01 sasuadx3 :|ejoL
sasuadxy
9243WWO0) JO Jaquiey)  Z8T
loo'o o000t 00°00T 000 00°001 000 ~ 000s 10301
) loooor  Tooroor 000 looroot [ 00'05 _ sasuadx3 jeo)
sosuadx3y
29RIWWO0) AJOSIAPY YsY|IdYs 18T
ooo loo'000'9 lo0000°e os8e9'TT- 000009 06°s€°9T- 00000°72 10301
000 l00°000°9 oo o0o'tz 0£'8L9'T1- 00°000°9 06'sEE"9T- 00°000'T2 sasuadxy 01
sasuadxy
uonesedoid ysylioys 08T
oo 0s'vee'ssz 00'985892 szeveze-  |on'Bsv'6st ooz ooezowz 10301
looo 00°095'8¢ o090’z 882815 loo090'62 9T'69€ETL- 0002912 sasuadiq :(e301
sasuadxy
oo osves'osz 00°925'6€2 lteoss'zr- oorsetogz I70£'02  00°€s0‘0ze . sauejes :|ejo)
sajejes
yslPys 641
00’0 00'00v' 000027 l00-00z't- 000047 lo000z'z- 00°00s' | ooy
000 loo'o lo000€ oo 00°00€ looo 00'00¢ . sasuadxg :jel0)
sasuadx3y
000 oo'oov'z o000tz lo0-00z'T- 00°00v'z l00°00z'- 00'002° sauejes :|e1o)
sayejes
uapiepy SUlIBH 84T
pleoqiasds  ulpyumol peaHdag TC0TAd T20CAM 020TAd 0Z0ZAd
220t [440[4 (44414 aLAd 198png jenjoy 198png

[1e19Q - 220C A4 - 193png 193}||I9M




v fo 9 abod T20Z ‘Z2 1dy “Avpsany

looo BLELO0LLT  00TZE'9LLT  BST6ETI-  00'SZ0S09'T  [C9'SOBLST-  00'SZ8TZST | fowor
000 loo0t8‘z8T 00°006'TST lto'zov'or- 00°SET'LZT jsozzsvir- ooseo'grr | sosuadxy :jejo)
sasuadx3y
00’0 BUEITIBST  OTZVVLST  [16BT6STL  00'EGS'LLY'T  [pS'EROSEV'T-  000GT'EONT | saue|es :|e10L
sauejes
ANlod 01¢
looo loo'000'0z |o0000°0z looo Joo-000'0z ££°666°6T 100'000°0C [o301
00'0 00°000°02 000000z 00'0 00'000°02 ££°666'6T- 00°000°02 _ sasuadia :jeloL
sasuadx3y
Mueynsuo) 96T
00'0 [o0-000'v1 00"00s*9T £5'STLG- 0000591 00°000'vT- 00°050°vT | ooy
000 ~ |oooo0'vt l00"005'91 eS'STL'6- 0000591 00°000'¢T- 00'050'vT | sasuadx3 :jeoL
sasuadxy
sjuesiepy/yodoy umol S6T
000 00°008'Y 00°000° szTTET- 00°000' log"666°t- 00'000' | oy
00'0 00°008y 100°000°S |szzreT- 00°000's loe*666't- 00°000°s sasuadxd :jejol
sasuadx3y
AMuoypiny Suisnoy 68T
000 00'050°T 00°0ST' 00'0 00°0ST'T looo 00°0ST'T | oy
loo'0 00°0s0'T 00°0ST'T looo 00'05T'T loo'o 00°0ST'T ] sasuadxy eo)
sasuadxy
pieog Alosinpy 32inos3y [ednjeN €8T
pieogaees  ulwpyumol peaHdaq TTOTA TZ0ZAd 00T 020ZAd4
(44014 zeoz [A40]4 almd 198png [enay 128png

[1e33Q - 20T A4 - 193png 193]}||1oM



vT o £ abod 1Z0Z ‘gz pady “Aopsinyy

00°0 00°005' loooos'z lo0's6E"€- 00°00s'z e9°088'r- 000529 | ooy
loo'o looosz’s ooosz's  |ooocz'z- 0o‘osz's es-088'z- 00052’y | sasuadx :jeyo)
sasuadxy
000 oo0sz’z 000527 00'SZT'T- 00°052' 100°000°- 00000 | saue|es :|ej0
sauejes
Suppedfoygel) €62
looo l00'000°s 00°000's v'0T9'T- 00°000°s vS'E95 T 00°005°T2 | oy
000 lo0"000°s 00°000°s vrot9'T- 00°000°s vs'e9s'T- 00°005°T2 | sasuadx3 :je30L
sasuadx3z
juowaseueiy Aduasiawy ez
000 svose'szz  00'v18'62T €5°265'T0T-  |00'vTs'622 TSTsL'oze  o0'EeT'iez | gioL
oo 00°£55°6 00°£59'6 o05°9vE‘T- loo'zs€' €L'TT6'S- 00°0S6°T sasuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadxg
000 syeza'eiz 00°£5T'022 E0°TST'66- 00°£5T'022 BLOVS'YTZ- 00'€bT'STZ . sajeles :jejo)
sallejeg
Suiping  THZ
000 88'0Z8'807  [00ZESGOTT  [06'/89'998-  [00'ETO'6I8T  9S'GTZ'TZ9'T-  00°969'TRLT | fmioy
o0 |00 z8s'vsT 00°S€T's8T [T6°661'56- ooz8T6L2 BE'E0S'68T-  00'L6L'61T | sosuadx3 :je3o)
sasuadx3y
SEEETYIST  00C6E'VIBT  [664BTTL-  [00TER'6rST  RTOILTEVT  00G68TOST | saueqes ijeioy
sauejes
G 1 744
0o BE0OTTEEY 00°685'VEY VE'BEL'B6T-  00°L99'90r 86°0L0°9L€-  00'p9E‘B8E | im0y
000 00°005°2€ loooos"ze eroscoT- o°00T'92 goTvv'oz- 0000272 | sasuadx :jej0)
sasuadxy
000 Be-ot9's6e 00°680°L68 t6'£86'T8T-  |00"95'08E S6'829'SSE-  00'799'S9E ” sapejes iel0)
sauejes

ysjedsig/suonedunwiwio) STz

pieoqpaps  ulwpyumol  pesyidag 120ZAd TZ0ZM 0Z0ZA4 0Z0ZAd
770z 7207 7207 alAd 198png [enaoy 198png

['e19Q - 2202 Ad - 198png 199}}|IoM




vt fo g abod TZ0Z ‘z judy “Aopsinyj

000 20'098'882T  00'SL6TOTT  BEL00'SES-  00SLGOSTT  [STUS9ETET-  O0ZETELZT 0301
000 l00°00z‘9LT 00°0s°9LT 5861905 00°05t'v9T 98'0S5'SZT-  00'0SS'6VT | sasuadx3 :jejo)L
sasuadxy
00'0 0099'ZTT'T  [00'5TS'980°T  [eS'BE‘vbS-  (00'SZS'9B0T  [6E'TT8'SO0T-  00Z8S'EIOT | saue|es :|ejo)
sauejes
Mda oy
oo oo‘ose‘ove 00°0S6°ETE EvEST'STT-  [00°0S6‘0VE ToPSE'BTE-  00°0S6'SEE | oy
looo 00°0s6‘0vE 00°056°€TE EVEBT'SZTI-  [00°0S6'0VE ToPSEBIE-  00°0S6°9€E sasuadxg :jel0L
sasuadx3
ssplived Mda LTV
000 00°6L6°T8Y loo'6e€'o6e bozos'ser-  00'6EE‘D6E 0o"zov'sT-  00°005'STY mioy
000 00°626'18Y 00°6€€'96E 00zZ0L'gEe- 00°6EE96€ 00°20v'STH- 00°005'STY sasuadx3 :jejo)
sasuadx3y
LIIYLSIA SH HO3A1 534 40J 3dVI  20€
000 00Zv9'89Z'E  [00'S6ETYT'E  O0'E90'BZLT-  [OU'SGE‘VT'E  [pSEG6'GHT'E-  00'DIT'OST'E w301
00'0 00ZY9'89Z'E  [OU'SEE‘TVI'E  [00'E90'BTLT-  [00'SGE'TVT'E  [vSE6G'GHT'E-  OOBIIOST'E sasuadxj :[ejoL

sasuadx3y

LOIYLSIQ HOS TYNOIDAY 13ISNVYN  TOE

looo boesgosez  joo'seztesz  |touv'ObOT-  OOBEZTTELT  SS'STEOEV'T-  00TOLZ69T | il
000 00°857°8£9 00°0 [tesve'svz Jooo lsIbog'909-  00°0 | sasuadx3 :jej0L
sasuadxy
oo 00'ST9Z8T'Z  00'SETT6L'T  |9E'ETTT6L  OOBETTELT  0BOIS'ELET-  00TOLL69T | saue|es :|ej0
salejes
s|o0yas 21Iqnd  00€
PieOqIRBS  ulWpYUMOL  pesHdag T20ZA4 TZ0TA4 0Z0ZAd 0Z0ZA4
[4d4r4 zzoe [A4014 alAd 198png [emay 188png

|1e139Q - 220¢C A4 - 198png 133[}||I9M




v1 jo 6 abongd 1Z0Z ‘ZZ j1dy “Aopsinyy

(00’0 00005°T ooses BUELT- 00542 66°v9- 00's£2'T 17101
000 00'00s°T 00'sez srece- 00's2L 66'v9- 00'SL2'T _ sasuddx3 :jelo)
sasuadxg
a9 wwo) Suphrey pEb
000 00°0s8TSE 00°058'T5€ BYEYYELT-  |00°0SEZSE |coees'ere-  ovosgzze | mior
loo'o 00°0S8TSE 00°058'TSE BYBYb'6LT-  00'0SE‘ZSE Lo6LL'ETE-  00'0s8TzE _ sasuadx3 :jeyoL
sasuadxy
uonels 19jsuel)  EEY
000 l00"009°0T 0000901 00'0 00°009°0T |ce'Tre's- 00°009°0T | mioy
000 looco90t 000090t 000 00°009°0T |teTve's- (00°009°01 ._ sasuadxy :je3o)
sasuadx]y
Sunysdn wens vey
00’0 0o0sT'8ZT o008 8zt loo"sse - lo0'081'8z1 6Tecz'ss ovost'szr | oy
000 0008t e8 oo0ste8 oo'sge‘z- 00°08T°8 rosv'zs- 00'081'e8 . sasuadx3 :{eo)
sasuadxz
00’0 00°000'5Y lo0000'sy loo'o 00°000"st 80°'T08'2T- 00°000'sY . sauejes i[el0}
salejes
3| g mous €Ty
000 000066 lo0006°6 60°SE69T- 00°006Z6 l66'982'69- 00'006'Z6 | oy
000 00°006'6 loo006'6 60°5€6°91- |o0006°6 66'98L'69- 0000626 _ sasuadx3 :|eioL
sasuadxgy
AemysiH zzv
pieOGP3PRS  ulWpYumOL  pesHideqg T20ZA4 T20ZA4 0Z0ZA4 0Z0ZAd
Teoe 44014 zeoe aimM 1°3png [en1oy 128png

|'e1aq - T20Z Ad - 198png 193})||I9M



1 fo o1 3bnd 1207 ‘7z 1Mdy “Aopsinyy

000 l08'699'995 00°696'v6t \L6'898'vIT-  00'6TL'L0S Pe'8EYTS  00'vvzzey | joior
o0 E L, . | 1) L} 4, L/ L/ — M
000 00°00€SPT l00'0ss's07T L5 '6Ev'9t- 100°00€"SYT TL9ET'9ET-  00'00EVET | sasuadxy ;jel0L
sasuadx3y
loo‘o 08'69€T2Y 00°6Tv'6vE ovezy'soT-  loo'6Tr'zoE ETT0S'SYE-  00'bY6'LSE | sauejes :[el0L
sauejes
Aeugqrn 019
looro 000086z 00°008'62 99'£59'9¢- 00°008'62 Lesee'se 00°5€€°62 | imiox
looo 000086z 000086 99'£59'92- 00°008'6Z LreessT 00°SEE'6L | sasuadx3 :jejo
sasuadx3y
SIIIAIDS SURIAIBA  EVS
000 RTvIyIer  |00Z9s‘asz 1s'8S0°0ZT-  [00°608892 lerseszsz- oopst'9se | miog
00’0 lo0'szz'es oo'ss'es o8-T2E’s- oo'szr'zs 9L26T'Er 00°525'9% | sasuadx3 :|e3oL
sasuadxz
TrerT'eee loozsz'eze S99ELTTT-  [ootBe‘ote TOELS'60Z-  00'629'602 _ saue|es :|e301
sauejes
Sui8y uo PUNO) TIPS
0o 00°000's0€ 00'000's0E  |89°2zLTE- 00°000'50€ ®'SELVSZT-  00'000°08Z | 1oor
000 00°000°s0€ 00°000°50€ 89°L2L'TE- loo000°s0¢ T'ses'vsz-  oo'000'08T | sasuadxj :jej0)
sasuadxy
S9IIAIDS UBWINY  0ZS
000 £L08L'LvT loo'szesze €6'9rb'90T-  00°ESLD0T 20'v66'Z8T-  00°6£9'06T | ooy
00°0 loo60v'T9 00°605°T9 ¥ST08'9T- oo'ves‘LE 81T'897'sT- 006299 | sasuadx3 :jelo)
sasuadx3y
000 ELTLE'98T loo'6t8'a9t l6€"svo'ss- 00'618'99T e'szeeor- oooso'vet sauejes :jei0y
salejes
YajeaH jo pJeog 0TS
Pieogioaes  ulwpyumol  peaHideq T20TA4 TZ0TA4 0Z0TA 020ZA4
zeoe zzoe (4414 alAd 108png {emoy 1e8png

1e39Q - 2T0T Ad - 133png 133[}||]9M




vr fo 11 abod 120Z ‘gz pady “Aopsiny

oo 00000 00000 l00'p9z'T- loo000' 00°000°2- 00°000° | oy
000 00000’z looovo‘z 00'492't- 00'000' 100°000'- 00000 | sasuadx3 :jeo)
sasuadx3
(19uno) [eanyn) 969
000 00°002' 00°002°T 00’0 00°002'T 00°002°¢- 00°002' | moy
000 o000z’ 00002°T 00'0 loo00z't 00002t 00°002°T _ sosuadx3 :|e30).
sasuadxy
suopeiqaja) AeplioH  z69
00'0 0000z joo009'z looott- 00°009' legzT- 00'009'7 1030y
loo'o loo 00z 00°009°7 oootT- 00°009' 68'ZT- 00°009° sasuadx3 :|eo)
sasuadx3y
UOISSIWWO) [eJ140ISIH 069
looo 85'560'8ST 00°2bL'9TE seovT'viz- 00°595'908 8€'S20'821- 00°£99'0LT 1101
000 oo0sz‘ss [00°668'TTZ T8uEs'ET:  [00'668°TTE 6'£99'9¢- lo00s'sz | sasuadx3 :jeoL
sasuadxg
000 8S'SVEZ0T 00°8v8°v0T S'€15°05- 00'999'v6 9" LSE'T6- 00°LT6'V6 | sauejes :eo)
saliejes
Jopauq sadjaIes AjUnwwo) 099
oo 79'v8Y'S9E oo69T'TLE SS00T'681-  [00°€86'8VE lecose'ste  looest'oze o104
00°0 0062618 00°6£'28 wL98L'6E- 00'6L€°T8 ToBav'SL- 00°268'SL ] sasuadx3 :[e3oL
sasuadx3
00’0 29'555'€82 0006'882 TSEIESPT-  [00°b09°29¢ TLTI6'EvT- oov9s'osz | sapejes :|ejoL
salle|es
uonealddy Qg9
PlEOGYBRS  UIWPYUMOL  peaH'1dag TZ0ZM TZ0ZA 020ZAd 020ZAM
720t [44¢14 zeoe alAd 198png |enoy 198png

[1e33Q - 2207 Ad - 198png 1991} I9M



¥ fo zT abog 1Z0Z ‘zz jdy ‘Aopsinyy

00'0 00'0 joocosT’'otz  |o0z90'69- 00'08T'0TZ looozs'se- 00'0 | oy
000 000 boosTotz  |oozeo'ss- 00087012 000zL'sz- 00'0 _ sasuadxy :[el01

sasuadxy

SJUBWISSISSY AJUno) g 23e)S  0¢8

00°0 00'0st l0oost oo lovost oo 00'0 | oy

oo 0°0st 0o'ost oo 00°05T loo'o 00°0 sasuadx3 :je30L
sasuadxy
spunjoy 3/ -1saJalu} 952
000 00°000°0% 00°000°0¥ SE'SLO'LE- 00°000°5Z 000 00'0ST'sZ | mioL
000 00"000°0v (00°000°0v SE'5L0°LE- 100°000'sZ Jooro 00°0sT's2 sasuadx3 ;101
sasuadx3
359J93U] WBL WOYS €S/
00’0 000 00°6T8'9vE s5°L0Z'96T-  [00°6T8'9VE jBrzssose:  oovssose | oy
oo'o loo'o 00'6T8'9VE [55'L0Z'96T-  |00°6T8'9vE BLTSS08¢E- 00'7SL'08E sasuadi3 :jejo)

sasuadx3y

1/1-1sa431u] A0S 192d  TSZ

oo 000 00'ZVE'STZT  |8v'Zve's06-  OOTVE'ETZT  00°LI8'BETT-  00LT8'SEZT |  oioy
000 oo OOTVE'STZT  |BY'TVE'B06- [00ZVE'EIZT  [00'LTS'SETT-  00°LTS'BETT sesuadx3 :jejoL
sasuadxy
1/1- |edpuiig 91A195 1930 OTL
000 00°2v9'szy loo"zvs‘evy zesse'see-  [00°s88's8E werEs'zze [ooese'see | oy
000 00°006°6S 00°008°LL los'1e6 22 00°09£°99 50'5¥8'L9- 00°002'99 sasuadxy [ei0L
sasuadxy
loo'o 00'tv's9e 00°2tr2'598 Re'eso's0E-  [o0'szr'stE 69989'652- 00'68T'192 " sapejes :|e0)
solejes
yeag 669
PleoquaPs  ulwpyumoyl peaHdag TZOCAd TZ0TAd 0202 020z
[A40]4 (4414 [A4VA QLA 198png |enay 128png

['e1aq - 220Z Ad - 198png 199}II9M




v Jo §T abpg 1202 “zz judy “Aopsinyy

000 000sz'c 00°000%9 90°826°- 000059 98'8TE"S- 000059 | 1ms0s
00°0 Jooosz's 000009 90'826'T- 00°00s'9 98°8TE"s- 00°005'9 | sape|es :jejo)
sapejes
3j11 @dueansu| dnosn  ST6
00’0 loose'eor's  ovae'vv't  syosv'sos-  looseo'sie’t  coesTsie'T ooszoels’T | ool
00°0 l00'8L62br'T  (00'BL6°2bY'T  [8r'98Y'S99-  00LZOGLE'T  |LLUEST'SLET-  00'LZ0'6LET | saue|es :|ejoL
sallejes
aoueansu| yyjeaH dnoss pI6
000 |00‘000'0e l0o"000'0e €0°690°L1- 00°000'5 86'996'vz- l00°000's2 | im0y
looo lo0000%0¢ 100°000°0€ [eo690°21- 00°000°sZ 86'996'v2- 00°000'sZ ] saye|es :|e30)
sape|es
uonesuadwo) juswAojdwaun €16
) 00°520'6T1 00'000'STT  00°L20'e8- 00000'STT  00'00S'vTT-  00°000°STT | joioy
000 oo'szo’6Tr 00°000'TT 00'£20°¢8- 00°000sTE 00'005'%TT-  00'000°STT | sajejes :fe3oL
solejes
asueansuj dwo) sIaNIOM  ZT6
000 00TOT'9LST  [00'8EL'96Y'T  00'ET8TEVT-  00°LLS'90Y'T  [00'969'LvZT-  00'969'LbTT | Mool
o' 00TOT'9LST  [00'BEL'96VT  00'EZE'TEVT-  OULISDOVT  [00'969°vT'T-  00'969'vTT | sajejes :|ej0)
salejes
Juawaiay Auno)  TI6
oo 00°S8£'£19 00°86€S02 00'669'70T-  |00°86E°502 00'88€’00Z- 000 | moy
oo 00's8z'£1s  [00°86€'502 00'669'20T-  [00°86ES0Z loosse‘ooz- 000 r sasuadx3 :je3o)
sasuadx3y
sjuawssassy Ajuno)  0€g
PJeOqI3PS  ulupyumol  peapidag TZ0TAd 120ZAd 0Z0ZAd 020ZAd4
44174 44074 [44V74 alMd 128png [eniay 1°3png

[1e13Q - 2202 Ad - 193png 193|}|I9M




vT fo bt 3bod I20Z ‘ZZ jdy ‘Abpsinyj

000 [ve's6svor'zz  [00'T8y'690'€r  [ET'98T6S6TT-  |00'BBLOVETT  [09'9ZT'6EV0T-  00'L65L80°TC :398png [ejo puesn
00°0 loo000vee 00°000'sTE TzTecsies  00°000°0€E 98'866°TTE-  00'000'ZTE | miox
00'0 oo-ooo'vee l00000°sTE TzEeL'sce 00°000'08E 98'866'TTE-  00°000'ZTE _ sasuadxg :|e3o)
sasuadxy
acuesnsu] Aupiqery / Ayiadodd  spe
00'0 [o000s'8 000’ eoTiv's- oo 00°0 00'0 | moy
000 00°005'8 00'005'8 9 TTv's- loo'o o'o 00°0 _ sajeles €301
salejeg
HOIoMm xelL  0v6
000 00°000°07 00°000°Y 00'00S'TT- 00°000'6T 00°000'2T- 00'0 101
000 l00°0000t 00°000'% 00°005°TT- 00°000'6T 00000°LT- 000 ] sauejes :|el0)
saliejes
3UN02dY sSUInES Yi|eaH dieys UMol  8T6
000 00000y 00°000'ev oLo18'ze- 00°000°0Y [1s'666'22- 00°000"st | moy

000 00°000°st 00000t ozote'ze- 00°000°0% 15°666'L2- l00000"st sayejes :|e10L

salejes

Joueinsuj yyeaH - spuadns /16

00'0 00°9v6°svT 00'9b6'0ST wetrst- 00°0¥0'1ET 66°0ZT'L2T- T A R
00'0 00°9v6'syT 100°9v6'0ST lersee'se 00°060°TET 66°02T'22T- 00'SS8'6VT | sajejes :|eoL
sauejes
aled|pa dJeys umojl 916
PiROGPBRS  ujwpyumol  pedqdag TZ0ZAd T20ZA 020zA4 020ZA4
zzoz (4414 zzoe aiM 198png [enyoy 198png

]1e13Q - 220Z Ad - 398png 199}|I9M



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

VII

SELECTBOARD REPORTS:

Reported by:

Topic:




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

X

TOPICS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

Requested by:

Topic:

Requested to be on:




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST x I
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

CORRESPONDENCE AND VACANCY REPORTS



Date: April 23, 2021

To: Board of Selectmen
From: Jeanne Maclauchlan
Re: Vacancies on Town Boards

Board of Health (5 members, 2 alternates)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 alt Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Board of Water Commissioners

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 alt Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Building and Needs Assessment Committee (5 Members)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Commission on Disabilities (up to 5 Members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
3 Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Conservation Commission (7 Members + 2 alternates)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 Positions

2 alt Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Council on Aging (11 Members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Cultural Council (no more than 15 Members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
4 Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Finance Committee (9 members, 2 alternate)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Alternate Position Town Moderator
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term

3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years



Historical Commission (7 members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Vacancy Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Local Housing Partnership (at least 9 members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Vacancy Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No application on file

Marina Advisory Committee (7 Members, 2 Alternates)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Alternate Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Natural Resources Advisory Committee (7 Members)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No application on file

Personnel Board (4 members + TA + FinCom Rep)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Planning Board (7 members + 2 alternates)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Recycling Committee (7 Members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 Alternate Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Rights of Public Access (5 Members)

Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
2 Positions Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Shellfish Advisory Board (7 members + 2 Alternates)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Alternate Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Zoning Board of Appeals (5 Members, 4 Alternates)
Vacant Positions Appointing Authority
1 Position Board of Selectmen
Requesting Appointment: No applications on file

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
1 year

Length of Term
2 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
5 years

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
1-2 years
1-1 year

Length of Term
3 years

Length of Term
3 years



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021
MINUTES
' REQUESTED BY: Executive Assistant N
DESIRED ACTION: | Approval of meeting minutes for April 13, 2021
PROPOSED
MOTION: I move to approve the minutes of April 13, 2021 as printed in
| Draft
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.
Wellfleet Selectboard Meeting Minutes

Members Present: Michael DeVasto, Chair; Janet Reinhart, Helen Miranda-Wilson, Justina Carlson, Ryan
Curley

Others Present: Maria Broadbent, Town Administrator; Rebekah Eldridge, Executive Assistant; Heather
Michaud, Town Accountant; Rich Pauley, Fire Chief; Michael Hurley, Police Chief; Nancy Civetta,
Shellfish Constable; Will Sullivan, Harbormaster; Joe Aberdale, Dredging Committee; Sharon Rule-Agger,
Housing Authority; Elaine Mcllroy, Housing Authority; Mark Vincent, DPW Director; Charlie Frazier,
Wellfleet citizen; Barry McLaughlin, New Manager of the Chequessett Yacht and Country Club; Alison
Hester, manager of the Pearl restaurant; Harry Terkanian, Community Member

Chair DeVasto Called the meeting to order at 6:03pm

L Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments
Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any matter raised
solely during Announcements & Public Comments.
e Seclectboard Member Wilson stated that she would have liked the meeting to stop later.
Chair DeVasto stated right now the Board has a lot to discuss and eventually will move the
meetings to 7pm.
e Charlie Frazier spoke to the Board regarding the bike trail and the parking at the South
Wellfleet General Store. He expressed his concerns. Vincent spoke to that and explained he
had reached out to the state and is waiting to hear back from them.

1L COVID-19 Updates and Recommendations
e Lemos was still out on medical leave. It was questioned by Selectboard Member Wilson
if town buildings have changed the mandated mask wearing. Chief Pauley stated that the
governor has not issued anything regarding not wearing masks in public places.

III.  Public Hearings
A. Flying Fish Café; Amend liquor license.
e The Board didn’t have any issues with this change.
e Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded; and it
was voted to approve the change of description of premises for the Flying Fish Café
application dated March 8, 2021. 5-0
B. Lobster and Chowder House; New seasonal all alcohol license

e The Board had no issues with this license as the previous occupant had a liquor license.

e Selectboard Member Curley, Selectboard Member Carlson seconded; and it was
voted to approve the new seasonal all liquor license for the Lobster and Chowder
House application dated March 15, 2021. 5-0

C. Chequessett Yacht & Country Club (2); Change of Manager.

e McLaughlin introduced himself to the Board and he’s grateful to be working with the
club and the Board in the future.

e Selectboard Member Reinhart moved, Selectboard Member Carlson seconded;
and it was voted to approve the change of manager from Barbara Boone to Barry
McLaughlin at the Chequessett Yacht & Country Club application dated March
22,2021.5-0



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

VIL

* All have approval from Police, Fire, Building and Health Departments.

Licenses
A. Common Victualler:
e Lobster & Chowder House
Wellfleet Cinemas
Wellfleet Drive In & Flea Market
Wellfleet Miniature Golf, Dairy Bar & Grill
Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded; and it
was voted to approve the Common Victualler Licenses for the restaurants listed
above. 5-0.
B. Weekday Entertainment:
o Wellfleet Cinemas
o Wellfleet Drive-In and Flea Market
o Wellfleet Miniature Golf, Dairy Bar & Grill
e Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded; and it
was voted to approve the Weekday Entertainment licenses for the restaurants listed
above. 5-0.

Use of Town Property
A. Pearl Restaurant; Use of Town Property for outdoor dining.

o The Board discussed a fee for the use of the town Property. The didn’t pay a fee last
year due to the Pandemic, Selectboard Member Reinhart stated that many of the
precautions have been lifted and she feels it is appropriate to charge a fee or that they
don’t use the property.

e Selectboard Board Curley stated that he would like the restaurant to be able to use the
town’s property for a nominal fee. Chair DeVasto stated he would like to treat all
restaurants the same. The Board discussed the use and a fee to be charged. Hester
spoke to the Board and explained that she lost 22 tables inside the restaurant and she
is able to put 10 tables in the outdoor lot. The Board discussed allowing this with the
stipulation that it would only be a one-year agreement.

¢ Selectboard Member Wilson moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded;
and it was voted to approve the Pearl Restaurants application for the use of
town property for outdoor dining from May 6, 2021 to October 17, 2021 from
10:30am to 10:00pm with no increase in seating as allowed by the Board of
Health and with a nominal fee of $1.00 per day. 5-0.

Board/Committee Appointments and Updates
e No Appointments or updates

Business
A. Wellfleet Motel & Lodge — Request for same outdoor dining as last year
¢ Selectboard Member Wilson moved; and Selectboard Member seconded; and it
was voted to approve Wellfleet Motel & Lodge Request for the same outdoor
seating plan as it was the year 2020 for the 2021 season with no increase in
seating as allowed by the Board of Health. 5-0.

B. Pearl Restaurant; Approve seasonal all alcohol license renewal.



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to approve The Pearl Restaurant seasonal all alcohol license
renewal. 5-0

* All have approval from Police, Fire, Building and Health Departments.

C. New ADU Bylaw — Local Housing Partnership — Sharon Rule-Agger

Agger began her presentation to the Board, explaining that housing in Wellfleet is
nonexistent. She explained the proposed the newly written ADU bylaw and explained
the guidelines of the ADU. The Board went over the ADU bylaw that was screen
shared with the members. The Board discussed the wording of this document at great
length. Chair DeVasto stated his only issue with the language is he didn’t want it
conflicting with other bylaws or waives another bylaw he had concerns. They
discussed it.

The Board continued to discuss the bylaw and amendments to it. The Board made
discussed some wording that needed to be changed. Board Member Curley made the
changes that were discussed.

Selectboard Member Curley moved, Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to approve and send to the Planning Board the proposed ADU
bylaw as amended by the Selectboard and presented by Sharon Rule-Agger. 4-0-
1 (Selectboard Member Carlson recused)

Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded;
and it was voted to recommend and place the proposed ADU Bylaw as amended
by the selectboard and presented by Sharon Rule-Agger on the 2021 Warrant. 4-
0-1 (Carlson recused)

D. Paid Parking at Beaches — Suzanne Grout Thomas

Thomas explained that she is recommending that the town have paid parking at White
Crest Beach Parking lot for the summer of 2021 explaining the town would bring in
about $200,000 revenue from the paid parking. The Board saw no issues with this.
Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded;
and it was voted to approve charging for White Crest Beach parking for the
2021 season. 5-0

E. Warrant Article to be approve — Natural Resources Advisory Board — John Riehl

The Board had no issues with this article.

Board Member Reinhart moved, Board Member Carlson seconded; and it was
voted to approve the warrant article as written be placed on the warrant for the
June 5, 2021 town meeting.

Board Member Curley moved; Board Member Wilson seconded; and it was
voted to recommend the article in the warrant. 5-0.

F. Update on Harbor Dredging Project, Contract approval for lobbyist— Joe Aberdale

Aberdale gave an update to the Board regarding the dredging and the lobbyist
contract. He gave details on working with the state to and submitting a grant for new
pilings. He updated the Board that the National Marine Fisheries are refusing to
permit the town to dredge in area 2. He explained that the group is unable to meet



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

with them in hopes of negotiation at this time. He continued by giving updates on the
lobbyist and the status with moving forward. He recommended to the Board that they
move quickly in signing this contract. Administrator Broadbent asked if the Board
would administer Selectboard Member Curley to sign the contract on the Board’s
behalf.

e Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded;
and it was voted to approve the contract as written for the harbor dredging
Lobbyist FBB Federal Regulations dated January 21, 2021. 5-0

G. Warrant Article to be approved — Shellfish Constable Nancy Civetta

e Civetta spoke to her article and stated there is some new language stating that it will
take out the part in the article that says transfer. She explained her article and how it
will work more clearly to the Board. She read the sentence to the Board.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Curley seconded; and it was
voted to approve the warrant article as amended to be placed on the warrant for
the June 5, 2021 town meeting. 5-0.

H. Water Enterprise 2022 budget — Jim Hood Chair of Board of Water Commissioners
(withdrawn and continued)

I.

Home Rule Petition for the Blakely Property ~ Selectboard Member Curley

e Curley presented to the board his petition that he worked on with Julian Cyr’s office
and explained that he is asking for an easement for a curb cut for this property. There
wasn’t much discussion on this petition and no objections from the board members.
This needs to be sent to town counsel for their amendments if any.

e Selectboard Member Curley moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded;
and it was voted to place on the Warrant and recommend a home rule petition
authorizing the commissioner of capital assets management and maintenance to
grant an easement for the Town of Wellfleet. 5-0.

Capital Budget — Selectboard and Department Heads.

The Board discussed the Vehicles in the Capital Budget. There were missing documents.
Chair DeVasto asked if there were any issues with any of the capital budgets. He
explained that he had no issues and asked if the Board if they wanted to take a vote.
They discussed the Police Department’s two vehicles Chief Hurley explained that this
would be a year where only one car would need to be replaced but due to COVID he was
unable to get the car last year.

The Board deferred to Terkanian for his opinion on some of these items. Chief Pauley
explained that there were a lot of items missing in the capital budget in front of them.
DPW director Vincent explained he had some missing things from his department.
Selectboard Member Curley moved; Selectboard Member Wilson seconded; and it
was voted to approve the fiscal year 2022 Department Capital items included in the
April 13, 2021 selectboard packet as debt exclusions for the 2021 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant. 5-0.

Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard member Reinhart seconded; and it
was voted to recommend the capital budgets that were included in the Selectboard
packet. 5-0.



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

K. Place Warrant Articles

Administrator Broadbent explained that the articles that are in front of them are place
holders right now. Chair DeVasto explained that he would like to place the articles that
were deferred from last year’s town meeting. They Board agreed to go over each warrant
article that they hadn’t already approved previously.

Selectboard Member Curley moved; Selectboard Chair DeVasto seconded; and it
was voted to recommend and place the Public Works Replace Guard Shack and
Canopy Station at the Transfer Station into the 2021 Warrant for the Annual Town
Meeting as a debt exclusion. 4-1 (Carlson voted no)

The Board moved on to the Duck Creek Revetment article, Vincent explained that he
would like to keep it on the warrant.

Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded; and it
was voted to place the Duck Creek Revetment Engineering warrant article in 2021
Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 5-0

Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded; and it
was voted to recommend the Duck Creek Revetment Engineering Warrant article.
5-0

The Board moved onto the substation which Vincent explained is the old Fire Station in
South Wellfleet.

Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded; and it
was voted to place and recommend the South Wellfleet Substation Warrant Article
in the 2021 Town meeting Warrant. 5-0.

The Board didn’t want to discuss the Water Enterprise Budget as it hasn’t been reviewed.
Selectboard Chair DeVasto moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded; and it
was voted to place the Non-Union and other personnel salaries and compensation to
the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant. 5-0

Chief Pauley explained his reasoning for asking for additional staff for the fire
department.

Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded; and it
was vote to place and recommend the requests for additional fire department
positions on the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant. 5-0

Chief Pauley gave an update on his paramedic training and explained how important it is
for his staff.

Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Curley seconded; and it
was voted to place and recommend the funding for the Paramedic Training
Program on the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant. 5-0

The Board moved onto the additional police officer. Chief Hurley explained that the
reserve officer program is being phased out and he needs to plan for a full-time police
officer.

Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded; and
it was voted to place and recommend the request for an additional Police Officer on
the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant 5-0.

The Board continued with the Community Preservation Articles.

Selectboard Member Wilson moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded; and
it was voted to place and recommend all the Community Preservation Articles to the
Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant 5-0.

5



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded; and
it was voted to recommend the shellfish revolving fund for the Annual 2021 Town
Meeting Warrant. 5-0

The Board continued with the discuss the transfer tax warrant article and decided to
postpone a vote on this until they understand it and get a little more information.
Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member seconded; and it was
voted to place the disposition of Town Owned Property Map #30 Parcel #14 as
amended on the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant. 4-1 (Carlson voted no) This
was not recommended only to place.

The Board discussed High Toss Road, Wilson asked if it was worked out with Broadbent
and Carole Ridley. Broadbent explained that there is a checklist that they have been
working on and there will be a letter to go out for the Board to sign.

There was discussion on this article. This article needs to go before the Planning Board.
Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member Carlson seconded; and
it was voted to place and recommend Duck Harbor and Pole Dike acceptance of a
town way in the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant. 5-0

Selectboard Member Curley explained that the next article the Board voted to not place or
recommend Map #20, Parcels # 80,82, & 239

He continued stating that the Board did approve to insert and recommend Map #30 Parcel
#186 and Map #42, Parcel #137 Curley continued to explain they are all marshlands.
They Board will need to have the exact acreage.

Voted to recommend the Natural Resources Advisory Board Black Custard Article
request as printed in the Selectboard Packet. This article has been previously placed.
The Right to Farm Article was next up for discussion. The only discussion was the
structure of the article. Civetta explained that she some overlap in the article and asked
Chair DeVasto to come to a Shellfish Advisory Meeting to talk and discuss with them his
article.

The Dog Bylaw will be discussed and presented at a future meeting.

VIII. Selectboard Reports

Helen spoke about the Dog Bylaw and that she had worked with Thomas and the Dog
Officer for the Town of Wellfleet. She explained she will have a better presentable copy
of the bylaw for the next meeting.

IX. Town Administrator’s Report

Administrator Broadbent discussed the auditor’s management letter so the auditors will
be presenting their findings to the Board in May. She explained there are a number of
deficiencies in the current and past budgets. She stated they are working to get a number
for free cash certified with DOR. She stated that Karen Plantier has started as the new
water clerk. She also stated the new Assistant Town Administrator Rebecca Slick started
April 1, 2021 and will be in to meet the board at a later date.

Selectboard Member Curley asked when the auditors will finish and when will the
budgets be corrected and fixed? Michaud explained that it could be anywhere between
two to three years before it is fully corrected. Selectboard Member Curley stated he
would like to offer an opinion that the town should look into an outside firm.

The Board continued to discuss the auditor’s management letter.



DRAFT this meeting can be seen in its entirety found on the town website.

X. Topics for Future Discussion
XI.  Correspondence and Vacancy Reports
XII. Minutes

A. Tuesday March 9, 2021 ~ Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member
Curley seconded; and it was voted to approve the meeting minutes of March 9, 2021 as
printed in draft. 5-1 (Wilson Abstained)

B. Tuesday March 23, 2021 ~ Selectboard Member Curely moved; Selectboard Member
Reinhart seconded; and it was voted to approve the meeting minutes of March 23, 2021
as printed in draft. 5-1 (Wilson Abstained)

C. Monday April 5,2021 ~ Selectboard Member Reinhart moved; Selectboard Member
Curley seconded; and it was voted to approve the meeting minutes of April 5, 2021 as
printed in draft. 5-1 (Wilson Abstained)

XIII. Adjournment
e Selectboard Member Curley moved; Selectboard Member Reinhart seconded; and it
was voted to adjourn 4-0
e Meeting adjourned 10:07pm



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: April 27, 2021

XIII

ADJOURNMENT

_REQUESTED BY: Selectboard Chair Michael De Vasto
'DESIRED ACTION: | To Adjourn
' PROPOSED I move to Adjourn

MOTION:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain






